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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report on Form 20-F contains forwardking statements. A forwarndoking statement is a projection about a fu
event or result, and whether the statement cornesisrsubject to many risks and uncertainties. s&fsgtatements often can be identified b
use of terms such as "may,” "will," "expect,” "lese,"” "anticipate,” "estimate,” "approximate" oohtinue,” or the negative thereof. The ac
results or activities of the Company will likelyfigir from projected results or activities of ther@many as described in this Annual Report,
such differences could be material.

Forwardiooking statements involve known and unknown riskscertainties and other factors that may causethgal results ai
performance of the Company to be different from fuyre results, performance and achievements egpceor implied by these statements
other words, our performance might be quite difierfom what the forwardboking statements imply. You should review callgfuall
information included in this Annual Report.

You should rely only on the forwatldeking statements that reflect management's visvofathe date of this Annual Report.
undertake no obligation to publicly revise or ugdtitese forwardboking statements to reflect subsequent eventsranmstances. You shol
also carefully review the risk factors describedther documents we file from time to time with tBecurities and Exchange Commission
"SEC"). The Private Securities Reform Act of 198tains a safe harbor for forwalmbking statements on which the Company relie
making such disclosures. In connection with thefé'sharbor,” we are hereby identifying importarttées that could cause actual resuli
differ materially from those contained in any forddooking statements made by us or on our behalttdfa that might cause sucl
difference include, but are not limited to, thoggcdssed in the section entitled "Risk Factors"auritem 3. - Key Information.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND CURRENCY PRESENTATION

We prepare our consolidated financial statementscgordance with accounting principles generallyeated in the United States
America and publish our financial statements intechiStates Dollars.

REFERENCES

In this Annual Report, "China" refers to all padfsthe People's Republic of China other than thecth Administrative Region
Hong Kong. The terms "Bonso," "we," "our," "usthé Group”and the "Company" refer to Bonso Electronics Irtiomal Inc. and, where t
context so requires or suggests, our direct andecidsubsidiaries. References to "dollars” or "U8f to United States Dollars, "HK$" are
Hong Kong Dollars, "Euros" or "euro" are to the &pean Monetary Union's Currency, "GPB" are to BhitPounds, "RMB" are to Chin¢
Renminbi and "CDN" are to Canadian Dollars.




PART |
ltem 1. Identity of Directors, Senior Management ad Advisors
Not Applicable.
Item 2. Offer Statistics and Expected Timetable
Not Applicable.
Item 3. Key Information

The selected consolidated financial data as of M&fdg 2008 and 2009 and for each of the threelfigas ended March 31, 2009
derived from the Audited Consolidated Financiat&tents and notes which appear elsewhere in thism@lrReport. The Financial Statem
are prepared in accordance with generally acceptedunting principles in the United States of Ame@rand expressed in United St
Dollars. The selected consolidated financial dataforth below as of March 31, 2005, 2006 and 2@6d for each of the two fiscal years in
period ended March 31, 2006 have been derived foomaudited consolidated financial statements #rat not included in this Annt
Report. The selected consolidated financial datgualified in their entirety by reference to, astibuld be read in conjunction with,
Consolidated Financial Statements and related ratdsltem 5. — “Operating and Financial Review &mrdspects’included in this Annui
Report.




SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA

Statement of Operations Data
(in 000’s US$ except per shares and per share data)

Year Ended March 3:

2005 2006 2007(1)(2) 2008 (1)(2) 2009 (1)(2)
$ $ $ $ $

Net sales 69,60: 64,54 48,27: 45,49¢ 40,37¢
Cost of sale: (53,13%) (51,119 (40,309 (43,629 (34,707
Gross margit 16,46¢ 13,42¢ 7,96¢ 1,86 5,671
Selling expense (2,595 (2,11 (874 (720) (649)
Salaries and related co: (5,21¢) (5,687) (3,019 (3,547 (3,777)
Research and development exper (710 (847) (983) (883) (792)
Administration and general expen: (4,079 (3,42)) (1,655 (3,35)) (4,602)
Amortization of brand nam (200 (200 (200) (200 -
Impairment of goodwil - (25¢) - (84%) -
Impairment of brand narr - - - (1,597 -
Impairment on share investme - - - (200 -
Income (Loss) from operatiol 3,66¢ 911 1,23¢ (9,469 (4,149
Gain from disposal of subsidia - - - - 362
Interest incomt 81 20z 30¢ 19¢ 12¢
Interest expense (417 (509) (122) (44¢) (209)
Foreign exchange gain (los (98) (184) (193) (431 (279
Gain on disposal of proper - - - 3,12¢ 163
Other income (expense 37z 19C (23€) 592 70€
Waiver of loan from discontinued operatic - - - - (5,87))
Income (Loss) before income taxes and minorityrest 3,60z 61t 997 (6,439 (9,150
Income tax (expense) bene (26€) (231) (911) 341 (20¢)
Net (loss) income before minority intert 3,33¢ 484 87 (6,097) (9,35¢)
Minority interest 14 - - - -
(Loss) income from continuing operatic 87 (6,092) (9,359
(Loss) income from discontinued operatic (1,45¢) (2,45¢) 1,77¢
Net (loss) incom 3,35( 484 (1,37 (8,550 (7,589
(Loss) earnings per she

- Basic $ 05¢ $ 0.0¢

- Diluted $ 05t $ 0.0¢
Loss per shar

- Continuing operation $ 001 $ (1.09 $ (1.6¢)

- D iscontinued operatior $ (0.2¢) $ 049 $ 0.3z2

- Total $ 0.25) $ (159 $ (1.3¢6)
Weighted average shar 5,646,67 5,577,63 5,577,63! 5,577,63! 5,5677,63!
Diluted weighted average shal 6,054,30: 5,937,64. 5,937,64. 5,577,63 5,577,63!

(1) The diluted net loss per share was the sarteedsasic net loss per share for the fiscal yeadee March 31, 2008 and 2009 as all potential
ordinary shares including the stock options aréedihitive and therefore excluded from the compiotabf diluted net loss per share.

(2) The statement of operations for fiscal yeaeenMarch 31, 2007, 2008 and 2009 present congraa discontinued operations in
conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statatee




Balance Sheet Data
(in 000’s US$ except per shares and per share data)

March 31,
2005 2006 2007 2008 1) 2009

$ $ $ $ $
Cash and cash equivalel 9,70¢ 8,58: 8,11¢ 9,654 8,04«
Working capital 15,34¢ 16,94 16,84: 11,81 11,24«
Total assets of continuing operatic 34,04+ 25,62(
Total assets of discontinued operati 7,742 3,81¢
Total asset 52,46 49,47¢ 47,51¢ 41,78¢ 29,43¢
Current liabilities 18,31¢ 15,65" 16,39 11,99( 6,99:
Long-term debts and capital leas 16€ 0 59 184 52
Deferred income tax asst 99 83 87 22 0
Total liabilities of continuing operatior 14,77¢ 9,65¢
Total liabilities of discontinued operatio 6,107 5,78
Common stocl 17 17 17 17 17
Shareholder equity 33,93: 33,80: 31,05 20,90¢ 13,99¢
Dividends declared per she 0.1C 0.0t 0 0 0

(1) The selected financial data for balance shfeetliscal years ended March 31, 2008 and 2009esrecontinuing and discontinued
operations in conjunction with the Consolidatedaficial Statements.

Risk Factors

You should carefully consider the following riskegether with all other information included inghAnnual Report. The realizati
of any of the risks described below could have tenel adverse effect on our business, resultpefations and future prospects.

Political, Legal, Economic and Other Uncertaintieof Operations in China and Hong Kong

We Could Face Increased Currency Risks If ChinasDNet Maintain The Stability Of The Hong Kong Dpoltar the Chines
Renminbi. The Hong Kong Dollar and the United States Ddflave been fixed at approximately 7.80 Hong Kondldd® to 1.00 U.S. Doll:
since 1983. From 1994 until July 2005, the Chineeeminbi had remained stable against the U.S.aDall approximately 8.28 to 1.00 L
Dollar. On July 21, 2005, the Chinese currencymegwas altered to link the RMB to a “basket ofreacies,"which includes the US doll:
Euro, Japanese Yen and Korean Won. Under the, thiefRMB is allowed to move 0.3% on a daily bagjainst the U.S. Dollar. The Peog
Bank of China, on May 21 2007, widened the RMB itigcband from 0.3% daily movement against the D@&lar to 0.5%. As of Septemt
30, 2009, the RMB was valued at 6.83 per US Dolkamy significant revaluation of the RMB may matdly and adversely affect our c:
flows, revenues, earnings and financial positiord the value of, and any dividends payable to,coimmon shareholders in U.S. Dollars
addition, Chinas government continues to receive significant madonal pressure to further liberalize its curgepolicy and as a result m
further change its currency policy. The Chineseegoment in the past has expressed its intentidhérBasic Law to maintain the stability
the Hong Kong currency after the sovereignty of gl&mong was transferred to China in July 1997. Hesvethere can be no assurance the

Hong Kong Dollar will remain pegged against the D®llar or the Chinese Renminbi will not be allaM® fluctuate more than 0.5% o
daily basis. If the current exchange rate mecharsschanged, we face increased currency risksctwbbuld have a material adverse e
upon the Company.




We Face Significant Risks If The Chinese Governn@dranges Its Policies, Laws, Regulations, Tax @ire¢c Or Its Currer
Interpretations Of Its Laws, Rules And RegulatiBedating To Our Operations In ChinaOur manufacturing facility is located in China. 2
result, our operations and assets are subjecghifisant political, economic, legal and other urtamties. Changes in policies by the Chit
government resulting in changes in laws or regoitegtior the interpretation of laws or regulatiormftscatory taxation, changes in employn
restrictions, restrictions on imports and sourcésupply, import duties, corruption, currency rewaion or the expropriation of privi
enterprise could materially and adversely affect @ser the past several years, the Chinese gowrnhas pursued economic reform poli
including the encouragement of private economioviéigtand greater economic decentralization. B tbhinese government does not cont
to pursue its present policies that encourage dar@ivestment and operations in China, or if thpskcies are either not successful or
significantly altered, then our business operationShina could be adversely affected. We coulenelve subject to the risk of nationalizat
which could result in the total loss of investmanthat country. Following the Chinese governmemdlicy of privatizing many stat@wnec
enterprises, the Chinese government has attemptadgment its revenues through increased tax timifecContinued efforts to increase
revenues could result in increased taxation exgebeimg incurred by us. Economic development n&lirbited as well by the imposition
austerity measures intended to reduce inflatiom inldequate development of infrastructure andgthential unavailability of adequate po
and water supplies, transportation and communicstiof for any reason we were required to move manufacturing operations outside
China, our profitability would be substantially iaiped, our competitiveness and market position ddne materially jeopardized and we m
have to discontinue our operations.

Our Results Have Been Affected By The Recent Glatmalomic Downturn and We Expect Results will Comito be Affected In
2008 and 2009, global economic conditions have mapeed a significant downturn from the effectdha subprime mortgage crisis, general
credit crisis, various bank and institutional fadlg, collateral effects on the finance and bankidgstries, volatile energy costs, slower
economic activity, decreased consumer confidemziiaed corporate profits and adverse businesstammli These conditions make it
difficult for our customers, our vendors and u$aiecast and plan future business activities oaagn accurately. They have caused anc
continue to cause companies worldwide to slow sipgngenerally, and our customers to slow orderimg spending on our products
specifically. If orders from our customers congro shrink because of these macroeconomic effegtdyusiness, financial condition and
results of operations will in turn likely be matdly and adversely affected.




We cannot predict the timing or duration of theremmic slowdown in the electronics manufacturinguistdy in which we
operate. Therefore, management has focused astraegy to improve production efficiencies, braader product range, and penetrate new
markets. We plan to concentrate on reducing oeeflcests and improving resources utilization. Ereegions will increase our profitability
and new products development to meet new requirenfierm customers.

The economy of China has been experiencing signidiet growth, leading to some inflation. If the govenment tries to control inflation by
traditional means of monetary policy or returns to planned economic techniques, our business will seff a reduction in sales growtl
and expansion opportunities.

The rapid growth of the PRC economy has histogaasulted in high levels of inflation. If the gowenent tries to control inflation,
may have an adverse effect on the business cliavadegrowth of private enterprise in the PRC. Anngeoic slowdown may reduce ¢
revenues. If inflation is allowed to proceed undtest; our costs would likely increase, and therelmamo assurance that we would be at
increase our prices to an extent that would otfseincrease in our expenses.

Changes to PRC tax laws and heightened efforts bjp¢ China’s tax authorities to increase revenues are expectéal subject us to greate
taxes.

Under prior PRC law, we have been afforded a nunolfgax concessions by, and tax refunds from, Ckiax authorities on
substantial portion of our operations in China binvesting all or part of the profits attributaltte our PRC manufacturing operations.
March 16, 2008, the National People’s Congressauat the Corporate Income Tax Law of the Peoplepulic of China (therfew CIT
Law”). The new CIT Law increases the corporate incomeratx for foreign invested enterprises to 25% witlect from January 1, 20C
which would likely increase our tax burden in theufe. The new CIT Law provides that further dethimeasures and regulations on
determination of taxable profit, tax incentives arendfathering provisions will be issued by that&tCouncil in due course. As and wher
State Council announces the additional regulatimesyill assess their impact, if any. Under theviiecome tax law, apart from those quali
as hightech enterprises, most domestic enterprises aeigfoinvested enterprises would be subject to glsiRRC enterprise income tax |
and gradually transition to the new tax rate of 2bthin five years. We base our tax position uploa anticipated nature and conduct of
business and upon our understanding of the tax tdwise various countries in which we have assetsoaduct activities. However, our
position is subject to review and possible chaliehy taxing authorities and to possible changdavin which may have retroactive effect.
cannot determine in advance the extent to whichesomsdictions may require us to pay taxes or nmazdgments in lieu of taxes.




We Face Risks By Operating In @hBecause The Chinese Legal System Relating Teigromvestment And Foreign Operati
Such As Bonso’s Is Evolving And The ApplicatiorCBihiese Laws Is UncertainThe legal system of China relating to foreign inwgnts i
continually evolving, and there can be no certaiyto the application of its laws and regulationparticular instances. The Chinese |
system is a civil law system based on written $atuUnlike common law systems, it is a systemwivich decided legal cases have |
precedential value. In 1979, the Chinese govermnibegan to promulgate a comprehensive system o & regulations governing econo
matters in general. Legislation over the past &y has significantly enhanced the protectiorsr@éid to various forms of foreign investrr
in China. Enforcement of existing laws or agreets@may be sporadic and implementation and intespogt of laws inconsistent. The Chin
judiciary is relatively inexperienced in enforcittee laws that exist, leading to a higher than udegkee of uncertainty as to the outcome o
litigation. Even where adequate law exists in @hiih may not be possible to obtain swift and exhl# enforcement of that law. Furtt
various disputes may be subject to the exerciseookiderable discretion by agencies of the Chirggseernment, and forces and fac
unrelated to the legal merits of a particular nradtedispute may influence their determination.n@ued uncertainty relating to the law:
China and the application of the laws could haweaterial adverse effect upon us and our operatio@hina

We Could Be Adversely Affected If China ChangeSdtsomic Policies In The Shenzhen Special Econdarie Where We Operat
In August 1980, the Chinese government passed '|&&gns for The Special Economy Zone of GuangdorayiRce" and officially designat
a portion of Shenzhen as The Shenzhen Special Bgpdone. Foreign enterprises in these areas ldrmfi greater economic autonomy .
special tax incentives than enterprises in othetspgaf China. Changes in the policies or laws goiveg The Shenzhen Special Economy z
could have a material adverse effect on us. Marecaconomic reforms and growth in China have bmere successful in certain provin
than others, and the continuation or increaseeddtdisparities could affect the political or sbstability of China, which could have a mate
adverse effect on us and our operations near Skanzh

Controversies Affecting ChimaTrade With The United States Could Harm Our Resdf Operations Or Depress Our Stock Pi

While China has been granted permanent most éavoation trade status in the United States thratgglentry into the World Trac

Organization, controversies between the UnitedeStahd China may arise that threaten the statuggatving trade between the United St:

and China. These controversies could materialty adversely affect our business by, among otheg#hicausing our products in the Un

States to become more expensive, resulting in @ctish in the demand for our products by custonrethe United States, which would hay

material adverse effect upon us and our resultgpefations. Further, political or trade frictioativeen the United States and China, whetf
not actually affecting our business, could alsoarmally and adversely affect the prevailing manete of our common shares.
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If Our Sole Factory Were Destroyed Or Significaritigmaged As A Result of Fire, Flood Or Some Othatufdl Disaster, We Wou
Be Adversely Affecte. All of our products are manufactured at our nfaoturing facility located in Shenzhen, China. eFfighting an
disaster relief or assistance in China may not $eleveloped as in Western countries. We currenéyntain property damage insura
aggregating approximately $27.63 million covering stock in trade, goods and merchandise, furnitme equipment and buildings. We
not maintain business interruption insurance. $tmes are cautioned that material damage to, otabe of, our factory due to fire, sev
weather, flood or other act of God or cause, ef/érsured, could have a material adverse effeaunfinancial condition, results of operatic
business and prospects.

Our Results Could Be Harmed If We Have To Complth Wiew Environmental RegulationsOur operations create so
environmentally sensitive waste that may increasthé future depending on the nature of our manufexg operations. The general issu
the disposal of hazardous waste has received siogeattention from China’national and local governments and foreign gawerts an
agencies and has been subject to increasing regula®ur business and operating results could adeerially and adversely affected if we w
to increase expenditures to comply with any newrenmental regulations affecting our operations.

Future Changes In The Labor Laws In China May Resullhe Continued Increase In Labor CostBuring the fiscal years end
March 31, 2007, 2008 and 2009, we experienced @ease in the cost of labor caused by the incri@agee minimum hourly rate. Any futt
changes in the labor laws in the PRC could resutiuir having to pay increased labor costs. Tharebe no assurance that the labor laws
not change, which may have a material adverseteffsan our business and our results of operations.

If We Were To Lose Our Existing Banking Facili@sThose Facilities Were Substantially Decreased_€ss Favorable Terms Wi
Imposed Upon Us, The Company Could Be Materially Adversely Affected.We maintain banking facilities with a number offdien
banks, which are typically subject to renewal oraanual basis. Certain of our shtetm bank loans (i.e., aggregating approximately 165
million) were renewed subsequent to our fiscal yaad. We have other banking facilities aggregatipgroximately US$6.1 million that \
expect to renew in the coming months.

We use our banking facilities to fund our workingpgal requirements. In recent months, the creditkets in Hong Kong al
throughout the world have tightened and experiemogichordinary volatility and uncertainty. We hahved discussion with several of our be
and believe that the availability of our bankingifiies will continue on terms that are acceptaiolaeis. However, as a result of changes il
capital or other legal requirements applicablent® hanks that provide our banking facilities ooufr financial position and operations wer
deteriorate further, our costs of borrowing couldrease or the terms of our banking facilities dda# changed so as to impact our liquidit
we are unable to obtain needed capital on termspaable to us, our business, financial conditiesults of operations and cash flows coul
materially adversely affected.
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Risk Factors Relating to Our Business

We Depend Upon Our Largest Customers For A Signifi®ortion Of Our Sales Revenue, And We Cannd@&tain That Sales ~
These Customers Will Continue. If Sales To Thassto@ers Do Not Continue, Then Our Sales Will Declnd Our Business Will
Negatively Impacted.Traditionally, we have relied upon three custoners significant portion of our sales during tiecél year. During tf
fiscal years ended March 31, 2007, 2008 and 20a®®,same three customers accounted for approximétty, 68% and 62% of sal
respectively. During the fiscal year ended Marth 209, 45% of our sales were to a single custd@®¥ during the fiscal year ended Me
31, 2008). We do not enter into lotegrm contracts with our customers but manufact@set upon purchase orders and therefore can
certain that sales to these customers will contiritiee loss of any of our largest customers woildely have a material negative impact on
sales revenue and our business.

The global economic weakness has adversely affemtecearnings, liquidity and financial condition énuntil global econom
conditions improve, is expected to continue toao &lobal financial and credit markets have been,@ndinue to be, extremely unstable
unpredictable. Worldwide economic conditions hagerbweak and may be further deteriorating. Thebiléty of the markets and weaknes:
the global economy has adversely affected, anddconhtinue to adversely affect, the demand foraustomersiproducts, the amount, timi
and stability of their orders to us, the finan@tkength of our customers and suppliers, theiitglor willingness to do business with us,
willingness to do business with them, and/or oyspdiers’ and customersbility to fulfill their obligations to us and/ohé ability of ou
customers, our suppliers or us to obtain credieshfactors have affected, and could continuefetafour operations, earnings and finar
condition adversely. This instability also couldeat the prices at which we could make any sucbssalhich also could adversely affect
earnings and financial condition. These conditiomsld also negatively affect our ability to secfuieds or raise capital, if needed.
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Defects In Our Products Could Impair Our Ability B&ll Our Products Or Could Result In LitigationdA®ther Significant Costs
Detection of any significant defects in our produetay result in, among other things, delay in timeaarket, loss of market acceptance
sales of our products, diversion of developmenbuases, injury to our reputation, or increased sty costs. Because our products
complex, they may contain defects that cannot lectled prior to shipment. These defects could hammreputation, which could result
significant costs to us and could impair our apilid sell our products. The costs we may incucanrecting any product defects may
substantial and could decrease our profit margins.

Since certain of our products are used in appbicatihat are integral to our customérgsinesses, errors, defects, or other perforn
problems could result in financial or other damatgesur customers, which would likely result in adse effects upon our business with tl
customers. If we were involved in any product ili litigation, even if it were unsuccessful, Wwould be timeeonsuming and costly
defend. Further, our product liability insurancaymmot be adequate to cover claims.

Our Sales Through Retail Merchants Result In SeaggnSusceptibility To A Downturn In The Retaddaomy And Sales Variani
Resulting From Retail Promotional ProgramsMany of our other customers sell to retail merchamccordingly, these portions of «
customer base are susceptible to a downturn imettaél economy. A greater number of our salescales and telecommunications prod
occur between the months of April and Septembersfipment in the summer in preparation of the @mas holiday. Throughout t
remainder of the year, our products do not appearet subject to significant seasonal variationweheer, past sales patterns may nc
indicative of future performance. A significantrfon of our sales in Europe is attributable to gnemotional programs of our retail indus
customers. These promotional programs resultgnifstant orders by customers who do not carry mnaducts on a regular basis. We ca
assure you that promotional purchases by our retdistry customers will be repeated regularlyaball. Further, our promotional sales cc
cause our quarterly results to vary significanflihe reduction in promotional purchases would likedve a material adverse effect upon
results of operations.

Our Customers Are Dependent On Shipping Compands Oelivery Of Our Products, And Interruptions Tdiping Coul
Materially And Adversely Affect Our Business Ance@ping Results. Typically, we sell our products either F.O.B. HolKgng or Yantial
(Shenzhen) and our customers are responsible ®rtridnsportation of products from Hong Kong or Yamt(Shenzhen), to their fir
destinations. Our customers rely on a variety afiers for product transportation through variousrld ports. A work stoppage, strike
shutdown of one or more major ports or airportsi¢easult in shipping delays materially and advirsdfecting our customers, which in ti
could have a material adverse effect on our busiagad operating results. Similarly, an increaskedight surcharges due to rising fuel cost
general price increases could materially and aéleedfect our business and operating results.
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Customer Order Estimates May Not Be Indicative €Al Future Sales.Some of our customers have provided us with foteaa
their requirements for our products over a peribtime. We make many management decisions bas¢hese customer estimates, incluc
purchasing materials, hiring personnel, and othattens that may increase our production capacitycsts. If a customer reduces its or
from prior estimates after we have increased oodyction capabilities and costs, this reduction megrease our net sales and we may n
able to reduce our costs to account for this rédméh customer orders. Many customers do notigeus with forecasts of their requireme
for our products. If those customers place sigaift orders, we may not be able to increase owtustmn quickly enough to fulfill tt
customers’ orders. The inability to fulfill custemorders could damage our relationships with costs and reduce our net sales.

Pressure By Our Customers To Reduce Prices AndeAfioeLongferm Supply Arrangements May Cause Our Net SaleBrofit
Margins To Decline. Our customers are under pressure to reduce pricesein products. Therefore, we expect to expemeimcreasin
pressure from our customers to reduce the pricesioproducts. Continuing pressure to reduce thee f our products could have a mate
adverse effect upon our business and operatindtsesbur customers frequently negotiate suppharagements with us well in advance
placing orders for delivery within a year, therefgguiring us to commit to price reductions before @an determine if we can achieve
assumed cost reductions. We believe we must reslucmanufacturing costs and obtain higher volumieis to offset declining average s
prices. Further, if we are unable to offset deéctinaverage sales prices, our gross profit margitisdecline, which would have a matel
adverse effect upon our results of operations.

We Depend Upon Our Key Personnel And The Loss @fkiry Personnel, Or Our Failure To Attract And Retiey Personne
Could Adversely Affect Our Future Performance, Uidahg Product Development, Strategic Plans, Marigethnd Other Objectives.The los
or failure to attract and retain key personnel dosilgnificantly impede our performance, includingpguct development, strategic ple
marketing and other objectives. Our success deptnd substantial extent not only on the abilitg &xperience of our senior managen
but particularly upon Anthony So, our Chairmantad Board. We do not have key man life insuranc®orSo. To the extent that the serv
of Mr. So would be unavailable to us, we would éguired to obtain another person to perform theedir. So otherwise would perform.
may be unable to employ another qualified persdh thie appropriate background and expertise t@aoepMr. So on terms suitable to us.
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Certain Subsidiaries Of The Company Receivedg@ing Enquiries From The Local Tax Authorities DwyiThe Year. If Ti
Subsidiaries Were Finally Held Liable For Such Amdial Taxation, Our Consolidated Net Income Ane Malue Of Your Investment Cao
Be Substantially Reduce During the fiscal years ended March 31, 2007,8280d 2009, certain of our subsidiaries were, amdiicue to be
subject to enquiries from the local tax authoritiegpon the adoption of FIN 48, “Accounting for Wmtainty in Income Taxes -An
Interpretation of FASB Statement No. 108)”"FIN 48, the Company recorded a provision of apjpnately $2,164,000 in relation to uncer
tax positions as of April 1, 2007. The assessmeentibject to final determination by the local taxharities and may be different from what
have recorded as a provision. As such, there carmlmssurance that the enquiry will not resultnip@sing additional income tax expenst
the Group, which could have a material adversecetfpon the Group and its results of operations.

Contractual Arrangements We Have Entered Into Amdsd\nd Our Subsidiaries May Be Subject To ScriByyhe Respective 1
Authorities And A Finding That Bonso And Its Suibsids Owe Additional Taxes Could Substantially iRedOur Consolidated Net Inco
And The Value Of Your Investme We could face material and adverse tax consequéhtes respective tax authorities determine tiha
contractual arrangements among our subsidiariedBando do not represent an arm’s length price ajastBonso or any of its subsidiaries’
income in the form of a transfer pricing adjustmé3tnso did not consider the need to make tax prowiin this respect. However, there
be no assurance that the assessment performee bycti tax authorities will result in the sameifios. A transfer pricing adjustment cot
among other things, result in a reduction, for paxposes, of expense deductions recorded by Banaoyoof its subsidiaries, which coulc
turn increase its tax liabilities. In additionetbax authorities may impose late payment feesadher penalties on our affiliated entities
underpaid taxes. Our consolidated net income neapterially and adversely affected if our afféidtentities'tax liabilities increase or if thi
are found to be subject to late payment fees @rqgibnalties.

Increased Prices For Raw Materials May Have A Nagaimpact Upon Us. During the fiscal years ended March 31, 2007 2008
the costs of component parts increased due tothiease in the price of oil used in the productibnomponents such as plastic resin, stee
other raw materials. If oil prices increase in theire, it will likely result in an increase indlcosts of components to us, as well as an inc
in our operating expenses, which may have a mataligerse effect upon our business and resultpefations. During the fiscal year en
March 31, 2009, we did not experience increasezkprior raw materials we used in manufacturingpsaducts.

We May Face An Increased Shortage Of Factory Werk&uring the fiscal years ended March 31, 2007 ar@B2We experienct
labor shortages for factory workers. During thecdl year ended March 31, 2009, we reduced our aurabfactory workers due to t
decrease in demand for our products. Further,edaaed our labor requirements by subcontractingsomte production processes during
fiscal year ended March 31, 2009. However, tharelie no assurance that we will not experiencaeneésed need for workers in China in
future or that we can adequately staff the factdrige inability to adequately staff our factory thihave a material adverse impact
production, which could lead to delays in shipmemtsnissed sales. In the event that we have delaydost sales, we may need to del
goods by air at our cost to ensure that our pradacive on time, which would likely result in amcrease in air freight costs and vendor 1
and could result in missed sales, any of whichddalve a material adverse effect upon our busimedour results from operations. We int
to monitor the quality of goods from outsourcingotigh our incoming quality control process; howewves cannot guarantee the ability of
subcontractors to deliver goods on time.
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Rec ent changes in the PRC’s ldharcould penalize Bonso if it needs to make &t workforce reductions.In June 2007, tt
National Peopl's Congress of the PRC enacted new labor law leigislaalled the Labor Contract Law, which becanfeative on January
2008. It formalizes workersights concerning overtime hours, pensions, lay@fsployment contracts and the role of trade uni@ussidere
one of the strictest labor laws in the world, amariger things, this new law requires an employecdoclude an “opeended employme
contract” with any employee who either has workadthe employer for 10 years or more or has haddarsecutive fixederm contracts. A
“open-ended employment contrags’in effect a lifetime, permanent contract, whishterminable only in specified circumstances, sash
material breach of the employen'ules and regulations, or for a serious derelictf duty. Under the new law, downsizing by 20%rare o
each individual entity may occur only under speciftcircumstances, such as a restructuring underfalesuant Ching’ Enterprise Bankrupt
Law, or where a company suffers serious difficgliie production and/or business operations. Alsegilay off more than 20 employee at
time, we have to communicate with the labor unibrour Company and report to the District Labor BareAlthough we have successfi
reduced our headcount in response to the curremoatic downturn and recorded a loss of $785,438mag incur much higher costs un
China’s labor laws if we are forced to downsize furthed accordingly, this new labor law may exacerbh&eadverse effect of the econo
environment on our financial results and financ@ahdition.

We Face Increasing Competition In Our Industry Ataly Not Be Able To Successfully Compete With Oungetitors. Our busines
is in an industry that is becoming increasingly petitive, and many of our competitors, both logad énternational, have substantially gre
technical, financial and marketing resources tham lave, and as a result, we may be unable to cempatcessfully with the
competitors. We compete with scale manufacturethe Far East, the United States, and Europe bélleve that our principal competitors
the scale and telecommunications market are othigmal equipment manufacturer (“OEM”) and origindésign manufacturer (“ODM”
manufacturers, and all companies engaged in thedbth ODM and OEM business. Both the scale andeleeommunications markets
highly competitive, and we face pressures on pgieind lower margins as evidenced by the declimaangins that we have experienced 1
our scale and telecommunications products. Lowargms may affect our ability to cover our costdiah could have a material nega
impact on our operations and our business.

We Are Controlled By Our Management, Whose Intévist Differ From Those Of The Other Shareholdesss of September 3
2009, Mr. Anthony So, our founder and Chairman,dfierally owns approximately 36.41% of the outstimgdshares of our common sta
including shares underlying his outstanding opti@rs29.16% without including his outstanding opso Due to his stock ownership, Mr.
may be in a position to elect the board of directand, therefore, to control our business andraffacluding certain significant corpor
actions such as acquisitions, the sale or purcbfassets and the issuance and sale of our sesurltir. So may be able to prevent or cat
change in control of the Company. We also may feegnted from entering into transactions that cdédbeneficial to us without Mr. So’
consent. The interest of our largest shareholder differ from the interests of other shareholders.

Due to inherent limitations, there can be no assgethat our system of disclosure and internal mdatand procedures will t
successful in preventing all errors or fraud, or imforming management of all material informatiom & timely manner. Our disclosur
controls and internal controls and procedures nypnevent all errors and all fraud. A control €8st no matter how well conceived
operated, can provide only reasonable, not absastirance that the objectives of the controkesysire met. Further, the design of a co
system reflects that there are resource constraintsthe benefits of controls must be consideetative to their costs. Because of the inhe
limitations in all control systems, no evaluatidncontrols can provide absolute assurance thataatrol issues and instances of fraud, if
within the company have been or will be detectdoesE inherent limitations include the realitiest flui@gments in decisiomaking can b
faulty and that breakdowns can occur simply becafisgror or mistake. Additionally, controls can tiecumvented by the individual acts
some persons, by collusion of two or more peoplbyocircumvention of the internal control procedurdhe design of any system of cont
also is based in part upon certain assumptionstabedikelihood of future events, and there cambessurance that any design will succe
achieving its stated goals under all potential ieittonditions; over time, a control may become @tpdite because of changes in conditior
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdores may deteriorate. Because of the inherentdiions in a coséffective control syster
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur aaylmot be detected.
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Compliance Costs With Recently Enacted ChangesénSecurities Laws And Regulations Pursuant To Sdrbanesxley Act ¢
2002 Will Increase Our CostsThe Sarbane®xley Act of 2002 that became law in July 2002 rexuired changes in some of our corpc
governance, securities disclosure, accounting antpiance practices. In response to the requirésnefithat act, the Securities and Exch
Commission and NASDAQ have promulgated new rules amariety of subjects. Compliance with thesesuls well as with the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002, including but not limited to cpiiance with Section 404 that requires managenteassess the effectiveness of its inte
control over financial reporting, has increased legal, financial and accounting costs, and we eifiee cost of compliance with these 1
rules to be permanent. Further, the new rulesin@gase the expenses associated with our dirantbofficer liability insurance.

Our Operating Results And Stock Price Are SubjectVide Fluctuations. Our quarterly and annual operating results gectdd by
wide variety of factors that could materially ardvarsely affect net sales, gross profit and prbfitg. This could result from any one o
combination of factors, many of which are beyond@antrol. Results of operations in any periodudtiomot be considered indicative of res
to be expected in any future period, and fluctuettim operating results may also result in fludoret in the market price of our common stock.

Our Results Could Be Affected Byrigjes In Currency Exchange Rate€hanges in currency rates involving the Hong Kdotal
or Chinese Renminbi could increase our expensesing the fiscal years ended March 31, 2007, 2028 2009, our financial results w
affected by currency fluctuations, resulting in atat foreign exchange loss of approximately $193,08431,000 and $279,01
respectively. Generally, our revenues are colteateUnited States Dollars. Our costs and expeasegaid in United States Dollars, Hi
Kong Dollars, and Chinese Renminbi. We face a epariof risks associated with changes among thetivelavalue of thes
currencies. Appreciation of the Chinese Renmirgadiast the Hong Kong Dollar and the United Statedd would increase our expen
when translated into United States Dollars and cconbterially and adversely affect our margins assllts of operations. If the trend
Chinese Renminbi appreciation continues againstitreg Kong Dollar and the United States Dollar, operating costs will further incres
and our financial results will be adversely affectén addition, a significant devaluation in thei@se Renminbi or Hong Kong Dollar co
have a material adverse effect upon our resultgpefationsIf we determined to pass onto our customers thrqugte increases the effect
increases in the Chinese Renminbi relative to thegKong Dollar and the United States Dolldrwould make our products more expen
in global markets, such as the United States aadEtiropean Union. This could result in the lossustomers, who may seek, and be at
obtain, products and services comparable to thaseffer in lowereost regions of the world. If we did not increase prices to pass on t
effect of increases in the Chinese Renminbi retativthe Hong Kong Dollar and the United Statedddglour margins and profitability wot
suffer.
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Protection And Infringement Of Intellectual PropertWe have no patents, licenses, franchises, caonosssr royalty agreements t
are material to our business. We have obtaineddemark registration in Hong Kong and China fag tharks BONSO and MODUS
connection with certain electronic apparatus. UWmarized parties may attempt to copy aspects ofpooducts or trademarks or to obtain
use information that we regard as proprietary.idi@ unauthorized use of our products is difficu@ur means of protecting our proprie!
rights may not be adequate. In addition, the lafvsome foreign countries do not protect our pretariy rights to as great an extent as d
laws of the United States. Our failure to adedyateotect our proprietary rights may allow thirdrfies to duplicate our products or dew
functionally equivalent or superior technology. aldition, our competitors may independently depdionilar technology or design around
proprietary intellectual property.

Further, we may be notified that we are infringpagents, trademarks, copyrights or other intellgcpuoperty rights owned by ott
parties. In the event of an infringement claim, may be required to spend a significant amount ohey to develop a noimfringing
alternative or to obtain licenses. We may not becsssful in developing such an alternative oriobtg a license on reasonable terms,
all. Any litigation, even without merit, could rds in substantial costs and diversion of resourmed could have a material adverse affet
our business and results of operations.

Cancellations Or Delays In Orders Could Materiabyd Adversely Affect Our Gross Margins And Opetatimcome. Sales to ot
OEM customers are primarily based on purchase srdee receive from time to time rather than firm,ndagerm purchas
commitments. Although it is our general practie@tirchase raw materials only upon receiving alpse order, for certain customers we
occasionally purchase raw materials based on sustormers’rolling forecasts. Further, during times of potehtomponent shortages,
have purchased, and may continue to purchase, &terias and component parts in the expectatiaeadiving purchase orders for prodi
that use these components. In the event actuahpse orders are delayed, are not received orasweelled, we would experience incree
inventory levels or possible write-downs of raw er&l inventory that could materially and adversaffigct our business and operating results.

We Generally Have No Written Agreements With Sergplfo Obtain Components, And Our Margins And OtregaResults Cou
Suffer From Increases In Component Pricédle are typically responsible for purchasing comgus used in manufacturing products for
customers. We generally do not have written agesgsnwith our suppliers of components. This tylbjceesults in our bearing the risk
component price increases because we may be uiegptecure the required materials at a price l@eglessary to generate anticipated ma
from the orders of our customers. Further, prioksomponents have increased recently based upmrntrease in oil prices and w
management believes to be a high worldwide demanctdmponents used in the manufacturing of our yetel Accordingly, addition
increases in component prices could materiallyahersely affect our gross margins and results fopperations.
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Certain Legal Consequences of Foreign Incorporatiomnd Operations

Judgments Against The Company And Management M&ijffi@lt To Obtain Or Enforce. We are a holding corporation organi
as an International Business Company under the d¢dvirse British Virgin Islands, and our principgberating subsidiaries are organized u
the laws of Hong Kong and the laws of the PeapReépublic of China. Our principal executive officare located in Hong Kong and
Peoples Republic of China. Outside the United Statesnaly be difficult for investors to enforce judgmemtbtained against us in acti
brought in the United States, including actiongdprated upon the civil liability provisions of Ueil States federal securities laws. In addi
most of our officers and directors reside outslue Wnited States, and the assets of these persmiscated outside of the United States.
result, it may not be possible for investors teeeffservice of process within the United Statesnuin@se persons, or to enforce agains
Company or these persons judgments predicated tiygoliability provisions of United States federatarities laws. Our Hong Kong cour
and our British Virgin Islands counsel have adviieat there is substantial doubt as to the enfbitiBaagainst us or any of our directors
officers in original actions or in actions for erfement of judgments of United States courts imddafor liability based on the civil liabili
provisions of United States federal securities laws

Because We Are Incorporated In The British Virgifahds, You May Not Have The Same Protections AseB#iders Of U.¢
Corporations. We are organized under the laws of the Britisrghi Islands. Principles of law relating to mattexffecting the validity «
corporate procedures, the fiduciary duties of oanagement, directors and controlling shareholdedsthe rights of our shareholders di
from, and may not be as protective of shareholdsisthose that would apply if we were incorporatea jurisdiction within the Unite
States. Our directors have the power to take iceaiztions without shareholder approval, includamgending our Memorandum or Articles
Association, which are the terms used in the Briwsrgin Islands for a corporatios’charter and bylaws, respectively, and approventpo
fundamental corporate transactions, including raoizations, certain mergers or consolidations &edsgle or transfer of assets. In addi
there is doubt that the courts of the British Mirgglands would enforce liabilities predicated updmted States federal securities laws.

Future Issuances Of Preference Shares Could Makeriend Adversely Affect The Holders Of Our Comrtrares Or Delay C
Prevent A Change Of ControlOur Memorandum and Articles of Association proville ability to issue an aggregate of 10,000,000esha
preferred stock in four classes. While currently preferred shares are issued or outstanding, we issue preferred shares in
future. Future issuance of preferred shares cmatkrially and adversely affect the rights of thedders of our common shares, dilute
common shareholders’ holdings or delay or prevesitange of control.
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Our Shareholders Do Not Have The Same Protectiongnformation Generally Available To Shareholder$ @.S. Corporation
Because The Reporting Requirements For ForeignaRrilssuers Are More Limited Than Those Applicdldéublic Corporations Organiz:
In The United State: We are a foreign private issuer within the megrohrules promulgated under the Securities Exchakgt of 1934 (th
“Exchange Act”). We are not subject to certain provisions of the Haxge Act applicable to United States public congmimcluding: th
rules under the Exchange Act requiring the filinghvthe SEC of quarterly reports on Form 10-Q arent reports on Form E; the sections «
the Exchange Act regulating the solicitation ofYes, consents or authorizations in respect tacargtg registered under the Exchange Act
the sections of the Exchange Act requiring insiderfle public reports of their stock ownershipdaimading activities and establishing ins
liability for profits realized from any “short-swifi trading transaction (i.e., a purchase and salesale and purchase, of the isssertjuit)
securities within six months or less). Becauseange not subject to these rules, our shareholdersnar afforded the same protection:
information generally available to investors in ficlscompanies organized in the United States.

Our Board’s Ability To Amend Our Charter WithoutaB&holder Approval Could Have Antiakeover Effects That Could Prever
Change In Control. As permitted by the law of the British Virgin dsids, our Memorandum and Articles of Associatiory in@ amended |
our board of directors without shareholder approvdiis includes amendments to increase or reducauthorized capital stock. Our board’
ability to amend our charter documents without shalder approval could have the effect of delayiheterring or preventing a change
control of Bonso, including a tender offer to puash our common shares at a premium over the cunahet price.

We Have Not Paid Dividends Since 2007 And May Nt [Bividends In The Future We have not paid dividends on our Comi
Stock since 2007, and we may not be able to dediai@ends, or the board of directors may decidetoaleclare dividends, in the future.
will determine the amounts of any dividends whed #hey are declared, in the future at the tirhdexlaration.

We Have Received Notice From NASDAQ For Not MaiirigiA Minimum Market Value Of Publicly Held Shafesd May Not Fulfil
Such Requirement In The FutureOn September 15, 2009, the Company received endtion NASDAQ that its common stock has
maintained a minimum market value of publicly hseftares of $5,000,000 for the last 30 consecutadirty days, as required for contin
inclusion on the NASDAQ Global Market set forthMuarketplace Rule 5450(b)(1)(C). Therefore, in ademce with Marketplace Rule 5810
(c)(3)(D), the Company has been provided 90 caleddss, or until December 14, 2009, to regain caamge with the rule. If the Compe
does not meet the minimum $5,000,000 market vadse for a minimum of 10 consecutive trading day®teeDecember 14, 2009, it v
receive notice of delisting from NASDAQ, which mimay be appealed at that time. Further, the @oasnmay transfer its securities listing
the NASDAQ Capital Market, provided it meets thatioued inclusion requirements for that market
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Item 4. Information on the Company
History and Development of the Company

Bonso Electronics International Inc. was formedAargust 8, 1988 as a limited liability Internatioralisiness Company under
laws of the British Virgin Islands under the nan@otden Virtue Limited.” On September 14, 1988, we changed our name to Belastronic:
International, Inc. We operate under the BVI BassiCompanies Act.

Effective as of May 1, 2001, we acquired 100% cf #uity of Korona Haushaltswaren GmbH & Co. KGlinaited liability
partnership registered in Germany (“KoronaRorona markets consumer scale products throughouwode to retail merchandisers
distributors. These products feature contempodasigns using the latest materials and attractaekaging. Effective March 31, 2009,
sold assets of Korona to Beurer GmbH, includingeiteries, accounts receivable, toolings and irdell property rights. We are in -
process of liquidating Korona.

Effective as of August 1, 2002, we acquired 51%hef equity of Gram Precision Scales Inc. (“GramcRien”). Gram Precision
primarily engaged in the distribution and marketaigoocket scales in the United States, CanadaFamndpe. Effective November 1, 2008,
sold our 51% of the equity in Gram Precision to MiofThadani, the founder of Gram Precision.

In April 2007, we set up a new wholly-owned subaiygj Bonso USA, Inc., a Nevada corporation (“Bokk®A”) to focus on the sal
of industrial scales in the U.S. market. We arthiprocess of liquidating Bonso USA.

Our corporate administrative matters are conduthealigh our registered agent, HWR Services Limited). Box 71, Road Tow
Tortola, British Virgin Islands. Our principal exgtive offices are located at Unit 191946, 19/F, Delta House, 3 On Yiu Street, Shek I
Shatin, Hong Kong. Our telephone number is 852528822, our facsimile nhumber is 852-2691-1724, email address is info@bonso.ct
and our website is www.bonso.com.

Our principal capital expenditures on propertynpkand equipment over the last three years afeghtbelow:

2007 2008 2009
Property plant & equipment and land use ri $293,29E $2,558,72( $71,538

Our capital expenditures include the purchase aftime&ry used in the production of certain of owdurcts.

All of the foregoing capital expenditures were ficad principally from internally generated funds.
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In November, 2006, Bonso entered into a land pwelayreement with Xincheng Hiech Industrial Estate to acquire a piece of
of approximately 146,673 square meters for futuxpaesion of the Compary’operations in XinXing. Pursuant to the land pass
agreement, the total consideration was approxima$dl, 472,000 (RMB 11,145,500). In July 2007, thempany paid a deposit
approximately $610,000 (RMB 4,617,900), and theai@ng balance was paid in October 2007. Duringythar ended March 31, 2008,
Group prepaid $150,325 (RMB 1,050,000) for the &itjan of the right to use another piece of landXinXing, the total consideration 1
which was $501,083 (RMB 3,500,000).

This new piece of land of approxielat146,673 square meters is more than triple ibe af the land upon which the Compal
existing facilities are located in Shenzhen, Chifae land transfer was completed in 2009. Thst fthase of construction of the r
manufacturing facilities has commenced and thetcoction is expected to finish in 2012.

Business Overview

Bonso Electronics International Inc. designs, depg| produces and sells electronic semsmed and wireless products for pri
label Original Equipment Manufacturers (individyatlOEM” or ,collectively, “OEM's”), Original Brandianufacturers (individually “OBM”
or, collectively, “OBM's”) and Original Design Mafacturers (individually “ODM” or, collectively, “OM's”).

Since 1989, we have manufactured all of our praircChina in order to take advantage of the lomarhead costs and competi
labor rates. Our factory is located in Shenzhdrin& about 50 miles from Hong Kong. The convenleoation permits us to easily man
manufacturing operations from Hong Kong and faaiiéis transportation of our products out of Chinaugh the port of Hong Kong a
Yantian (Shenzhen).

Products

Our sensobased scale products are comprised of bathrooeghekit office, jewelry, laboratory, postal and inmia$ scales that a
used in consumer, commercial and industrial apfitina. These products accounted for 66% of revenue fofisical year ended March !
2007, 58% for 2008 and 75% for 2009. We beliexs tur industrial scales will continue to be a érpgortion of our scales revenue as we
able to secure orders from our major customers.

Our wireless telecommunications products are pilgnaomprised of twoway radios and cordless telephones that are us
consumer and commercial applications'hese products accounted for 33% of revenuehfofiscal year ended March 31, 2007, 41% for .
and 24% for 2009. We believe that revenue fromtel@communications products will remain stable.

We also receive revenue from certeustomers for the development and manufacturéoaing and molding for scales ¢
telecommunication products. Generally, these tanls moulds are used by us for the manufactureaafyets. We also generate some sal
scrap materials. These revenues accounted fooxippately 1% of net sales for the fiscal years ehidiarch 31, 2007, 2008 and 2009.
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The following table sets forth the percentage df saes for each of the product lines mentionedvaptor the fiscal years enc
March 31, 2007, 2008, and 2009:

Year ended March 3.

Product Line 2007 2008 2009
Scales 66% 58% 75%
Telecommunication Produc 33% 41% 24%
Others 1% 1% 1%

Total 100% 100% 100%

Business Strategy

We believe that our continued growth depends upmmability to strengthen our customer base by eaingnand diversifying ol
products, increasing the number of customers apdrekng into additional markets, while maintainimgincreasing sales of our product:
existing customers. Our continued growth and dilita to become profitable are also dependent uponability to control production co:
and increase production capacity. Our strate@ctoeve these goals is as follows:

Product Enhancement And Diverstfma We continually seek to improve and enhance oigtieg products in order to provide
longer product lifeeycle and to meet increasing customer demandsduitienal features. Our research and developmiaft are currentl
working on a variety of projects to enhance oustxg scale products and for the telecommunicatindastry and in the postal scale/m
area. See “Products, Research and Development/&itiop” below.

Maintaining And Expanding Busin&ssdations With Existing CustomerdNe promote relationships with our significant tcuser:
through regular communication, including visitingrain of our customers in their home countries anaviding direct access to ¢
manufacturing and quality control personnel. Taczess, together with our concern for quality, remulted in a relatively low level
defective products. Moreover, we believe that@mphasis on timely delivery, good service and lost tias contributed, and will continue
contribute, to good relations with our customersl amcreased orders. Further, we solicit suggestiftom our customers for prod
enhancement and when feasible, plan to develofnaondporate the enhancements suggested by oumeertanto our products.

Controlling Production Costs In 1989, recognizing that labor cost is a mégator permitting effective competition in the caonsel
electronic products industry, we relocated all of manufacturing operations to China to take acgtof the large available pool of loy
cost manufacturing labor. We located our manufaagufacilities within 50 miles of Hong Kong in ced to facilitate transportation of ¢
products to markets outside of China, while bemgfifrom the advantages associated with manufaagun China and in the Shenzhen Sp
Economy Zone.
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We are actively seeking to control production cdstssuch means as redesigning our existing prodnotsder to decrease mate
and labor costs, controlling the number of our ewpés, increasing the efficiency of workers by j@img regular training and tools &
redesigning the flow of our production lines.

Increasing Production Capacityn November 2006, Bonso entered into a landimase agreement to acquire approximately 14t
square meters of land for future expansion in XimgiChina. The construction of the new manufaotufacility will commence by the end
2009 and is expected to be completed by 2012. nféad to carefully monitor our capacity needs anexpand capacity as necessary.

Customers and Marketing

We sell our products primarily in the United Staéesl Europe. Customers for our products are pilyn@EM's, OBM's and ODM"
which market the products under their own brandesmmNe continue to market our products to OEMBMX and ODM'’s at trade shows, \
e-mail and facsimile.

Net export sales to customers by geographic anesisted of the following for each of the three weanded March 31, 2007, 2008

2009.
Year ended March 31:
2007 200¢ 200¢
$ % $ % $ %

United States of Americ 33,048,64 68 29,585,94 65 26,923,18¢ 67
Germany 4,742,83. 1C 5,361,89¢ 12 4,782,28C 12
Other Europea
Countries 6,501,35. 14 6,652,231 14 2,858,23¢ 7
Asia and Other 3,979,54 8 3,895,54. 9 5,814,49( 14
Total 48,272,38 10C 45,495,62 10C 40,378,19¢ 10C
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We maintain a marketing and saéest of 11 people. Also, our experienced engingaeams work directly with our customer:
develop and tailor our products to meet the custtsrspecific needs. We market our products priméahilgugh a combination of direct cont
by our experienced iheuse technical sales staff and our sales repedsard, and through the use of direct mail catadsgand produ
literature. During the fiscal years ended MarchZ&107, 2008 and 2009 we recorded total commigsayments of $nil, $92,602 and $91,¢
respectively. In addition, our marketing teamstaohexisting and potential customers by telepharal and facsimile and in person.

Our major electronics sensor customer and its peafesales for the prior three fiscal years arewe

Percent of Sales — Year ended March 31:

Electronics Sensor Customer 2007 2008 2009
Sunbeam Products, In 32% 29% 45%

A list of our major telecommunications customensdach of the prior three fiscal years follows:

Percent of Sales — Year ended March 31:

Telecommunications 2007 2008 2009
Customer

TTI Tech Co., Ltd 16% 20% 11%

Global Link Corporation Ltd 17% 19% 6%

Component Parts and Suppliers

We purchase over 1,000 different component paots fmore than 100 major suppliers and are not depengon any single suppl
for key components. We purchase components fopmgducts primarily from suppliers in Japan, Taiw@outh Korea, Hong Kong and Chi

During the fiscal years ended March 31, 2007 ar@B2¢he costs of component parts increased dugetintrease in the price of
used in the production of components such as plassin, steel and other raw materials. Further,believe that costs of component
increased during this time period due to an in@a@asvorldwide demand for electronic componentshsag those used in the production of
products. During the fiscal year ended March IR there was not a significant change to theepofcoil, steel or other raw materials.
have taken steps to reduce our exposure to aniliipab obtain components by forecasting with acrieased buffer rate and placing order
components earlier and allowing for longer delivéggd times. Because of these actions, we do xmtot to experience any difficulty
obtaining needed component parts for our products.

25




Quality Control

We have received ISO 9001: 2000 certification froet Norske Veritas Certification B.V., the Netlatls. The ISO 9001: 2C
certification was awarded to our subsidiary, Boidectronics Limited and to Bonso Electronics Lirdite subsidiary Bonso Electron
(Shenzhen) Company Limited. Further, we have veckilL 9000 certification for our telecommunicatoproducts. We have also recei
certification according to the Environmental Managat Standards of ISO 14001:2004 and the Occupdtidealth and Safety Managem
Standard of OHSAS 18001.

ISO 9001 is one of the ISO 9000 series of qualstesn standards developed by the International idzgdon for Standardization
worldwide federation of national standards bodiE¥0 9001 provides a model for quality assuranoe @ntinuous improvement) in prod
development, manufacturing, installation and sémgichat focuses on meeting customer requiremehte TL 9000 standard was develo
by the Quality Excellence for Suppliers of Teleconmications (QUEST) Leadership Forum. The TL 908&Qification process was develo}
exclusively to address the quality of products sexvices provided by suppliers to the telecommuizica industry.

By integrating the Occupational Health and Safetgnsgement Standard of OHSAS 18001 into our qualit§f environment
systems, we have created a total Integrated Managie8ystem (IMS) Quality, Environment and Health and Safety by caorirlyg ISO9001
ISO 14001 and OHSAS 18001 into one Quality/EnvirentfHealth and Safety registration.

The European Union has enacted the RestrictioheiUse of Certain Hazardous Substances in Electiwh Electronic Equipme
Directive (“RoHS”). RoHS prohibits the use of certain substances, diatulead, in certain products. We believe thatame in complianc
with RoHS and have a supply of compliant componé&ots suppliers.

The Company provides to certain customers an adititwo percent of certain products ordered in ki a warranty, which a
recognized as cost of sales when these productshggped to customers from our facility. In adutiti certain products sold by the Comg
are subject to a limited product quality warranfthe Company accrues for estimated incurred bulamified quality issues based uj
historical activity and known quality issues ifas$ is probable and can be reasonably estimatee.stendard limited warranty period is on
three years. Quality returns, refunds, rebatesdéswbunts are recorded net of sales at the tinsalefto three years and estimated based o
history. All sales are based upon firm orders Viited terms and conditions, which generally canpetmodified. Historically, we have 1
experienced material differences between our estitnamounts of quality returns, refunds, rebatesdiscounts and the actual results. |
contracts, there is no price protection or simglavilege in relation to the sale of goods.
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Patents, Licenses, Trademarks, Franchises, Concemss and Royalty Agreements

We have obtained a trademark registration in Hoogd<and China for the marks BONSO and MODUS in eation with certai
electronic apparatus.

We rely on a combination of patent, trademark aadd secret laws, employee and third party disolosure agreements and o
intellectual property protection methods to protectr proprietary rights. There can be no assurahe¢ third parties will not ass
infringement or other claims against us with respe@ny existing or future products. We cannsuas you that licenses would be availab
any of our technology was successfully challengga Ithird party, or if it became desirable to usg #hirdparty technology to enhance
Company’s products. Litigation to protect our pietary information or to determine the validity afiy thirdparty claims could result in
significant expense to us and divert the effort®wf technical and management personnel, whetheotosuch litigation is determined in «
favor.

While we have no knowledge that we are infringipgmi the proprietary rights of any third party, #thean be no assurance that :
claims will not be asserted in the future with espto existing or future products. Any such asserby a third party could require us to
royalties, to participate in costly litigation améfend licensees in any such suit pursuant to imifesation agreements, or to refrain fr
selling an alleged infringing product or service.

Product Research and Development/Competition

The major responsibility of the product design,esesh and development personnel is to develop andupe designs to t
satisfaction of, and in accordance with, the sjpeatibns provided by the OEM's, OBM's and ODM'se W&lieve our engineering and proc
development capabilities are important to the ftsmccess of our business. As an ODM, we takdfg@dions that are provided to us by
customer and design a product to meet those spatiifns. Some of our product design, researchdavelopment activities are custol
funded and are under agreements with specific mest® for specific products. We have successfallyered the costs for our research
development team by moving most research and dewelot activities to our facility in China. We peipally employ Chinese engineers
technicians at costs that are substantially lowsantthose that would be required in Hong Kong.Msgrch 31, 2009, we employed
individuals in Hong Kong and China for our enginiegrstaff, which are at various time engaged ireaesh and development. The m
responsibility of the product design and reseancti development personnel is to develop and prodisstgns of scales products to
satisfaction of, and in accordance with, the sjatibns provided by the ODM's and OEM's. We dpéite hiring additional research ¢
development personnel to meet the increased defoasdale products.

The manufacture and sale of electronic seissed and wireless products is highly competiti@empetition is primarily based ug
unit price, product quality, reliability, productdtures and management’s reputation for integrificcordingly, reliance is placed on rese:
and development of new products, line extensiors taohnological, quality and other continuous pridmprovement. There can be
assurance that we will enjoy the same degree afesiscin these efforts in the future. Researchdanélopment expenses aggregated $98.
during fiscal year ended March 31, 2007, $883,30dnd the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008 and VA2 during the fiscal year enc
March 31, 2009.
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Seasonality

Generally, the first calendar quarter of each yeaypically the slowest sales period because camufacturing facilities in China ¢
closed for two weeks for the Chinese New Year leglgdto permit employees to travel to their homeShima. In addition, sales during the 1
calendar quarter of both scales and telecommuaortatproducts usually dip following the increasesates during the Christmas seasot
greater number of our sales of scales and telecammations products occur between the months oflAgmil September for shipment in
summer in preparation of the Christmas holidayrotighout the remainder of the year, our productaatoappear to be subject to signific
seasonal variation. Sales of telecommunicationlyets are generally higher in the summer monthswé¥er, past sales patterns may nc
indicative of future performance.

Employee incentive compensation is conditioned len émployees return to work following the Chinese New Year asgaid t
employees following the reopening of the factorielathe holidays. We believe that this method fessilted in lower employee turnover t
might otherwise have occurred.

Transportation

Typically, we sell products either F.O.B. Hong KooigYantian (Shenzhen), which means that our custsrare responsible for 1
transportation of finished products from Hong Kangy'antian (Shenzhen) to their final destinatidransportation of components and finis
products to and from the point of shipment is luck: To date, we have not been materially affebiedny transportation problems. Howe
transportation difficulties affecting air cargosiripping, such as an extended closure of portsntla&trially disrupts the flow of our customers’
products into the United States, could materiafigl adversely affect our sales and margins if, essalt, our customers delay or cancel or
or seek concessions to offset expediting chargasititurred pending resolution of the problems capthe port closures.

Government Regulation

We are subject to comprehensive and changing foréégleral, state and local environmental requirgsjancluding those governi
discharges to the air and water, the handling asplodal of solid and hazardous waste and the rextiediof contamination associated v
releases of hazardous substances. We believewthadre in compliance with current environmentaluisgments. Nevertheless, we
hazardous substances in our operations and, bs mase with manufacturers in general, if a reled$mzardous substances occurs on or
our properties we may be held liable and may baired to pay the cost of remediation. The amoti@ingy resulting liability could be materi
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Foreign Operations

A significant amount of our products are manufaeduat our factory located in China. While China baen granted permanent n
favored nation trade status in the United Statesutfh its entry into the World Trade Organizatioantroversies between the United States
China may arise that threaten the status quo iimngltrade between the United States and Chinasdleentroversies could materially
adversely affect our business by, among other ghiegusing our products in the United States tmimecmore expensive, resulting i
reduction in the demand for our products by custanrethe United States.

Sovereignty over Hong Kong reverted to China oy 1yl1997. The 1984 SinBritish Joint Declaration, the 1990 Basic Law ofrid
Kong, the 1992 United Statétong Kong Policy Act and other agreements providmes indication of the business climate we believi¢
continue to exist in Hong Kong. Hong Kong remainSpecial Administrative Region (“SARYf China, with certain autonomies from
Chinese government. Hong Kong is a full membethef World Trade Organization. It has a separattoros territory from China, wi
separate tariff rates and export control procedutlebas a separate intellectual property redistnasystem. The Hong Kong Dollar is le
tender in the SAR, freely convertible and not sabj foreign currency exchange controls by Chifthe SAR government has s
responsibility for tax policies, though the Chinagavernment must approve the SARbudgets. Notwithstanding the provisions of t
international agreements, we cannot be assureldeo€dntinued stability of political, legal, econandr other conditions in Hong Kong.
treaty exists between Hong Kong and the UnitedeStatroviding for the reciprocal enforcement of fgnejudgments. Accordingly, Hol
Kong courts might not enforce judgments predicatedhe federal securities laws of the United Statdgether arising from actions brough
the United States or, if permitted, in Hong Kong.

Organizational Structure
We have two wholly-owned Hong Kosgbsidiary, Bonso Electronics Limited (“BEL&nhd Bonso Advanced Technology Limi
(“BATL”). BEL was organized under the laws of Hong Kong andesponsible for the design, development, manufacind sale of o

products. BATL was organized under the laws of ¢l&long and has been used to acquire and hold rgnaperty investments in China.

BEL has one active Hong Kong suiasid Bonso Investment Limited (“BIL")BIL was organized under the laws of Hong Kong
has been used to acquire and hold our propertygiments in Hong Kong and China.

BEL also has one active PRC suésidBonso Electronics (Shenzhen) Company Limitedich is organized under the laws of
PRC and is used to manufacture all of our products.

BATL has one active PRC subsidi@gnso Advanced Technology Limited, which is orgadi under the laws of the PRC an
used to acquire and hold our new manufacturindifia¢hat is begin constructed in XinXing, China.
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We also have another whallyned British Virgin Islands subsidiary, Modus HEptise International Inc., which owns 100%
Korona as of March 31, 2009. Korona was engageaharketing, distributing and retailing consumerhbabm and kitchen scale prodt
throughout Europe. Effective March 31, 2009, wél sertain assets of Korona to Beurer GmbH, andaveein the process of liquidati
Korona. Gram Precision is primarily engaged indisgribution and marketing of pocket and industsizales in the United States, Canada
Europe. Effective November 1, 2008, we sold o5 the equity in Gram Precision to Mohan Thad#re,founder of Gram Precision.

In April 2007, we set up a whollysoed subsidiary, Bonso USA. We are in the prooésissolving Bonso USA.
Property, Plant and Equipment
British Virgin Islands

Our corporate administrative officere located at Cragmuir Chambers, Road TownplEgrBritish Virgin Islands and corpor:
administrative matters are conducted through agistered agent, HWR Services Limited.

Hong Kong

We lease approximately 2,045 sqtiee of office space located at Unit 191816, 19/F, Delta House, 3 On Yiu Street, Shek |
Shatin, Hong Kong as our principal executive offidéhe monthly lease payment is $3,933, and theeleapires on January 28, 2011.

We own a residential property inngoKong, which is located at Savanna Garden, Hdse27, Tai Po, New Territories, Ha
Kong. House No. 27 consists of approximately 2, dqbare feet plus a 177 square foot terrace an808 2quare foot garden area. The u
House No. 27 is provided as quarters to Mr. AnthS8oythe Chairman and Chief Executive Officer & @ompany.

China

Our existing factory in China is located at Shemeimethe DaYang Synthetical Development Distritbse to the border between He
Kong and China. This factory consists of five agtbuildings, which contain approximately 333,08fuare feet, four workersiformitories
containing approximately 181,000 square feet, deamand recreation center of approximately 25dsfd@re feet, an office building, consis
of approximately 25,500 square feet, and two sta#frters for our supervisory employees, consistingpproximately 35,000 square feet, f
total of approximately 600,000 square feet. Altlod facilities noted above are wholly-owned, exdbpee factory buildings and two workers’
dormitories with approximately 200,000 square feet.
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We also own one residential property in Shenzhdrichvis located at Lakeview Mansion, ZC, Hujinju Building No. 63, Xine
Road, Boacheng Baoan Shenzhen, China. It consfsepproximately 1,591 square feet and is utiliznd directors when they requ
accommodations in China.

We also own two office units in Beijing, namely tmil2 and 13 on the 3rd floor, Block A of Sunshiiaeza in Beijing, China. Ur
12 consists of 1,102 square feet and Unit 13 ctmsi 1,860 square feet. One Unit is rented toffiliaded third parties for an aggreg
monthly rental of RMB 14,150, or approximately $220

In November, 2006, Bonso entered into a land g purchase agreement with XinchengTéieh Industrial Estate to acquire a p
of land of approximately 146,673 square metersfdture expansion of the Compasydperations in XinXing. Pursuant to the land pass
agreement, the total consideration was approxiyma$d, 472,000 (RMB 11,145,500). In July 2007, thempany paid a deposit
approximately $610,000 (RMB 4,617,900). During thear ended March 31, 2008, the Group prepaid $250(&MB 1,050,000) for tt
acquisition of the right to use another piece ofllan XinXing, the total consideration for which$§01,083 (RMB 3,500,000).
Adequacy of Facilities

We believe the manufacturing complex will be adégdiar our reasonably foreseeable needs.
Item 4A. Unresolved Staff Comments

Not Applicable.
Iltem 5. Operating and Financial Review and Prospss

The following discussion and analysis shdagdead in conjunction with Item 3. — “Key Infortizen — Selected Financial Datahc
the Consolidated Financial Statements and Not€otwsolidated Financial Statements included elsesvimethis Annual Report.

Overview

During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2009, then@any experienced decreased revenues. Our salegedr due to the Compary
decision to reduce orders for telecommunicatiordpets with low profit margin, and loss making besis units in Germany and Canada.

Effective March 31, 2009, we sold certain asset Korona to Beurer GmbH, and we are in the mscef liquidatin
Korona. Effective November 1, 2008, we sold ou5df the equity in Gram Precision to Mohan Thad#ré, founder of Gram Precision.
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We derive our revenues principally frone thale of sensdrased and wireless products manufactured in Civhih represel
75% and 24%, respectively, of total sales for tiseal year ended March 31, 2009. As mentionedtém|3. — “Key Information -Risk
Factors,”we are dependent upon a limited number of majotoousrs for a significant portion of our revenu€ur revenues and busin
operation are subject to fluctuation if there idoas of orders from any of our largest customérsrther, the pricing of our scales
telecommunication products are becoming increagimgimpetitive, especially to our customers in theitéd States and Germany, v
contributed approximately 79% of our revenue duthngfiscal year ended March 31, 2009.

During the fiscal year ended MaBdh 2007, net sales for continuing operations vegngroximately $48,272,000, and net loss
approximately $1,371,000. During the fiscal yeadesh March 31, 2008, net sales for continuing ojratwere approximately $45,496,C
and net loss was approximately $8,550,000. During fiscal year ended March 31, 2009, net salesc@mtinuing operations we
approximately $40,378,000, and net loss was apprately $7,584,000.

Costs are increasing in China, aadlabor costs represented approximately 14.4%uoftotal production costs in the fiscal y
ended March 31, 2009, compared to 11.7% in thalfigear ended March 31, 2008. There was no chianpe minimum wage set by the P
government during the fiscal year ended March 8D92 as compared to fiscal year ended March 318.20e believe that increased la
costs in China will have a significant effect orr ¢otal production costs and results of operatiang that we will not be able to continue
increase our production at our manufacturing fgcivithout substantially increasing our npmduction salaries and related costs. Ther
be no assurance that labor costs will not furthergase or that any additional increase in labstsowill not have a material adverse effect
our results of operations.

We have not experienced signifiagifficulties in obtaining raw materials for ourqutucts, and management does not anticipat
such difficulties in the foreseeable future. Psiéer raw materials decreased during the fiscat geded March 31, 2009 due to decreases
prices. However, the prices for raw materialséased significantly during the fiscal year endeddi81, 2008 as a result of the increase i
prices. There can be no assurance that raw matesés will not further increase or that any addisil increase in raw material costs will
have a material adverse effect upon our resulépefations.

Operating Results

The following table sets forth selected income deta percentage of net sales for the periodsatetic
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Fiscal Year Ended March 31

Statement of Operations Date 2007 2008 2009
% % %
Net sales 100.0 100.0 100.0
Cost of sale: (83.5) (95.9) (86.0)
Gross margit 16.5 4.1 14.0
Selling expense (1.8) (1.6) (1.6)
Salaries and related co: (6.2) (7.8) (9.4)
Research and development exper (2.0) (1.9 (2.0)
Administration and general expen: (3.4) (7.4) (11.4)
Amortization of brand nam (0.4) (0.4) -
Impairment of goodwil - (1.9 -
Impairment of brand narr - (3.5) -
Impairment of share investme - (0.4) -
Income (loss) from operatiol 2.7 (20.8) (10.4)
Gain from disposal of subsidia - - 0.9
Interest incomt 0.6 0.4 0.3
Interest expense (0.3) (1.0) (0.5)
Foreign exchange lo: (0.4 (0.9 (0.7)
Gain on disposal of proper - 6.9 04
Other income (expense (0.5) 1.3 1.7
Waived of loan from discontinu - i (14.4)
operations '
Income before income tax 2.1 (14.2) (22.7)
Income tax expenst (1.9 0.7 (0.5)
Loss from continuing operatiol 0.2 (13.4) (23.2)
(Loss). income  from  discontinu (3.0 (5.4) 44
operations
Net loss (2.8) (18.8) (18.8)

Fiscal year ended March 31, 2009 compared to fiscgéar ended March 31, 2008

Net Sales Our sales decreased approximately $5,118,000L@% from approximately $45,496,000 for the yesdesl March 3:
2008, to approximately $40,378,000 for the yearegnBlarch 31, 2009. The decrease in sales was mpiynize result of decrease sales or:
for telecommunication products. Sales of our scaled others business increased 14.9% from appatelyn$26,898,000 for the year en
March 31, 2008 to approximately $30,903,000 forythar ended March 31, 2009, and sales for telecanwations products decreased 49
from approxmately $18,598,000 for the year endeakdl 31, 2008 to approximately $9,475,000 for tearyended March 31, 2009.
increase in sales for scale and others businesstiveasesult of increase customer demands for gualducts. The decrease in sales
telecommunications products was caused by the Coyfgeecision to give up orders of telecommuniaaiproducts with low profit margins.

Gross Margin Gross margin as a percentage of revenue inatdasapproximately 14.0% during the year ended M&t, 2009, ¢
compared to approximately 4.1% during the year éridarch 31, 2008. The higher gross margin wagsékalt of the Compang’decision t
reduce products with low profit margins from itdemmmunication products and reduced costs of raw materials both as dtresuhe
Company’s efforts to purchase materials more cfisttively and the decline in costs resulting frémver petroleum prices Furthermore
prices of raw materials decreased due to the deeii@aoil prices and the financial crisis in 20@#iich benefited the Company in the fiscal \
ended March 31, 2009. As a result of these factansgross profit margin increased by 9.9% whengared to the prior fiscal year.
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Selling ExpensesSelling expenses decreased by approximatelyo$@ifrom approximately $720,000 for the year enifiedch 31
2008 to approximately $649,000 for the year endeddi 31, 2009. Local freight costs decreased dutie year due to decreased sales.
result, selling expenses decreased by 9.8% whepam@u to the prior fiscal year.

Salaries And Related CostsSalaries and related costs increased by appadeiyn$236,000, or 6.7%, from approximately $3,80(
for the year ended March 31, 2008 to approximadly’ 77,000 for the year ended March 31, 2009. Ating to the New Labor Law in t
PRC that was effective January 1, 2009, the Compeasy required to provide one month of salary faclkeyear of service as a sever:
payment to each worker that was furloughed. A& stie company recognized a provision of $785,43Be fiscal year ended March 31, 2
for severance payments for staff in PRC.

Research And DevelopmenResearch and development expenses decreaseamkiapely $91,000, or 10.3%, from approxima
$883,000 for the year ended March 31, 2008 to aqmeately $792,000 for the year ended March 31, 20De decrease in research
development was primarily the result of a reductiorthe number of engineers employed. ResearchDewklopment as a percentage
revenue increased to 2.0% during the year endedhvilt, 2009, as compared to 1.9% during the yededMarch 31, 2008, because of lo
sales in the year ended March 31, 2009.

Administration And General Expenségdministration and general expenses increaseabpyoximately $1,251,000, or 37.3%, fr
approximately $3,351,000 for the year ended Marth2®08 to approximately $4,602,000 for the yeateenMarch 31, 2009.This increas
was primarily the result of recognizing an immeediatrite down of approximately $1,700,000 relatingthe disposition of the Company’
Canadian subsidiary.

When the Company disposed of its Canadian subgidizram Precision, on November 1, 2008, Gram Petissued a promissc
note to the Company to repay $1,700,000 to the Gomm installments. Monthly payments of $10,000evi® be paid to the Company in
six months from December 2008 to May 2009, and higrnpayments of $20,000 were to be paid from Jub@92until the full amount
$1,700,000 was repaid. Since Gram Precision hadatipg losses during the years ended March 319 20@ 2008, the recoverability of
full amount of $1,700,000 was doubtful. As a redshle Company recognized a bad debt provisiornlof (0,000 for the year 2009.

Amortization Of Brand NamesDuring the year ended March 31, 2008, we amatt200,000 relating to the brand names acq
upon the acquisition of Korona. Brand names ar®rimed using the straighine method over the related estimated useful tifelt
years. During the year ended March 31, 2009, noréation was recognized, since the brand namefwlysamortized during the year enc
March 31, 2008.

Impairment Of GoodwillBased on the assessment for the year ended Mar@088, the Group made a provision for impairmed
approximately $843,000 for Gram Precision due ®dbntinued losses from operations. The repouinijs operating results for fiscal 2C
were used as a basis of management’s discountédfioas analysis in determining the reporting usifair value. There was no impairm
loss recognized during the fiscal year ended M&d;h2009 although the Company did record a bad pievision of $1,700,000 in connect
with the disposition of Gram Precision as notedvabo
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Impairment Of Brand Nam&lanagement performed an impairment assessmene dfrind name of Korona due to continuing Ic
incurred by Korona and the diminishing price premithat Korona was able to realize on its brandediyets since the last quarter of fis
2008. Based on the assessment for the year endechM81, 2008, the Company recorded an impairmbkatge on the brand name
approximately $1,597,000. There was no impairnes¥ recognized during the fiscal year ended M&d;2009.

Impairment Of Share InvestmeBased on the assessment for the year ended Mar@088&, the Company made a provision fa
impairment of $200,000 for its investment in a pt& company, since the value of the investmentdebme uncertain during the fis
year. There was no impairment loss recognizechduhie fiscal year ended March 31, 20

Loss From Operations As a result of the factors described above, livsm operations decreased by 56.2% from a lo:
approximately $9,468,000 for the year ended Mad;H2B08 to a loss of approximately $4,149,000 leryear ended March 31, 2009.

Gain on Disposal of Subsidiarfffective November 1, 2008, the Company disposeitsaanadian subsidiary, Gram Precision, ¢
this reporting unit experienced operating lossetha fiscal years ended March 31, 2007 and 2008,fanthe seven month period en
October 31, 2008. The Company recognized a gaiappfoximately $363,000 from the dispositibacause the company was relieve
Gram'’s liabilities .

Interest Income Interest income decreased by $71,000, or 35f@8% approximately $198,000 for the year ended Ma&t, 2008 t
approximately $127,000 for the year ended March2BD9. The decreases were primarily the resuléwer deposits in higher yield accot
and a decrease in interest rates for interestrimparxcounts during the fiscal year.

Interest Expenses Interest expenses decreased approximately $239%0@3.3%, from approximately $448,000 for the yeade:
March 31, 2008 to approximately $209,000 for tharyended March 31, 2009. This decrease was piinthe result of a decrease in inte
rates during the year ended March 31, 2009 andcedsed use of the Company’s banking facilities.

Foreign Exchange LosseBoreign exchange loss decreased approximately @182or 35.3%, from approximately $431,000 for
year ended March 31, 2008 to approximately $279f60the year ended March 31, 2009. This decreaseprimarily the result of the redut
rate of appreciation of Chinese Renminbi againstUinited States Dollar during the fiscal year entiadch 31, 2009, as compared to
during the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008.
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Other Income.Other income decreased approximately $2,847,000,6d%, from approximately $3,717,000 for the yeade:
March 31, 2008, to approximately $869,000 for tharyended March 31, 2009. The difference was mainé to the fact that in the year en
March 31, 2008, there was a gain on the sale afffice suite in Hong Kong of approximately $3,12200 In the year ended March 31, 2(
the sale of a warehouse in Hong Kong resultedgaia of $136,016.

Income Tax Expenselncome tax expense increased approximately $88%rom an income tax benefit of $341,000 during yea
ended March 31, 2008 to an income tax expense @8,820 during the year ended March 31, 2009, reptesy approximately 0.7% a
approximately negative 0.5% of net sales, respelgtiviFor the year ended March 31, 2009, the Coypante off deferred income tax as:
of $191,618 because of operation loss for the yBaring the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008, Gmenpany performed an assessmeni
made a reversal of provision of approximately $808,in relation to uncertain tax positions of pryears.

Net Loss. As a result of the factors described above Jost decreased from a loss of approximately $8(B®0for the year end
March 31, 2008 to a loss of approximately $7,58@ fa0 the year ended March 31, 2009, a decreaapmbximately $966,000, or 11.3%.

Foreign Currency Translation Adjustments$:oreign currency translation adjustments, neéwfincreased from a gain of $567,00C
the year ended March 31, 2008 to a gain of appratdim $811,000 for the year ended March 31, 20@9nerease of approximately $244,C
or 43.0%. The increased foreign currency trarstadidjustment, net of tax, was primarily the resfilappreciation of the Chinese Renm
against the United States Dollar.

Comprehensive Loss As a result of the factors described above, ceimmsive loss decreased from a loss of approxin
$7,982,000 for the year ended March 31, 2008, tosa of approximately $6,773,000 for the year enadch 31, 2009, a decrease
approximately $1,209,000, or 15.2%.

Fiscal year ended March 31, 2008 compared to fiscgear ended March 31, 2007

Net SalesOur sales decreased approximately $2,776,008,886, from approximately $48,272,000 for the yeaded March 3
2007 to approximately $45,496,000 for the year dridarch 31, 2008. The decrease in sales was phnihe result of decreased sales or
for scales products. Sales of our scales and bil@ness decreased 16.0% from approximately $32)0@ for the year ended March 31, 2
to approximately $26,897,000 for the year ended diWlaBl, 2008, and sales of telecommunications ptsdiumreased 14.5% frc
approximately $16,248,000 for the year ended M&th2007 to approximately $18,598,000 for the ywated March 31, 2008. The decre
in sales for scale products was the result of dirdedn orders from some of our customers. Thedase in sales for telecommunicati
products was caused by increased orders from ajorritelecommunications customers.
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Gross Margin Gross margin as a percentage of revenue dedinagproximately 4.1% during the year ended M&th2008, ¢
compared to approximately 16.5% during the yearednilarch 31, 2007. The Company was confronted withery difficult operatin
environment in this fiscal year. Rising prices $ome key raw materials such as plastic resinstaidless steel drove up production cost
the Company. Rising labor costs also increasedpoattuction costs. Furthermore, the Company paidenfor raw materials because of
appreciation of Chinese Renminbi against the Uriitedes Dollar during the year. Also, we wrote%#f457,510 of obsolete inventories du
the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008. In addijtible Company was not able to reflect fully theréase in material and labor costs ir
selling prices. As a result of these factors,graiss profit margin decreased by 10.9% when conap@aréhe prior fiscal year.

Selling Expenses Selling expenses decreased by approximately,$084rom approximately $874,000 for the year enliedch 31
2007 to approximately $720,000 for the year endeddi 31, 2008. Local freight costs decreased dufie year due to decreased sales.
result, selling expenses decreased by 17.6% whapaed to the prior fiscal year.

Salaries And Related CostsSalaries and related costs increased by appateimn $524,000, or 17.4%, from approxima
$3,017,000 for the year ended March 31, 2007 tocqpmately $3,541,000 for the year ended March2R08. This increase was primarily
result of increased salaries to employees and ejapien of Chinese Renminbi against the Unitedext&ollar.

Research And DevelopmenResearch and development expenses decreasaxkiapgely $100,000, or 10.2%, from approxima
$983,000 for the year ended March 31, 2007 to aq@meately $883,000 for the year ended March 31, 20D8e decrease in research
development was primarily the result of a reductiorthe number of engineers employed. ResearchDewklopment as a percentage
revenue decreased to 1.9% during the year endech\8dr, 2008, as compared to 2.0% during the yeded®March 31, 2007.

Administration And General Expenseé&dministration and general expenses increasegbpyoximately $1,696,000, or 102.4%, fi
approximately $1,655,000 for the year ended Marth2®07 to approximately $3,351,000 for the yeateenMarch 31, 2008. This incre
was primarily the result of increased expensesrafegsional fees for tax advisory services, auelisf and operating expenses for Bi
USA. An increase in bank charges of approxima$dlf0,000 was due to facilitating insurance covetageugh factoring for open account:
customers. Furthermore, the Company recognizedasion of $869,995 for bad debts during the fisesar ended March 31, 2008.
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Amortization Of Brand NamesDuring the years ended March 31, 2007 and 20@8amortized $200,000 relating to the brand ni
acquired upon the acquisition of Korona. Brand esmre amortized using the straigihe method over the related estimated usefuldffat
years.

Impairment Of GoodwillBased on the assessment for the year ended Mar@088, the Group made a provision for impairmd
approximately $843,000 for one of the subsidiar@sm Precision, due to its worsening businessitiondwhich in turn was primarily caus
by the onset of the subprime mortgage crisis anckasing purchase costs as a result of the upsuigkprices since the second half of fis
2008. The reporting unit’'s operating results fiscél 2008 was used as a basis of managemdisitounted cash flow analysis in determi
the reporting unit’s fair value. There was no inpeent loss recognized during the fiscal year endadch 31, 2007.

Impairment Of Brand Namélanagement performed an impairment assessmenedirdnd name of one of its subsidiaries, Kol
due to continuing losses incurred by Korona andithenishing price premium that Korona was abledalize on its branded products since
last quarter of fiscal 2008. Based on the assassfoethe year ended March 31, 2008, the GrouprdEd an impairment charge on the b
name of approximately $1,597,000. There was naimgent loss recognized during the fiscal year dridarch 31, 2007.

Impairment Of Share Investmerfased on the assessment for the year ended MarcB0B8, the Group made a provision
impairment of $200,000 for its investment in a pt&v¥ company, since the value of the investmentdemme uncertain during the fis
year. There was no impairment loss recognizechdutie fiscal year ended March 31, 20

Loss From Operations As a result of the factors described above, foem operations increased by 864.2% from a ga
approximately $1,239,000 for the year ended Maig2B07 to a loss of approximately $9,468,000 fieryear ended March 31, 2008.

Interest Income Interest income decreased by $111,000, or 358% approximately $309,000 for the year endedde81, 200
to approximately $198,000 for the year ended M&th2008. The decrease was primarily the resuiéwer deposits in higher yield accot
and a decrease in interest rates.

Interest Expenses Interest expenses increased approximately $325@0®65.2%, from approximately $123,000 for theryerde:
March 31, 2007 to approximately $448,000 for tharyended March 31, 2008. This increase was priyndré result of an increase in b
borrowings during the year ended March 31, 2008.

Foreign Exchange LossEereign exchange losses increased approximatel8,$23, or 123.6%, from approximately $193,00(

the year ended March 31, 2007 to approximately Bl for the year ended March 31, 2008. This mseewas primarily the result of -
appreciation of Chinese Renminbi against the Uriiedes Dollar during the year ended March 31, 2008
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Other Income (Expenses)Other income increased approximately $3,952,000,4318.0%, from loss of approximately $236,00C
the year ended March 31, 2007, to approximately 8000 for the year ended March 31, 2008. Theease was primarily the result of
gain on the sale of an office suite in Hong Kongpproximately $3,124,000 and disposal of fixectss Germany.

Income Tax Expenselncome tax expense decreased approximately $0@6 from approximately $911,000 during the yesdes
March 31, 2007 to an income tax benefit of $340,@0ing the year ended March 31, 2008, represergipgroximately 1.9% ai
approximately negative 0.7% of net sales, respelgtivFor the year ended March 31, 2008, the Companformed an assessment and mz
reversal of provision of approximately $306,0006fation to uncertain tax positions of prior years.

Net loss. As a result of the factors described above, ot Increased from a loss of approximately $1,30Lfor the year end:
March 31, 2007 to a loss of approximately $8,550,@0 the year ended March 31, 2008, an increasgpfoximately $7,179,000, or 523.6%.

Foreign currency translation adjustmentd-oreign currency translation adjustments, netgfincreased from a gain of $227,00C
the year ended March 31, 2007 to a gain of appratéin $567,000 for the year ended March 31, 2008nerease of approximately $340,C
or 149.8%. The increased foreign currency traiwsiadjustment, net of tax, was primarily the réstfilappreciation of Chinese Renminbi,
Canadian Dollars, and the Euro against the UnitateS Dollar.

Comprehensive lossAs a result of the factors described above, celmmsive loss increased from a loss of approxisné&te 144,00
for the year ended March 31, 2007 to a loss of @pprately $7,983,000 for the year ended March 308 a increase of approximat
$6,839,000, or 597.8%.

Impact of Inflation

We believe that inflation did natve a material impact on our business during theafiyear ended March 31, 2009 and we e:
that inflation will not have a material impact upour business during the fiscal year ended March2810. We have generally been ab
modify and improve our product designs so that add either increase the prices of our product®wer the production cost in order to ki
pace with inflation. During the fiscal years endédrch 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008, the costs of compioparts increased due to the increa
the price of oil used in the production of compdsesuch as plastic resin, steel and other raw magerOil prices have been volatile in rec
years. If oil prices increase, it will likely rdsin an increase in the cost of components tcagsyell as an increase in our operating expe
which will have a material adverse effect upon business and results of operations. Further,rtbxease in labor costs and operating co:
the PRC had a material impact on our profitability.
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Taxation

The companies comprising the Group are subjea@xm®h an entity basis on income arising in or datifrom Hong Kong, the PR
Germany, the United States and Canada. The cuatnbf taxation of the subsidiary operating imngfdong is 16.5%. Korona is registe
as a partnership in Germany which is subject ttatutory tax rate of 14.17%. The Group is not sabjo income taxes in the British Viri
Islands. The statutory tax rates in the UnitedeStand Canada are 15% and 36%, respectively.

Pursuant to the relevant income tax laws in the PB@hso Electronics (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd, a whollyned subsidiary of tt
Company, was fully exempt from PRC state incomeftaiXwo years starting from its first profitaking year, followed by a 50% reduct
over the ensuing three years. The first pnofégking year of Bonso Electronics (Shenzhen) Cal, Was deemed to be the financial year e
December 31, 1998, and the last year it was ettttethis benefit was December 31, 2002. In 20} )9 Electronics (Shenzhen) Co.,
was accredited as an “Advanced Corporati@amd a further 50% tax reduction was granted fotlarahree years. The last year it was en
to this benefit was December 31, 2005. Under thplémentation Rules of the Foreign Enterprise Incofa@ Law, Bonso Electroni
(Shenzhen) Co. Ltd. was entitled to a further tabe meduction to 10% for the calendar year endecebber 31, 2006, as its export s
exceeded 70% of its revenue.

Most of our subsidiariegrofits accrue in Hong Kong and the PRC, whereaiiygicable tax rates are 16.5% and 20%, respegtiin
2009. The tax rates for our subsidiary in PRC w&l22% in 2010, 24% in 2011 and 25% in 2012 aydie There is no tax payable in Hi
Kong on offshore profit or on dividends paid to BorElectronics Limited by its subsidiaries or tobysBonso Electronics Limited. Therefc
our overall effective tax rate may be lower thaatthf most United States corporations; however #dvantage could be materially
adversely affected by changes in the tax lawseBtitish Virgin Islands, Hong Kong or China.

On March 16, 2008, the National People’s Congressaved the Corporate Income Tax Law of the PesgRepublic of China (tt
“new CIT Law”). The new CIT Law increases the corporate incomedtxfor foreign invested enterprises to 25%, \eifliect from January
2009. Under the new income tax law, apart fromséhqualified as higkech enterprises, most domestic enterprises areigforinveste
enterprises would be subject to a single PRC ernserpicome tax rate and gradually transfer tonthe tax rate of 25% within five years.

Efforts by the Chinese government to increase ¢éaemues could result in decisions or interpretatiohthe tax laws by the Chine

tax authorities that are unfavorable to us and wiricrease our future tax liabilities, or deny eMpected refunds. Changes in Chinese tax
or their interpretation or application may subjestto additional Chinese taxation in the future.
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No reciprocal tax treaty regarding withholding tsyexists between the United States and the Britis§iin Islands. Under curre
British Virgin Islands law, dividends, interest myalties paid by us to individuals are not subjeciax as long as the recipient is not a res
of the British Virgin Islands. If we were to payd&idend, we would not be liable to withhold aaxt but shareholders would receive g
dividends, irrespective of their residential orioaal status.

During the fiscal years ended March 31, 2007, 2888 2009, certain of our subsidiaries were andicoeatto be subject to enquir
from the local tax authorities. Upon the adopt@nFIN 48, the Company recorded a provision of $2,000 in relation to uncertain 1
positions as of April 1, 2007. There can be no msste that the enquiries will not result in the asiion of additional income tax expense
the Group, which could have a material adversecetfpon the Group and its results of operations.

Contractual arrangements we have entered into amengnd our subsidiaries in different locations rbaysubject to scrutiny |
respective tax authorities, and a finding againest@ompany and its subsidiaries may result in sdit tax liabilities that could substantie
reduce our consolidated net income. We could faeterial and adverse tax consequences if respeiweauthorities determine that
contractual arrangements among our subsidiariesBam$o do not represent an arm’s length price afjdsaBonso’s or its subsidiaries’
income. Our consolidated net income may be méltedad adversely affected if our affiliated erg#i tax liabilities increase.

Dividends, if any, paid to any United States resider citizen shareholder are treated as dividenwdme for United States fede
income tax purposes. Such dividends are not &iditr the 70% dividendseceived deduction allowed to United States coitpama or
dividends from a domestic corporation under SecfidB of the United States Internal Revenue Codé9&6, as amended (thénterna
Revenue Code”). Various Internal Revenue Codeigianvs impose special taxes in certain circumstarmoenonbnited States corporatic
and their shareholders. You are urged to consuit tax advisor with regard to such possibilities gour own tax situation.

In addition to United States federal income taxgt&hareholders may be subject to state and lagastupon their receipt of dividen
Foreign Currency Exchange Rates

We sell most of our products to international costes. Our principal export markets are North Areerimainly the United State
Europe (mainly Germany) and Asia. Other markeg¢sather European countries (such as the Unitedd¢ing, Australia and Africa. Sales
international customers are made directly by usuiocustomers. We sell all of our products in gdiStates Dollars and pay for our mat
components principally in United States Dollars &hahg Kong Dollars. A very small portion of theneponents used are paid for in Japa
Yen. Most factory expenses incurred are paid im&e Renminbi. Because the Hong Kong Dollar ggpd to the United States Dollar, in
past our only material foreign exchange risk presip arose from potential fluctuations in the Clsm&enminbi and the devaluation in Un
States Dollars; management believes that it mgyolssible that there will be some fluctuation in toening year.
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Gram Precision principally pays for its productsUnited States Dollars and Canadian dollars anid #sl products in Canadi
dollars and United States Dollars. Korona prinyaplays for its products in United States Dollarsd éfuros and sells its products
Euros. During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008 experienced a foreign currency loss of $278,94/e do not currently engage
hedging transactions; however, we may undertakgihgdctivities in the future.

A summary of our debts from our banking facilitietized as at March 31, 2009 which was subjecteébteign currency risk is
follows:

March 31
200¢
$

Hong Kong dollars 1,747,30.

1,747,30.

All of the balances above are due within one year.

Fluctuations in the value of thengdong Dollar have not been significant since ®etal7, 1983, when the Hong Kong governr
tied the value of the Hong Kong Dollar to that lo¢ tUnited States Dollar. However, there can bassurance that the value of the Hong k
Dollar will continue to be tied to that of the Uit States Dollar. China adopted a floating cuyesystem on January 1, 1994, unifying
market and official rates of foreign exchange. m@h&pproved current account convertibility of tHeén@se Renminbi on July 1, 1996, follov
by formal acceptance of the International Monetemnd’s Articles of Agreement on December 1, 1996. Thesggilations eliminated t
requirement for prior government approval to bugefgn exchange for ordinary trade transactionsighoapproval is still required to repatri
equity or debt, including interest thereon. Fro894 until July 2005, the Chinese Renminbi had reethistable against the U.S. Dolla
approximately 8.28 to 1.00 U.S. Dollar. On July 2@05, the Chinese currency regime was alterdidkdhe RMB to a “basket of currencies,”
which includes the United States Dollar, Euro, da&ge Yen and Korean Won. Under the rules, the Révislowed to move 0.3% on a de¢
basis against the United States Dollar. The Pé&ofdank of China, on May 21 2007, widened the RM&ding band from 0.3% da
movement against the United States Dollar to 0.3%.of September 30, 2009, the RMB was valued & @er United States Dollar. Th
can be no assurance that these currencies willinesteble or will fluctuate to our benefit.
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To manage our exposure to foreign currency andskation risks, we may purchase currency exchangeaia contracts, curren
options, or other derivative instruments, providedh instruments may be obtained at suitable prigés do not currently engage in hedc
transactions; however we may undertake hedgingities in the future. If we are unsuccessful imigieg against currency fluctuations, it r
have a material adverse effect on us.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

We have financed our growth and cash needs to mtatearily from internally generated funds and batdbt. We do not use off-
balance sheet financing arrangements, such asitsgation of receivables or obtaining access tcesshrough special purpose entities
sources of liquidity. Our primary uses of cash haeen to fund expansions and upgrades of our metowiiag facilities, to make strates
acquisitions and to fund increases in inventory acxbunts receivable resulting from increased sales

Operating activities used $1,816,867et cash for the fiscal year ended March 3D92@ompared to $811,033 of net cash durin
fiscal year ended March 31, 2008. This increasthénamount of cash used by operating activities pvamarily attributable to our inability
recover material, labor costs and overhead durivg ytear, as our sales dropped due to the Compadgtision to reduce orders
telecommunication products with low profit margamd loss making business units in Germany and Ganad

As of March 31, 2009, we had $8,043,535 in cashcasth equivalents, as compared to $9,653,991 m aad cash equivalents a:
March 31, 2008. Working capital at March 31, 2088s $9,271,089, as compared to $12,899,791 athvEkrc2008. We believe there are
material restrictions (including foreign exchangatrols) on the ability of our subsidiaries to ser funds to us in the form of cash dividel
loans, advances or product/material purchases.aNevie our working capital is sufficient for ourgsent requirements.

As of March 31, 2009, we had net $1,084,756 indregteivables, as compared to $2,653,886 as oftivVBikc2008. The decrease
$1,569,130 was primarily attributable to reducdésn the fiscal year ended March 31, 2009.

As of March 31, 2009, we had $6,284,293 in invaetras compared to $8,446,903 as of March 31,.200@ decrease of $2,162,!
was primarily attributable to the disposal of owan@dian subsidiary and the sale of all inventooiesur German subsidiary to a third p:
company.

As of March 31, 2009, we had a total of $4,465,2880tes payable and accounts payable, as compaf&3229,603 as of March .

2008. The decrease of $4,764,314 was primarilybatable to the disposal of our Canadian subsidarg the closing down of our Gern
subsidiary.
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As of March 31, 2009 we had in place general bapkatilities with three financial institutions witimounts available aggregat
$18,617,948. Such facilities include the abilitydbtain overdrafts, letters of credit, short-terotes payable, short-term loans and |oewgr
loans. As of March 31, 2009, we had utilized $Z,381 from these general banking facilities. leséon this indebtedness fluctuates with
prime rate and the Hong Kong Interbank Offer Ratset by the Hong Kong Bankers Association. Thelmedit facilities are collateraliz
by certain of our bank guarantees. Our bank credilities are due for renewal annually. We ampiéte that the banking facilities will
renewed on substantially the same terms and digatiton in the next year will remain at a similavel as that in the current year. During
fiscal years ended March 31, 2009 and 2008, we aandal of $199,493 and $328,756, respectivelyntarest on indebtedness for contint
operations.

Our current ratio increased from 1.71 as of Marth2008 to 1.73 as of March 31, 2009. Our quiclordecreased from 1.25 as
March 31, 2008 to 1.23 as of March 31, 2009.

We believe that our cash flows from opierat, our current cash balance and funds availatder our working capital and credit
facilities will be sufficient to meet our workingpital needs and planned capital expenditurestfi@iaat the next 12 to 24 months. However, a
decrease in the demand for our products may afi@cinternally generated funds, and we would furtbek to our banking facilities to meet
our working capital demands.
Commitments

The following table sets forth information with pest to our commitments as of March 31, 2009:

Payments due by Perioc®)

Total Within 1 year Within 1 to 3years  Within 3to 5 More than 5
years years
Notes payabli $1,361,787@ $1,361,78 $0 $0 $0
Operating lease $518,48% $375,68% $142,80C $0 $0
Capital lease $182,172 $130,201 $51,971 $0 $0
Acquisition of lanc $350,75€3) $350,75¢ $0 $0 $0
Interest on capital leas $2,430 $2,430 $0 $0 $0
Income tax liabilities $2,602,02: $6,888 $2,595,13:4) $0 $0
Total $5,017,65: $2,227,74 $2,789,90¢ $0 $0
@ Does not include amounts that Company expects perek in connection with the construction of its neanufacturing facilit

XinXing, China, which construction is expected sndompleted in 201:
@3] Represents amounts due within one year under aifgfacilities agreement

3 During the year ended March 31, 2008, the Compaapagid $150,325 for the acquisition of the rightute another piece of lanc
XinXing, China at a total consideration of $501,083he balance is due within one ye

4) Effective April 1, 2007, the Company adopted FIN 48 a result of the adoption of FIN 48, the Compaecognized a $1,169,7
increase in the liability for unrecognized tax bfiseand penalties of $994,310, which were accalifbe as a reduction to the April
2007 balance of retained earnings. The Compargssed the tax position during fiscal year endedcM&d., 2009, and concluded t
the same tax liability were carried forwa

For a discussion of interest rates on our notes paple and short term loans, seeltem 11. Qualitative and Quantitative Disclosure
About Market Risk” below.
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Critical Accounting Policies

The methods, estimates and judgments we use igiagplur most critical accounting policies havegniicant impact on the resu
we report in our financial statements. The SEC defined the most critical accounting policies ks bnes that are most important to
portrayal of our financial condition and resultslaequire us to make our most difficult and subyecjudgments, often as a result of the nes
make estimates of matters that are inherently tamicerBased on this definition, our most critigadlicies include inventories, impairme
brand name, trade receivables and deferred incares t

Below, we discuss these policies further, as wetha estimates and judgments involved. We beliezethese other policies eithet
not generally require us to make estimates andnjgafgs that are as difficult or as subjective, @s iess likely that they would have a mate
impact on our reported results of operations fgiven period. For a discussion of all our sigrfic accounting policies, see footnote 1 tc
Consolidated Financial Statements included elsesvimethis Annual Report.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost orealizable value with cost determined on a firstfirst-out basis. Net realizable va
is the price at which inventories can be sold ie ttormal course of business after allowing for ¢bets of completion and disposal.
Company continuously reviews slaweving and obsolete inventory and assesses anytimye obsolescence based on inventory le
material composition and expected usage as ofititat

Revenue recognition

No revenue is recognized unless there is persuasidence of an arrangement, the price to the bigyered or determinable, delive
has occurred and collectibility of the sales prisereasonably assured. Revenue is recognized wtherand risk of loss transfers to
customer, which is generally when the product ipd to the customer from our facility. Shippicwsts billed to our customers are inclu
within revenue. Associated costs are classifiecbst of goods sold.

The Company provides to certain customers an adaititwo percent of certain products ordered in I a warranty, which a
recognized as cost of sales when these productshggped to customers from our facility. In aduliti certain products sold by the Comg
are subject to a limited product quality warranfthe Company accrues for estimated incurred bulamified quality issues based uj
historical activity and known quality issues if@s$ is probable and can be reasonably estimatied.stendard limited warranty period is on
three years. Quality returns, refunds, rebatesdiswbunts are recorded net of sales at the tinsalefto three years and estimated based o
history. All sales are based upon firm orders Viited terms and conditions, which generally canpetmodified. Historically, we have 1
experienced material differences between our etinamounts of quality returns, refunds, rebatesdiscounts and the actual results. |
contracts, there is no price protection or sinjlavilege in relation to the sale of goods.
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Due to similar contractual terms, the Compansévenue recognition policies do not differ amatsgsignificant product lines (i.
sensor based versus wireless products) and amoimyisanarketing venues used by the Company (igtiblitors and direct sales force),
do not vary in different parts of the world.

Long-Lived Assets Including Goodwill and Other Acqured Intangible Assets

Longlived assets held and used by the Group and irftengissets, excluding goodwill, are reviewed fopainment whenev:
events or changes in circumstances indicate tleatdlrying amount of such assets may not be reableer The Group evaluates recoverak
of assets to be held and used by comparing thgicgramount of an asset to future net undiscounésth flows to be generated by the asst
such assets are considered to be impaired, tharimgrat loss is measured by the amount by whictkcéteying amount of the assets exceed
fair value of the assets calculated using a distsalifuture cash flows analysis. For the year erMarth 31, 2007, the Group made a provi
of $5,414 for impairment of investment propertiege do the decline in market value. No provisiorswaade in fiscal 2008 or 2009. On
other hand, for the year ended March 31, 2008Gitoeip made a provision for impairment of $200,020009: $0) on its investment in a priv
company due to continuous losses and net lialgbisitions.

Goodwill is subject to an annual impairment revielhe evaluation of goodwill for impairment involvegwo steps: (1) tl
identification of potential impairment by comparitiie fair value of a reporting unit with its camgi amount, including goodwill and (2)
measurement of the amount of goodwill loss by caimnpgathe implied fair value of the reporting una@dwill with the carrying amount of tt
goodwill and recognizing a loss by the excess efl#tter over the former. The Company measures/édile based upon a discounted fu
cash flow analysis. No provision was made by theu@ on impairment of goodwill for the year endedrish 31, 2009. During the fiscal y
ended March 31, 2008 the Company made a full prawiof the goodwill because of Gram Precissofalilure to meet business objectives
achieve profitability during the fiscal year endddrch 31, 2008 (2008: $842,821; 2007: $0).

Brand Name
Brand name acquired as part of the purchase ofeéss is capitalized based on the estimated &irevas at the date of acquisi

and amortized using the straighte method over the related estimated usefuldifd5 years. Where an indication of impairmentsesi th
carrying amount of the brand name is assessed atidnmdown to its recoverable amount.
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Expected useful lives are reviewed at each balaheet date and, where these differ significantiynfiprevious estimates, amortiza
periods are changed accordingly. Where an indinatf impairment exists, such as the downturn @hemic inflow from the brand nan
changes in business plan and so on, the carryinguat® of brand name is assessed and written dowvtheio recoverable amounts. ~
measurement of the fair value of brand name isestitip managememst’assumptions regarding future estimated cash fldigsount rate
etc. Changes in these assumptions could significaffect the recording of an impairment chargéated to this asset. Based on
assessment for the year ended March 31, 2008,\asjmo of $1,597,392 was made by the Group for iimpent of brand name becaust
Korona'’s failure to meet business objectives ardeae profitability during the fiscal year ended ida 31, 2008 (2007: $0, 2009: $0).

Trade Receivables

Provision is made against trade receivables toetttent that collection is considered to be doubtfthis provision is primaril
determined from our monthly aging analysis. lbalsquires judgment regarding the collectibilityagfrtain receivables as certain receive
may be identified as collectible that are subsetipemcollectible and which could result in a suipsent writeeff of the related receivable
the statement of operations. Any change in theectibility of accounts receivable that were noéyously provided for could significan
change the calculation of such provision and tiselte of our operations.

Income Taxes, Deferred Income Taxes

On April 1, 2007, the Company adopted FIN BB\ 48 clarifies the accounting for uncertaintyinmtome taxes recognized
financial statements in accordance with FASB StatgnNo. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxe$IN 48 prescribes a recognition threst
and measurement attributes for the financial star¢mecognition and measurement of a tax positideert or expected to be taken in a
return. FIN 48 also provides guidance on derecagnitclassification, interest and penalties, actiognin interim periods, disclosure
transition. Only tax positions that meet the makel/-than-not recognition threshold at the effeetdatemay be recognized or continue tc
recognized upon adoption of FIN 48. The Compangtanting policy is to treat interest and penalies component of income taxes.

Amounts in the consolidated finahctatements related to income taxes are calculaseng the principles of SFAS No. 1
“Accounting for Income Taxes."SFAS No. 109 requires recognition of deferred tasets and liabilities for the expected future
consequences of events that have been includde ififancial statements or tax returns. Under iiieshod, deferred tax assets and liabil
are determined based on the temporary differenetgelen the financial reporting basis and the tasisbaf assets and liabilities using ena
tax rates in effect for the year in which the diileces are expected to reverse. Future tax bgnsiith as net operating loss carry forwards
recognized as deferred tax assets. Recognizedreftax assets are reduced by a valuation allogvéfndased on the weight of availa
evidence, it is more likely than not that some iporor all of the deferred tax asset will not balized.
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Research and Development, Patents and Licenses,.etc

We believe that our engineering and product deveky capabilities are important to the future sescef our business. We hi
successfully lowered the costs of our researchdawtlopment team by moving most research and dewelot activities to our facility
China and principally employing Chinese engineerd gechnicians at costs that are substantially iavan those that would be requiret
Hong Kong. Research and development costs aresggén the financial period during which they maurred.

Trend Information

Although we are optimistic about our future in thanufacture and sale of telecommunications anck swralducts, we are depenc
upon a limited number of customers for a significpartion of our revenues, and the loss of anyhelsé customers could have a mat
adverse effect upon us and our results of opemtiés of March 31, 2009, our backlog of manufdaomorders was $7,152,691, as comp
to $7,922,410 as of March 31, 2008. We expect ithdhe fiscal year ending March 31, 2010, the dref sales from telecommunicatic
products and scales will be more or less the santieeayear ended March 31, 2009.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
We do not have any offalance sheet arrangements that have, or are eddgdikely to have, a current or future effectaur financia

condition, changes in financial condition, revenaegxpenses, results of operations, liquidity itehexpenditures or capital resources tha
material to investors.
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements
The new accounting pronouncements in the UniteteStaat may be relevant to the Group are as fatlow

In March 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 161, “Disares about Derivative Instruments and Hedgingviiels - an amendment
FASB Statement No. 133" (“SFAS No. 1613FAS No. 161 requires disclosures of how and wheratity uses derivative instruments, t
derivative instruments and related hedged itemsaeceunted for and how derivative instruments adted hedged items affect an entty’
financial position, financial performance and célslivs. SFAS No. 161 is effective for fiscal yeamsgimning after November 15, 2008, v
early adoption permitted. We do not expect the idof SFAS No. 161 to have a material impact aneapnsolidated financial statements.

In April 2008, the FASB finalized Staff Position Nb42-3, “Determination of the Useful Life of Ingible Assets” (“FSP 142-3”
The position amends the factors that should beideresd in developing renewal or extension assumptigsed to determine the useful life
recognized intangible asset under SFAS No. 142034l and Other Intangible AssetsThe position applies to intangible assets tha
acquired individually or with a group of other assand both intangible assets acquired in busicessinations and asset acquisitions.
1423 is effective for fiscal years beginning after Bexber 15, 2008, and interim periods within thosedi years. The Company is in
process of assessing the impact of the recent atingypronouncement.

In May 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 162, “Thergtiehy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principl¢$3FAS No. 162).
SFAS No. 162 defines the order in which accountinigciples that are generally accepted should Hevied. SFAS No. 162 is effecti
60 days following the SEG’approval of the Public Company Accounting Ovdrsioard (United States) amendments to AU Seetidh The
Meaning of Present Fairly in Conformity with GerlraAccepted Accounting Principles. We do not expihe adoption of SFAS No. 162
have a material impact on our consolidated findrata&tements.

In May 2008, the FASB finalized Staff Position N&PB 14-1, ‘Accounting for Convertible Debt Instruments ThatyM2ze Settled i
Cash upon Conversion (Including Partial Cash Satl&)” (“FSP APB 14-1").The position clarifies that convertible debt instients that me
be settled in cash upon conversion (including phdash settlement) are not addressed by APB QpiNm@ 14 ‘Accounting for Convertibl
Debt and Debt Issued with Stock Purchase WarraiSP APB 14t further specifies that issuers of such instrumesitould separate
account for the liability and equity componentsiimanner that will reflect the entis/honconvertible debt borrowing rate when intecest i
recognized in subsequent periods. FSP APR isteffective for financial statements issuedfifetal years beginning after December 15, 2
and interim periods within those fiscal years. okshe date of this annual report, we do not hawe eonvertible debt instruments that ma
settled in cash upon conversion, and FSP APB 1de$ dot have any impact on us.
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In April 2009, the FASB issued FSP FAS No. 107-4 aPB No. 28-1 Interim Disclosures about Fair Value of Finan
Instruments,” or FSP FAS No. 107-1 and APB No. 283P FAS No. 107-1 and APB No. 28-1 amends SFASLIN®, ‘Disclosures about F:
Value of Financial Instrumentstd require disclosures about fair value of finahaiatruments for interim reporting periods of pighyl tradec
companies as well as in annual financial statemémtaddition, the FSP amend APB Opinion No. 28félim Financial Reportingtb requirt
those disclosures in summarized financial infororagt interim reporting periods. The FSP is effexfor interim periods ending after June
2009, with earlier adoption permitted for periodasliag after March 15, 2009. The adoption of FSP RS 107-1 and APB No. 28-has n
material effect on the Company’s financial stateteen

In April 2009, the FASB issued FSP FAS No. 115-d &AS No. 124-2 “Recognition of Other-Than-Tempgrimpairments,’or FSF
FAS No. 115-2 and FAS No. 124-2. FSP FAS No. 1@ FAS No. 124-2 amend the other-thhamporary impairment guidance in SFAS
115, “Accounting for Certain Investments in Debtdtquity Securities,for debt securities and the presentation and discéorequirements
other-than-temporary impairments on debt and eqatprities in the financial statements. FSP FASING-2 and FAS No. 122-are effectiv
for interim and annual reporting periods ending@rflune 15, 2009, with early adoption permittedperiods ending after March 15, 2009.
adoption of FSP FAS No. 115-2 and FAS No. 124-2ritematerial effect on the Company’s financial extagnts.

In April 2009, the FASB issued FSP No. 157-4 “Detsing Whether a Market is Not Active and a Tranigercls Not Distressed,6r
FSP No. 157-4. FSP No. 157-4 clarifies when mar&egsiliquid or that market pricing may not actyakflect the “real’value of an asset. Ii
market is determined to be inactive and markeepsaeflective of a distressed price then an aétive method of pricing can be used, suc
a present value technique to estimate fair val&® Ro. 1574 identifies factors to be considered when deteimginvhether or not a market
inactive. FSP No. 154-would be effective for interim and annual perietsling after June 15, 2009, with early adoptionmitéed for period
ending after March 15, 2009 and shall be appliezspectively. The adoption of FSP No. 157-4 has ratenal effect on the Comparzy’
financial statements.

In April 2009, the FASB issued FSP No. 141RAktounting for Assets Acquired and Liabilities Assed in a Business Combinat
That Arise from Contingencies,” or FSP No. 141RFEP No. 141R: amends the provisions in SFAS No. 141 (Revised)tlie initia
recognition and measurement, subsequent measuremergccounting, and disclosures for assets ahdlities arising from contingencies
business combinations. FSP No. 141R-1 eliminategliftinction between contractual and rmmtractual contingencies, including the in
recognition and measurement criteria in SFAS Nd. (Revised) and instead carries forward most ofgl@visions in SFAS No. 141 1
acquired contingencies. FSP No. 141k effective for contingent assets and contingjabtlities acquired in business combinationsvidrich
the acquisition date is on or after the first anmegporting period beginning on or after Decemb&r 2008. The Company is currer
evaluating the impact of the adoption of FSP NA.R4 on its financial statements.
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In May 2009, the FASB issued SFAS No. 165 “Subsetiggents,’or SFAS No. 165, which sets forth general standafdscountin
for and disclosure of events that occur after thiaftice sheet date but before financial statemeatssued or are available to be issued. €
No.165 is effective after June 15, 2009. The adopdf SFAS No. 165 has no material effect on then@any's financial statements.

In June 2009, the FASB issued SFAS No. 166 “Acdogrfior Transfers of Financial Assetsanr amendment of FASB Statement
140,” or SFAS No. 166. SFAS No. 166 improves the relegamepresentational faithfulness, and comparabiitythe information that
reporting entity provides in its financial statertseabout a transfer of financial assets; the effe€ta transfer on its financial position, finan
performance and cash flows; and a transferoontinuing involvement, if any, in transferreddicial assets. SFAS No. 166 is effective i
the beginning of each reporting entgyfirst annual reporting period that begins aftewé&mber 15, 2009, for interim periods within thiast
annual reporting period and for interim and anmagbrting periods thereafter. The Company is culyezvaluating the impact of the adopt
of SFAS No. 166 on its financial statements.

In June 2009, the FASB issued SFAS No. 167 “Amemdm& FASB Interpretation No. 46(R)gr SFAS No. 167, which amer
FASB Interpretation No. 46 (revised December 2G03)ddress the elimination of the concept of aifyiay special purpose entity. SFAS |
167 also replaces the quantitativesed risks and rewards calculation for determimihich enterprise has a controlling financial ietrin
variable interest entity with an approach focuseddentifying which enterprise has the power teedirthe activities of a variable interest er
and the obligation to absorb losses of the entitye right to receive benefits from the entity.ditbnally, SFAS No. 167 provides more tim
and useful information about an enterprisiivolvement with a variable interest entity. SFR8. 167 shall be effective as of the beginnin
each reporting entitg’ first annual reporting period that begins aftew&mber 15, 2009, for interim periods within thiastfannual reportir
period and for interim and annual reporting perititseafter. Earlier application is prohibited. T@empany is currently evaluating the img
of the adoption of SFAS No. 167 on its financialtetents.

In June 2009, the FASB issued SFAS No. 16Be' FASB Accounting Standards Codification andHinerarchy of Generally Accept
Accounting Principles, a replacement of FASB StaetmNo. 162,”or SFAS No. 168, which establishes the FASB AccognBtandarc
Caodification as the source of authoritative accmgnprinciples recognized by the FASB to be appliethe preparation of financial stateme
in conformity with generally accepted accountingnpiples. SFAS No. 168 explicitly recognizes rubasd interpretive releases of the ¢
under federal securities laws as authoritative GA&PSEC registrants. SFAS No. 168 will become @ffe for financial statements issued
interim and annual periods ending after SeptemBer2009. Adoption of SFAS No. 168 is not expectechave a material impact on
Company'’s financial statements.
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Iltem 6. Directors, Senior Management and Employees
Directors and Senior Management

Our board of directors and executiveasfifs are listed below:

Name Age Position with Bonso

Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer addector,
President and Treasur
Director of Engineering and Research and Developraed

Anthony So 66

Kim Wah Chung 51 Director

Woa-Ping Fok 60 Director

J. Stewart Jackson, I\ 73 Director

Henry F. Schluete 58 Director and Assistant Secret:
Albert So 31 Chief Financial Officer and Secrete

ANTHONY SO is the founder of Bonso. He has been@lairman of the Board of Directors since July 898le was appointed
the Chief Executive Officer and the President orvéober 16, 2006. Mr. So received his BSE degreeivih engineering from Nation
Taiwan University in 1967 and a master's degrebusiness administration (“MBA™rom the Hong Kong campus of the University of k
Hull, England in 1994. Mr. So has been ChairmathefHong Kong GO Association since 1986 and aésuesl as Chairman of the Alun
Association of National Taiwan University for the@3-1994 academic years. Mr. So has served as adraktee Chinese University of Ha
Kong, New Asia College since 1994,

KIM WAH CHUNG has been a director since Septembkr 2994. Mr. Chung has been employed by us si884 hnd current
holds the position of Director of Engineering andsBarch and Development. Mr. Chung is responéillell research projects and proc
development. Mr. Chung’ entire engineering career has been spent wittsddoand he has been involved in all of our majardpc
developments. Mr. Chung graduated with honors9811from the Chinese University of Hong Kong wittiBachelor of Science degree
electronics.

WOO-PING FOK was elected to our Board of Directors ept®8mber 21, 1994. Mr. Fok has practiced law imgiong since 19¢
and is a Consultant with Messrs. C.K. Mok & Co..Mok’s major areas of practice include conveyancingeat property law, corporatio
and business law, commercial transactions andnatienal trade with a special emphasis in Chindetnmatters. Mr. Fok was admitted to
Canadian Bar as a Barrister & Solicitor in Decemt@87 and was a partner in the law firm of Woo &Ja Canadian law firm with its he
office in Edmonton, Alberta, Canada. In 1991, MokRvas qualified to practice as a Solicitor of Eargl & Wales, a Solicitor of Hong Ko
and a Barrister & Solicitor of Australian Capitadrfitory.
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J. STEWART JACKSON |V has been a director sinceudan 10, 2000. From 1962 until its merger with Rajc Industries in 199
Mr. Jackson served in various management capacitiekiding president, of Denver Burglar Alarm Cingc., a business founded by
family. In addition, in the mid-1968, Mr. Jackson founded Denver Burglar Alarm Prosluat separate company which invented, pate
manufactured, distributed and installedhe first selfeontained ionization smoke detectors and which i@ésr sold to a conglomer:
manufacturer. After the merger of Denver Burgldarf Co., Inc., Mr. Jackson founded Jackson Burglarm Co., Inc. Mr. Jackson sen
as Chief Executive Officer of Jackson Burglar Ala@o. from February 1998 to October 2005. Mr. Janksas served as the Chief Exect
Officer of J S J Corporation. Mr. Jackson servadiee advisory board of directors for Underwriset’aboratories for burglar and fire ale
systems for 25 years and has been an officer inCémgtral Station Protection Association, which,nglovith the National Burglar Alar
Association, was formed by his family in the la@4@’s. Mr. Jackson graduated from the University ofo€ado in 1962 with a degree
Business Management and Engineering.

HENRY F. SCHLUETER has been a director since Oat@®91, and has been our Assistant Secretary €htaber 6, 1988. Sin
1992, Mr. Schlueter has been the Managing Direat@chlueter & Associates, P.C., a law firm, preiagy in the areas of securities, mert
and acquisitions, finance and corporate law. Mhl&eter has served as our United States corparatesecurities counsel since 1988. F
1989 to 1991, prior to establishing Schlueter & ddates, P.C., Mr. Schlueter was a partner in teever, Colorado office of Kutak Ra
(formerly Kutak, Rock & Campbell), and from 1984 1889, he was a partner in the Denver office ofshel& Harding. Mr. Schlueter is
member of the American Institute of Certified PalAiccountants, the Colorado and Denver Bar Assiocist and the Wyoming State Bar.

ALBERT SO was appointed as the Chief Financial Offiethe Company in March 2009. Mr. So was finstpboyed as the Financ
Controller of the Company in January 2008 and asaaagement trainee of the Company in November 2@0#br to his employment a:
management trainee of the Company, Albert So watsdent. Mr. Albert So is a Certified Managementduntant, Financial Risk Manac
and has received a Bachelor degree in Mathematios $imon Fraser University in Burnaby, British @wmibia, Canada.
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Anthony So, the Company'President, Chief Executive Officer and Chairmathe Board of Directors is the father of Albert, $ioe
Company’s Chief Financial Officer.

No arrangement or understanding exists betweersaadly director or officer and any other personsyamsto which any director
executive officer was elected as a director or ettee officer. Our directors are elected annualtyl serve until their successors take offic
until their death, resignation or removal. Theaiive officers serve at the pleasure of the Badirectors.

Compensation

The aggregate amount of compensation paid by uandubsidiaries during the year ended March 80920 all directors, form
directors, and officers as a group for servicesllicapacities was $1,528,148. Total compensdtothe benefit of Anthony So was $930,z
for the benefit of Kim Wah Chung was $162,502,tfar benefit of George Qtary was $240,000, for the benefit of Albert S\$86,026 ar
for the benefit of Henry F. Schlueter was an aggie@f $109,364. The $109,364 listed as having Ipeéd for the benefit of Mr. Schlue
was paid to his law firm, Schlueter & Associate£;.Hor legal services rendered.

We did not set aside or accrue any amounts to geopension, retirement or similar benefits for clioes and officers for the fisc
year ended March 31, 2009, other than contributiormur Provident Fund Plan, which aggreg: $14,103 for officers and directors.

Employment Agreements

We have employment agreements with Anthony So @nd\Wah Chung. Mr. S@' employment agreement provides for a yearly s
of approximately $800,000 per year plus bonus,MndChungs employment agreement provides for a yearly sahapproximately $200,0!
per year plus bonus, as stated in their respeetivployment agreements, which expire on March 31320Mr. Sos employment agreem
contains a provision under which we will be obleghto pay Mr. So all compensation for the remairafdris employment agreement and
times his annual salary and bonus compensatiophifiage of control as defined in his employmenéagrents occurs.
Options of Directors and Senior Management

The following table provides information concernimgtions owned by the directors and senior manageatéMarch 31, 2009.
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Name Number of Common Share: Exercise Price Expiration Date

Subject to Stock Options Per Share
Anthony Sa 158,000 $8.00 January 6, 201
128,000 $3.65 April 9, 2011
128,000 $2.50 March 6, 201
222,500 $1.61 March 31, 201:
Kim Wah Chunc 20,000 $8.00 January 6, 201
20,000 $3.65 April 9, 2011
20,000 $2.50 March 6, 201
55,000 $1.61 March 31, 201:
Woc-Ping Fok 10,000 $8.125 January 12, 201
10,000 $7.875 January 9, 201
10,000 $6.12 March 25, 201«
10,000 $6.20 September 12, 201
10,000 $4.50 December 4, 201
J. Stewart Jackson | 10,000 $7.875 January 9, 201
10,000 $2.55 October 15, 201
10,000 $1.61 March 31, 201
10,000 $6.12 March 25, 201«
10,000 $6.20 September 12, 201
10,000 $4.50 December 4, 201
Henry F. Schluete 10,000 $8.00 January 6, 201
10,000 $6.12 March 25, 201«
10,000 $6.20 September 12, 201
10,000 $4.50 December 4, 201

Directors

Except as mentioned above, our directors do nativecany additional monetary compensation for sgrin their capacities. #
directors are reimbursed for all reasonable expeimgeirred in connection with their services asractor.

Employee retirement benefits

(a) With effect from January 1, 1988, BEL, a wh-owned foreign subsidiary of the Company in Hong &omplemented a defin
contribution plan (the “Plan"ith a major international assurance company twidelife insurance and retirement benefits fo
employees. All permanent full time employees whiogd BEL before December 2000, excluding factorykeoes, are eligible to jo
the provident fund plan. Eligible employees of Bian are required to contribute 5% of their mon#dlary, while BEL is required
contribute from 5% to 10% based on the eligible lyge’s salary, depending on the number of yearthefeligible employee’
service.

The Mandatory Provident Fund (the “MPRtgas introduced by the Hong Kong Government, andnsented in December 2000. B
joined the MPF by implementing a plan with a majfdernational assurance company. All permanentgH¢ong full time employet
who joined BEL on or after December 2000, excludiagtory workers, are eligible to join the MPF.ligible employees' and t
employer’s contributions to the MPF are both at B%the eligible employes’ monthly salary and are subject to a maxir
contribution of HK$1,000 (US$128) monthly.
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Pursuant to the relevant PRC regulations, the Gisugquired to make contributions for each empdoyat rates based upon
employees standard salary base as determined by the law@EhlSSecurity Bureau, to a defined contributiotireenent schen
organized by the local Social Security Bureau speet of the retirement benefits for the Group’pkyees in the PRC.

(b) The contributions to each of the above schemeseamgnized as employee benefit expense when tleegiuar and are charged to
consolidated statement of income (loss). The Gotgtal contributions to the above schemes foryders ended March 31, 20
2008 and 2009 amounted to $164,348, $251,538 a4, &3, respectively. The Group has no other abbg to make payments
respect of retirement benefits of the employ

Board Practices

All directors hold office until our next annual ntieg of shareholders or until their respective ®ssors are duly elected and quali
or their positions are earlier vacated by resigmatir otherwise. All executive officers are appethby the Board and serve at the pleasu
the Board. There are no director service contnaisiding for benefits upon termination of emplogmt or directorship.

NASDAQ Exemptions and Home Country Practices

NASDAQ Marketplace Rule 4350 provides that foreivate issuers may elect to follow certain homerdtoy corporate governar
practices so long as they provide NASDAQ with delefrom outside counsel in its home country cegirti that the issuer 's corpor
governance practices are not prohibited by homatcplaw.

On July 19, 2005, we submitted a letter to the NA&Dcertifying that certain of Bonse’corporate governance practices are
prohibited by the relevant laws of the British Mirgslands. We will follow British Virgin Islandaw in respect to the following requirements:

A majority of Bons('s board of directors will not be independe
Bonso will not have a nominating committ

Bonso will not have a compensation commit

Bonsc('s independent directors will not meet in execusigssion; an
Bonsc's audit committee will have only one memt

Audit Committee

Mr. Woo Ping Fok and Mr. Henry FehBlieter are the members of the Audit Committee. Rbk is “independentas defined in tt
NASDAQ listing standards and Mr. Schlueter may lmtonsidere“independent” since his law firm serves as Bon&dri#ted States counsel.
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The Audit Committee was established to (i) reviewd approve the scope of audit procedures employesubindependent audito
(i) review and approve the audit reports rendérgabur independent auditors; (iii) approve the atek charged by the independent audi
(iv) report to the Board of Directors with respéztsuch matters; (v) recommend the selection aépetident auditors; and (vi) discharge :
other responsibilities as may be delegated tooinftime to time by the Board of Directors. Effgetias of August 17, 2000, the Boart
Directors adopted a formal charter for its Auditn@uittee, which was amended effective June 30, 2005.

Employees

At March 31, 2009, we employed a total of 1,557spas, as compared to 2,755 persons at March 38,0 3,334 persons at Ma
31, 2007; 24 employees in Hong Kong (31 in 2008 4mdn 2007) 1,533 employees in China (2,724 in&80d 3,289 in 2007). Employ:
are not covered by collective bargaining agreemeWts consider our global labor practices and egyg#aelations to be good.

Share Ownership

The following table shows the number of sharesahmon stock beneficially owned by our directors axecutive officers as
August 31, 2009:

Shares of Commo Total Number o Percent o
Stock Owned of Shares of Commc Beneficial
Record Stock Beneficially Ownership
Name Options Helc Owned
Anthony Sa 1,626,191 636,500 2,262,69¢ 36.41%
Kim Wah Chunc 93,700 115,0000) 208,700 3.67%
Henry F. Schluete 34,000 40,0004 74,000 1.32%
Woa-Ping Fok 64,407 50,000©)®)®) 114,407 2.03%
J. Stewart Jackson | 462,575 60,000)®)®) 522,575 9.27%
All Directors and Officers as a group (5 persc 2,280,871 901,500 3,182,377 49.12%

(1) Includes 1,143,421 shares of common stock owneéaufrd by a corporation that is wholly owned byt of which Mr. So is tf
sole beneficiary

(2) Includes options to purchase 158,000 shares of @amsiock at an exercise price of $8.00 per shapérieg on January 6, 201
options to purchase 128,000 shares of common sibeln exercise price of $3.65 per share expiringApril 9, 2011, options 1
purchase 128,000 shares of common stock at anisegmice of $2.50 per share expiring on March@,2and options to purch:
222,500 shares of common stock at an exercise pfig2.61 per share expiring on March 31, 2(
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(3) Includes options to purchase 20,000 shares of camsbhack at an exercise price of $8.00 per sharériegpon January 6, 201
options to purchase 20,000 shares of common stbeln a&xercise price of $3.65 per share expiringApnl 9, 2011, options |
purchase 20,000 shares of common stock at an egepcice of $2.50 per share expiring on March 8,22@nd options to purchz
55,000 shares of common stock at an exercise pfié&.61 per share expiring on March 31, 2(

(4) Includes options to purchase 10,000 shares of canstozk at an exercise price of $8.00 per shargiegmn January 6, 201

(5) Includes options to purchase 10,000 shares of comstuck at an exercise price of $2.55 expiring atoBer 15, 2011 and 10,C
shares of common stock at an exercise price ofl§ied share expiring on March 31, 20

(6) Includes options to purchase 10,000 shares of canstozk at an exercise price of $8.125 per shap&ieg on January 12, 201

(7) Includes 461,975 shares held by Mr. Jackson andgbafes held by Mr. Jacke' s wife.

(8) Includes options to purchase 10,000 shares of canstazk at an exercise price of $7.875 per shap&ieg on January 9, 201

(9) Includes options to purchase 10,000 shares of comsimck at an exercise price of $6.12 expiring oard¥t 25, 2014, options
purchase 10,000 shares of common stock at an sgeptice of $6.20 per share expiring on SeptemBer2014 and options
purchase 10,000 shares of common stock at an segudce of $4.50 per share expiring on Decemb2045.

Stock Option and Bonus Plans
The 1996 Stock Option Plan

In October 1996, our stockholders adopted the 86k Option Plan (the “Employees’ Planihich provides for the grant of optic
to purchase an aggregate of not more than 400}@x@s of our common stock. In January 2000, ocare$tolders approved the proposal o
Board of Directors to increase from 400,000 to 000,in the aggregate the number of options to mseltommon stock under the Employees’
Plan. The purpose of the EmployeP$an is to make options available to managementamgloyees in order to encourage them to sect
increase on reasonable terms their stock owneestdpo encourage them to remain with the Company.

The EmployeesPlan is administered by a committee appointed byBbard of Directors which determines the personset grante
options under the EmployeeRlan, the number of shares subject to each optienexercise price of each option and the optioiogesubjec
to the requirement that no option may be exercesatire than ten years after the date of grant. ekkecise price of an option may be less
the fair market value of the underlying sharesahmon stock. No options granted under the Empld&laa are transferable by the optic
other than by will or the laws of descent and distionm and each option will be exercisable dutting lifetime of the optionee, only by s
optionee.

The exercise price of an option granted pursuathecEmployeesPlan may be paid in cash, by the surrender of ngtim commo
stock, in other property, including the optiongg'emissory note, or by a combination of the abat@ur discretion.
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During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2009, ndomgstwere granted under the Employees Plan.
The 1996 Non-Employee Directors’ Stock Option Plan

In October 1996, our stockholders adopted the 1986-Employee Directors’ Stock Option Plan (the “NBmployee Directors’
Plan”) which provides for the grant of options to purchaseaggregate of not more than 100,000 sharesnofnom stock. In January 2000,
shareholders approved the proposal of the Boardirafctors to increase from 100,000 to 600,000 i aélggregate the number of option
purchase common stock under the Non-Employee DirgdPlan.

On November 16, 2006, the Board of Directors of@rmenpany voted to rescind the Company’s 1996 NomibByee DirectorsStock
Option Plan (the “Non-Employee Directors’ PlanAll options previously granted under the Non-Emg@eyDirectors’Plan continue in fu
force and effect pursuant to their terms of grant.

The 2004 Stock Option Plan

On March 23, 2004, our stockholders adopted thel Z0ck Option Plan (the “2004 Planthich provides for the grant of up to
hundred thousand (600,000) shares of the Compagyrhmon stock in the form of stock options, suldjecertain adjustments as describe
the 2004 Plan.

The purpose of the 2004 Plan is to secure key grapkto remain in the employ of the Company arehtmurage such employee
secure or increase on reasonable terms their constock ownership in the Corporation. The Compaelebes that the 2004 Plan promc
continuity of management and increased incentieepanrsonal interest in the welfare of the Company.

The 2004 Plan is administered mpmmittee appointed by the Board of Directors widohsists of at least two but not more 1
three members of the Board, one of whom shall hereemployee of the Company. The committee membenzictly are Anthony So al
Woo-Ping Fok. The committee determines the specifimseof the options granted, including the employteebe granted options under
plan, the number of shares subject to each optiantgthe exercise price of each option and thogteriod, subject to the requirement the
option may be exercisable more than 10 years tifeedate of grant. The exercise price of an optiay be less than the fair market valu
the underlying shares of common stock. No optinasited under the plan will be transferable byapgonee other than by will or the laws
descent and distribution, and each option will kereisable, during the lifetime of the optioneelydwy the optionee.

The exercise price of an optionnged pursuant to the 2004 Plan may be paid in dasthe surrender of options, in common st
in other property, including a promissory note frima optionee, or by a combination of the abovéhadiscretion of the Committee.

As of March 31, 2009, no optionsl leen granted under the 2004 Plan.
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2004 Stock Bonus Plan

On September 7, 2004, our stockholders adoptedfé Stock Bonus Plan (the “Stock Bonus Plamfijch authorizes the issuance
up to five hundred thousand (500,000) shares o€timporation’s Common Stock in the form of stockt@ck bonus.

The purpose of this Stock Bonus Plan is to: (@uice key employees to remain in the employ of thgp@ration, or of any subsidie
of the Corporation; (ii) encourage such employ@esecure or increase their stock ownership in tbgp@ation; and (iii) reward employe
non-employee directors, advisors and consultants forices rendered or to be rendered to or for theefieaf the Corporation or any of
subsidiaries. The Corporation believes that St8okus Plan will promote continuity of managemendl amcreased incentive and persc
interest in the welfare of the Corporation.

The Stock Bonus Plan shall be administered by antittee appointed by the Board of Directors whichsisets of at least two but
more than three members of the Board, one of whioall be a noremployee of the Corporation. The Committee membersently ar
Anthony So and Woding Fok. The Committee has the authority, irsdke discretion: (i) to determine the partiesdoeive bonus stock, t
times when they shall receive such awards, the eurobshares to be issued, and the time, termscanditions of the issuance of any s
shares; (ii) to construe and interpret the termshef Stock Bonus Plan; (iii) to establish, amend asscind rules and regulations for
administration of the Stock Bonus Plan; and (ivinake all other determinations necessary or adéigabadministering the Stock Bonus Pl

As of March 31, 2009, no shares had been grantddrithe Stock Bonus Plan.
Item 7. Major Shareholders and Related Party Tranactions
Major shareholders

We are not directly or indirectly owned or contedllby any foreign government or by another corpamatThe following table s
forth, as of August 31, 2009, beneficial ownersbfipur common stock by each person, to the bestipknowledge, known to own benefici

5% or more of our common stock outstanding as ohslate. Except as otherwise indicated, all share®wned directly and hold equal vc
rights.
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Amount Ownec

Shares of Comma Options to Purchas Percent Clas

Name Stock Common Stocl Beneficially Ownec®)

Anthony Sa 1,626,192 636,50C3 36.41%

John Stewart Jackson | 462,57¢ 60,0000 9.27%

W. Douglas Morelanc 501,400 0 8.99%

Royce & Associates LL( 297,00C 0 5.32%

CAS Corporatior 290,654 0 5.21%

(1) Based on beneficial ownership of both shares ofrnon stock and of options to purchase common stwatkare immediately
exercisable

(2) Includes 1,143,421 shares of common stock ownedanird by a corporation that is wholly owned kyuest of which Mr. So is the
sole beneficiary

3) See"“Share Ownersh” for additional information

There are no arrangements known to us which maysabsequent date result in a change in contithleo€ompany.

Related Party Transactions

During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2009, wel jsthlueter & Associates, P.C. an aggregate of 86@%or legal fees. Mr. Her
F. Schlueter, a director, is the Managing DireafoEchlueter & Associates, P.C.

As of March 31, 2008, BEL had paid deposits of agjpnately US$1,528,000 with regard to potentialdstments in a commerc
residential building and a land use right in theCPBubsequent to this fiscal year end, Mr. Anth8oy Chairman of Bonso decided to taki
BEL'’s potential investments and paid BEL the full antoafnapproximately US$1,528,000 in September 20D8e carrying amount of t
deposits approximates their fair value due to thleart maturities.

During the year ended March 31, 2007, BEL had mpa&idain deposits of US$799,000 for a potential stweent in a hotel. Su
potential investment was subsequently taken up byAvithony So and the full amount was paid to BELJuly 2007.

Interests of Experts and Counsel

Not Applicable.

Legal Proceedings

Not Applicable.
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Item 8. Financial Information
Financial Statements

Our Consolidated Financial Statements are set fortter Item 18. Financial Statements.
Item 9. The Offer and Listing

Listing Details

Our common stock is traded only in the United Stateer-thecounter market. It is quoted on the NASDAQ Glolkarket under th
trading symbol “BNSO."The following table sets forth, for the periodsicaded, the range of high and low closing salesgsriper sha

reported by NASDAQ. The quotations represent grizetween dealers and do not include retail margrkdown or commissions and n
not necessarily represent actual transactions.

The following table sets forth the high and lowesptices for each of the last five years:

Period High Low
April 1, 2004 to March 31, 20C $9.09 $3.90
April 1, 2005 to March 31, 20C $7.00 $3.40
April 1, 2006 to March 31, 200 $5.47 $3.01
April 1, 2007 to March 31, 20C $4.68 $1.86
April 1, 2008 to March 31, 20C $2.45 $0.03

The following table sets forth the high and lowesptices during each of the quarters in the ywar period ended September 30, 2

Period High Low

October 1, 2007 to December 31, 2 $4.68 $2.40
January 1, 2008 to March 31, 2C $3.00 $2.00
April 1, 2008 to June 30, 200 $2.27 $1.86
July 1, 2008 to September 30, 2( $2.49 $0.03
October 1, 2008 to December 31, 2( $1.39 $0.08
January 1, 2009 to March 31, 2C $1.36 $0.63
April 1, 2009 to June 30, 20( $1.35 $0.83
July 1, 2009 to September 30, 20 $1.42 $0.82

The following table sets forth the high and lowesptices during each of the most recent six months.

Period High Low
April 2009 $1.35 $0.83
May 2009 $1.22 $0.98
June 200¢ $1.18 $0.87
July 200¢ $1.18 $0.82

August 200¢ $1.42 $1.05
September 200 $1.39 $1.11
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On September 30, 2009, the closing price of ourmomstock was $1.23. Of the 5,577,639 sharesmfmaon stock outstanding as
August 31, 2009, 3,817,452 shares were held irUthieed States by 203 holders of record. We have gtareholders of record and estir
that we have 753 shareholders holding their stockrieet name (who have not objected to their ndreesy disclosed to us).
Transfer and Warrant Agent

The transfer agent and registrar for the commockssoComputershare, 1745 Gardena Avenue #200dalenCalifornia 91204.
Item 10. Additional Information
Share Capital

Our authorized capital is $170,000 consisting 0f333,334 shares of common stock, $0.003 par vaéwespare, and 10,000,(
authorized shares of preferred stock, $0.01 pareyalivided into 2,500,000 shares each of classefepred stock, class B preferred stock, «
C preferred stock and class D preferred stockoriétion with respect to the number of shares afroon stock outstanding at the begini
and at the end of the last three fiscal yearseésgnted in the Consolidated Statements of Chang8kadreholdersEquity for the fiscal yea
ended March 31, 2007, 2008 and 2009 included hérdtem 18.

At September 30, 2009, there were 5,577,639 shlarear common stock outstanding, all of which wéarly paid. In addition, w
had outstanding 1,104,500 options to purchase comstozk as follows:

Exercise Price per

Number of Option Share Expiration Dat
228,00! $8.00 January 6, 201
20,00( $8.125 January 12, 20:
30,00( $7.875 January 9, 20
196,00( $3.65 April 9, 2011
10,00( $2.55 October 15, 201
168,00( $2.50 March 6, 201
342,50! $1.61 March 31, 201
40,00( $6.12 March 25, 201
40,00( $6.20 September 12, 201
30,00¢ $4.50 December 4, 20:

At August 31, 2009 there were no shares of oureprefl stock outstanding.
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Memorandum and Articles of Association

We are registered in the British Virgin Islands amalve been assigned company number 9032 in theteegif companies. C
registered agent is HWR Services Limited at Craigrmhambers, P.O. Box 71, Road Town, Tortola, BhitVirgin Islands. The object
purpose of the Company is to engage in any acttivity that is not prohibited under British Virgislands law as set forth in Paragraph
our Memorandum of Association. As an InternatioBakiness Company, we are prohibited from doingrass with persons resident in
British Virgin Islands, owning real estate in thatBh Virgin Islands or acting as a bank or inswe@ company. We do not believe that tl
restrictions materially affect our operations.

Paragraph 57(c) of our Amended Articles of Assaaiafthe “Articles”) provides that a director may be counted as oneqofoaum ir
respect of any contract or arrangement in whichdirector is materially interested; however, if tigreement or transaction cannot be appt
by a resolution of directors without counting thaesor consent of any interested director, theeagent or transaction may only be validate
approval or ratification by a resolution of the mesrs. Paragraph 53 of the Articles allows theatimes to vote compensation to themselve
respect of services rendered to the Company. Rgrag6 of the Articles provides that the directoiagy by resolution exercise all the pov
of the Company to borrow money and to mortgageharge its undertakings and property or any paretife to issue debentures, deber
stock and other securities whenever money is badoar as security for any debt, liability or obliga of ours or of any third party. St
borrowing powers can be altered by an amendmeilheoArticles. There is no provision in the Artigléor the mandatory retirement
directors. Directors are not required to own shafe¢he Company in order to serve as directors.

Our authorized share capital is $170,000 divided 28,333,334 shares of common stock, $0.003 daeyand 10,000,000 authori:
shares of preferred stock, $0.01 par value. Heldéour common stock are entitled to one votesfich whole share on all matters to be v
upon by shareholders, including the election oédtiors. Holders of our common stock do not havauwdative voting rights in the election
directors. All of our common shares are equalacheother with respect to liquidation and divideights. Holders of our common shares
entitled to receive dividends if and when decldogcour board of directors out of funds legally dable therefor under British Virgin Islan
law. In the event of our liquidation, all assetaitable for distribution to the holders of our commn shares are distributable among t
according to their respective holdings. Holderoof common stock have no preemptive rights to lpase any additional unissued comi
shares. No shares of our preferred stock have issead however the board of directors has thétyaldl determine the rights, preferences
restrictions of the preferred stock at their diore

Paragraph 7 of the Memorandum of Association prewithat without prejudice to any special rightsvimesly conferred on tt

holders of any existing shares, any share may i@ with such preferred, deferred or other spetgats or such restrictions, whethel
regard to dividend, voting, return of capital onenwise, as the directors may from time to timesatne.
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Paragraph 10 of the Memorandum of Association plewithat if at any time the authorized share chajstdivided into differer
classes or series of shares, the rights attachaadytalass or series may be varied with the coriseatiting of the holders of not less than three-
fourths of the issued shares of any other clasgiies of shares which may be affected by suclatian.

Paragraph 105 of the Articles of Association pregidhat our Memorandum and Articles of Associatioay be amended by
resolution of members or a resolution of directorsius, our board of directors without sharehokdgroval may amend our Memorandum
Articles of Association. This includes amendmentincrease or reduce our authorized capital st@ur ability to amend our Memorand
and Articles of Association without shareholder @wal could have the effect of delaying, deterrargoreventing a change in control of
Company, including a tender offer to purchase aunmon shares at a premium over the then currerkanprice.

Provisions in respect of the holding of general tings and extraordinary general meetings are seinoRaragraphs 68 through 77
the Articles and under the International Businesmfanies Act. The directors may convene meetifiglseomembers at such times and in ¢
manner and places as the directors consider negassdesirable, and they shall convene such ainmgeeapon the written request of memt
holding more than 30% of the votes of our outstagdioting shares.

British Virgin Islands law and our Memorandum andidles of Association impose no limitations on thight of nonresident
foreign owners to hold or vote our securities. rEha@e no provisions in the Memorandum and Artidiedssociation governing the owners
threshold above which shareholder ownership muslisigosed.

A copy of our Memorandum and Articles of Associatias amended, was filed as an exhibit to our Reagjisn Statement on Form F-
2 (SEC File No. 333-32524).

Material Contracts

The following summarizes each material contradteothan contracts entered into in the ordinarys®wf business, to which Bor
or any subsidiary of Bonso is a party, for the years immediately preceding the filing of this repo

We signed a Banking Facility Letmted March 23, 2007 between Bonso and KBC Bank’bsl.Hong Kong Branch for
HK$10,500,000 letter of credit, trust receipt fagil export D/P bills, export trade loan, factoringd overdraft facility and a Euro 3,300,
bank guarantee to KBC Bank Deutschland AG, Germarsecure a trade facility to one of the subsidmrKorona. A copy of this Banki
Facilities Letter was attached as Exhibit 4.1 to Aanual Report on Form 2B-filed with the Commission on November 17, 2008 &
incorporated herein by this reference.
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We signed a Banking Facility Lettéated April 17, 2009, amending our Banking F#e#i Letters dated April 6, 2009, October
2008, June 4, 2008 and June 6, 2007 between BankStandard Chartered Bank for an HK$63,000,0G@rletf credit, trust receipt facilit
export D/P bills, export trade loan, factoring aneerdraft facility. A copy of this Banking Facils Letter is attached to this Annual Repol
Form 20-F as Exhibit 4.1 and is incorporated hebgithis reference.

We signed a Banking Facility Lettiated March 6, 2009, between Bonso and Hang Sang #&r a HK$63,000,000 letter of cre
trust receipt facility, export D/P bills, exportatte loan, factoring and overdraft facility. A copfythis Banking Facilities Letter is attachec
this Annual Report on Form 20-F as Exhibit 4.2 anithcorporated herein by this reference.

We signed an employment agreement with AnthonydSsetve as Chairman of the Board of Directors, Chiecutive Officer an
President of the Company effective April 1, 2008(tSo Employment Agreement”). Pursuant to theE&mployment Agreement, Mr. So’
base salary is $800,000 per annum. Mr. So iseisitied to such bonus as the board of directoadi sletermine. Mr. So is also entitled to
use of a property located at Savanna Garden, Heas@7, Tai Po, New Territories, Hong Kong with@uy charge or cost. Mr. So is entil
to be reimbursed for all reasonable out of pockgteases incurred in connection with the performaofchis duties. The So Employm
Agreement expires on March 31, 2013. The So Enméoyt Agreement contains provisions under which webs obligated to pay Mr. So
compensation for the remainder of his employmentegent and five times his annual salary and booogensation if a change of contro
defined in the agreements occurs. A copy of th&aBployment Agreement was attached as Exhibit 4 #heoCompanys Annual Report ¢
Form 20-F filed with the Commission on November 2008, and is incorporated herein by this reference

We signed an employment agreement with Kim Wahngho serve as the Director of Engineering and &ebeand Development
the Company effective April 1, 2008 (the “Chung Hayment Agreement”). Pursuant to the Chung EmplegtiAgreement, Mr. Chung’bas
salary is $200,000 per annum. Mr. Chung is alddleth to such bonus as the board of directorsl steiermine and to be reimbursed fou
reasonable out of pocket expenses incurred in atiomewith the performance of his duties. The Gh@mployment Agreement expires
March 31, 2013. A copy of the Chung Employment Agnent was attached as Exhibit 4.6 to the Compakryraial Report on Form 2B-filed
with the Commission on November 17, 2008 and istiporated herein by this reference.
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Exchange Controls

There are no exchange control restrictions on paysnef dividends on our common stock or on the cohdf our operations either
Hong Kong, where our principal executive officee &vcated, or the British Virgin Islands, where are incorporated. Other jurisdictions
which we conduct operations may have various exghaontrols. Taxation and repatriation of profiegarding our China operations
regulated by Chinese laws and regulations. Wispeet to our PRC subsidiaries, with the exceptioa @quirement that about 11% of prc
be reserved for future developments and staff welfdnere are no restrictions on the payment afldivds and the removal of dividends fi
China once all taxes are paid and assessed arag$)akany, from previous years have been made.gdoddate, these controls have not
and are not expected to have, a material impaaunrfinancial results. There are no material BhitVirgin Islands laws that impose fore
exchange controls on us or that affect the payragdtvidends, interest or other payments to holdérsur securities who are not resident
the British Virgin Islands. British Virgin Islandaw and our Memorandum and Articles of Associatimpose no limitations on the right
nonresident or foreign owners to hold or vote @mausities.

Taxation

No reciprocal tax treaty regarding withholding éxibetween the United States and the British Vitglands. Under current Briti
Virgin Islands law, dividends, interest or royadtipaid by us to individuals are not subject todaxong as the recipient is not a resident ¢
British Virgin Islands. If we were to pay a divit# we would not be liable to withhold any tax, bhareholders would receive gross divide
if any, irrespective of their residential or na@bstatus.

Dividends, if any, paid to any United States resider citizen shareholder are treated as dividerdrne for United States fede
income tax purposes. Such dividends are not ddigibr the 70% dividendseceived deduction allowed to United States corpmma or
dividends from a domestic corporation under Sec#dB of the Internal Revenue Code. Various InteRevenue Code provisions imp:
special taxes in certain circumstances on daited States corporations and their shareholdéosl are urged to consult your tax advisor
regard to such possibilities and your own tax situne

A foreign corporation will be treated as a passoreign investment company (“PFICfr United States federal income tax purp
if, after applying relevant lookarough rules with respect to the income and as¥edsibsidiaries, 75% or more of its gross incoresgsts c
certain types of passive income or 50% or mordefgross value of its assets is attributable tetagbat produce passive income or are he
the production of passive income. For this purppsasive income generally includes dividends r@#e royalties, rents (other that rents
royalties derived in the active conduct of a trad®usiness), annuities and gains from assetptbdtice passive income. We presently be
that we are not a PFIC and do not anticipate bemgm@iPFIC. This is, however, a factual determamathade on an annual basis and is su
to change. If we were to be classified as a PRl@ny taxable year, (i) U.S. holders would gengitadl required to treat any gain on sales o
shares held by them as ordinary income and to paipntarest charge on the value of the deferralhefrtUnited States federal income
attributable to such gain and (ii) distributionsdohy us to our United States holders could alsguigect to an interest charge. In addition
would not provide information to our United Statedders that would enable them to make a “qualitting fund”election under whic
generally, in lieu of the foregoing treatment, earnings would be currently included in their Udittates federal income.

In addition to United States federal income taxgt&hareholders may be subject to state and lagastupon their receipt of dividen
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Documents on Display

You may read and copy documents referred to in Almisual Report on Form 2B-that have been filed with the SEC at the S
Public Reference Room, 450 Fifth Street, N.W., Vifgtion, D.C. You may obtain information on the gi®n of the Public Reference Ro
by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. You can alst@ain copies of our SEC filings by going to tHeCSs website at http://www.sec.gov.

The SEC allows us to “incorporate by referentte® information we file with the SEC. This meahsattwe can disclose importi
information to you by referring you to another do@nt filed separately with the SEC. The informatiocorporated by reference is considi
to be part of this Annual Report on Form 20-F.

Iltem 11. Quantitative and Qualitative DisclosuresAbout Market Risk

We are exposed to a certain level of interestniakeand foreign currency exchange risk.
Interest Rate Risk

Our interest rate risk primarily arises from oundgerm debt and our general banking facilities. A8larch 31, 2009, there was
longterm debt. We had utilized $1,747,301 of our tbehking facilities of $18,617,948. Based on thaurity profile and composition of ¢
longterm debt and general banking facilities, including fact that our banking facilities are at valgainterest rates, we estimate that cha
in interest rates will not have a material impaotaur operating results or cash flows. We intemdntanage our interest rate risk thro

appropriate borrowing strategies. We have notredtéto interest rate swap or risk managementesgeats; however, it is possible that
may do so in the future.
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A summary of our debts as at March 31, 2009 whiehevsubjected to variable interest rates is asabelo

March 31, Interest
2009 rate
Notes payabl $1,361,78: HIBOR + 2.5% to 2.599
Bank overdrafts $385,514 Prime rate + 0.5%%0 1
Or

HIBOR + 2.25%

HIBOR: Hong Kong Inter-bank Offer Rate

Interest rates are subject to change if the Compkefigults on the amounts due under the facilitylaws in excess of the facil
amounts or at the discretion of the banks and rénoge 4% to 6% in addition to the United States &lwhg Kong Prime Rates, respectively.

All the balances above are due within one year.
A change in the interest rate of 1% will increaseecrease the interest expense of the Company®&p&3.

For further information concerning our banking fiieis, the interest rates payable and repaymentseplease see Note 8 to
Consolidated Financial Statements included elsesvimethis Annual Report.

Foreign Currency Exchange Rates

For a discussion of our Foreign Currency Exchangek,RSee Item 5. Operating and Financial Review and Prospé&eoreigr
Currency Exchange Rates.”

Item 12. Description of Securities Other Than Equy Securities
Not applicable.
PART Il
Item 13. Defaults, Dividend Arrearages and Delingancies
None.
Item 14. Material Modifications to the Rights of ®curity Holders and Use of Proceeds

None.
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Iltem 15. Controls and Procedures

The Company’management, with the participation of its Chiek&utive Officer and the Chief Financial Officegntiucted a
evaluation of our disclosure controls and procesluas defined in paragraph (e) of Rule 13a-15 drlEunder the Exchange Act , as of Mk
31, 2009.

Based on this evaluation, Anth&uy the Chief Executive Officer, and Albert So, @g&ef Financial Officer, have concluded tha
of March 31, 2009, the Compamydisclosure controls and procedures were effettiyrovide reasonable assurance that informagquirec
to be disclosed by the Company in reports it filesubmits under the Exchange Act is recorded,qzsed, summarized and reported withir
time periods specified in the rules and forms ef 8£C, and included controls and procedures designensure that information required tc
disclosed by the Company in such reports is accatadland communicated to the Company’s managernmehiding the Companyg’ Chie
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, gspeopriate, to allow timely decisions regardinguieed disclosure.

Management's Report on Internal Control over Finandal Reporting

Management of the Company is rasfiide for establishing and maintaining adequaterival control over financial reporting,
such term is defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a}l&fd 15d-15(f). The Comparsyinternal control over financial reporting is aopes
designed to provide reasonable assurance regatténigliability of financial reporting and the pegption of financial statements for exte
purposes in accordance with applicable generaltgpted accounting principles. A compasirternal control over financial reporting inclg
those policies and procedures that (1) pertaihearaintenance of records that, in reasonablel dataurately and fairly reflect the transacti
and dispositions of the assets of the Companypr@)ide reasonable assurance that transactioneeoeded as necessary to permit prepar
of financial statements in accordance with gengi@dtcepted accounting principles, and that recaiptsexpenditures of the Company are k
made only in accordance with authorizations of ngen@ent and directors of the Company; and (3) pev@hsonable assurance regar
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized dsiion, use or disposition of the compasyssets that could have a material effect o
financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, interoahtrol over financial reporting may not preventetect misstatements. Also, projecti

of any evaluation of effectiveness to future pesiagde subject to the risk that controls may becoadequate because of changes in cond
or that the degree of compliance with the policeprocedures may deteriorate.
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The Company’s management has evaluated thetigéfaess of the Compargyinternal control over financial reporting as cafdh 31
2009 based upon criteria established in Internait®@b Integrated Framework issued by the Commitie&ponsoring Organizations of
Treadway Commission. Based on the assessment, dhedhys management, including its Chief Executive Offieexd Chief Financi
Officer, concluded that, as of March 31, 2009, @menpany'’s internal control over financial reportings effective based on these criteria.

This Annual Report does not ineuah audit report of the Compasyindependent registered public accounting firmareinc
internal controls over financial reporting. Managat's report was not subject to audit by the Camypmindependent registered pu
accounting firm pursuant to rules of the SEC tratpit the Company to provide only management's meipahis Annual Report.

Remediation of Material Weaknesses in Internal Combl Over Financial Report Identified in Fiscal 2008

In our annual report on Form Zfor the year ended March 31, 2008, our manageidentified a material weakness in our inte
control over financial reporting which related tongufficient complement of people with an appratwilevel of knowledge, experience
training in the application of GAAP and in interreantrol over financial reporting commensurate vathr financial reporting requirements.
such, the Company hired a qualified accountant extensive experience in public company accourtiperations in March 2008. Also, ¢
internal training sessions for our accounting pensb assured that our financial statements foyta ended March 31, 2009, were prep
accordingly to GAAP.

In our annual report on Form ZOfor the year ended March 31, 2008, our manageidentified a material weakness in our inte
control over financial reporting which related tovéntory accounting and valuation. We had perfarmeviews and ensured that the
realizable value (NRV) calculation to reflect cuntrenarket conditions were effective.

In our annual report on Form Z0for the year ended March 31, 2008, our manageidentified a material weakness in our inte
control over financial reporting which related towome tax accounting and valuation. Our qualiiedount hired in March 2008, perforn
reviews and ensured that our tax accounts and t@tuaere accurate and disclosures of the incoméadhilities were fully addressed.

We believe that the foregoing corrective actiorohesd the material weaknesses that existed as o€iMzl, 2008, and that as
March 31, 2009, it was no longer reasonably possibat our financial statements will be materiattysstated. Accordingly, as statec
managemens report on internal control over financial repogtiincluded above, we have concluded that our niatecontrol over financi
reporting was effective as of March 31, 2009.
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Changes in internal controls over financial reportng

Other than as disclosed above, there were no changbe Company internal controls over financial reporting durihg year ende
March 31, 2009 that has materially affected oe@spbnably likely to materially affect our intergahtrol over financial reporting.

Item 16. Reserved
Item 16A. Audit Committee Financial Expert

Henry F. Schlueter, the Company’s outside secsritieunsel, may not be deemed to be “independeittiin the definition o
“independence” published by NASDAQ. Mr. Schluetedeemed to be a financial expert.

Iltem 16B. Code of Ethics

We have adopted a code of ethias dpplies to our Chief Executive Officer and Chi@fancial Officer. We intend to disclose .
changes in, or waivers from, our code of ethicsfiliygg a Form 6K. Stockholders may request a free copy in praortnf from our Chie
Financial Officer at:

Bonso Electronics International, Inc.
Unit 1915-1916, 19/F, Delta House
3 On Yiu Street, Shek Mun
Shatin, N. T.
Hong Kong
Item 16C. Principal Accountant Fees and Services
Audit Committee’s pre-approval policies and procedue
The Audit Committee must pre-approve the audit moad-audit services performed by the independent auditarder to assure tt
the provision of such services does not impairaiditor's independence. Before the Company oohitg subsidiaries engage the indepen
auditor to render a service, the engagement musitter:
(1) specifically approved by the Audit@®amittee; or
(2) entered into pursuant to this Prepgl Policy.

The term of any pre-approval is 12 months from diage of preapproval, unless the Audit Committee specificaltpyides for
different period. The Audit Committee may periaalig revise the list of pre-approved services.

The Audit Committee may delegate m@pproval authority to one or more of its memberee member or members to whom ¢
authority is delegated shall report any pmproval decisions to the Audit Committee at itstrseheduled meeting. The Audit Committee
not delegate to management the Audit Committesfsoresibilities to pre-approve services performedhgyindependent auditor.
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The Audit Committee must specifically papprove the terms of the annual audit servicesgamgant. The Audit Committee st
approve, if necessary, any changes in terms raguttbm changes in audit scope, Company structucgieer matters. In addition to the anr
audit services engagement approved by the Auditr@itiee, the Audit Committee may grant @peproval for other audit services, which
those services that only the independent auditmarably can provide.

The Audit Committee may grant pre-approval to thpsamissible noraudit services classified as other services thaglieves woul
not impair the independence of the auditor, ingigdhose that are routine and recurring services.

The Audit Committee may consider the amount or eamigestimated fees as a factor in determining hdre proposed service wo
impair the auditor's independence. Where the AGditnmittee has approved an estimated fee for dacserthe preapproval applies to
services described in the approval. However, édhient the invoice in respect of any such seridamaterially in excess of the estime
amount or range, the Audit Committee must appraeh £xcess amount prior to payment of the invoitiee Audit Committee expects t
any requests to pay invoices in excess of the agtitnamounts will include an explanation as tortfeson for the overage. The Company’
independent auditor will be informed of this policy

The Companys management shall inform the Audit Committee afheservice performed by the independent auditosyant to thi
PreApproval Policy. Requests or applications to pdevservices that require separate approval by tidit AZommittee shall be submittec
the Audit Committee by both the independent auditwat the Chief Financial Officer and must includeiat statement as to whether, in tl
view, the request or application is consistent wvtfitt SECS and the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bqahdited States)'s rules
auditor independence.

The audit fee indicated below was pre-approvechbyAudit Committee before the auditor commence therk.
Audit Fees

The aggregate fees billed by Moore Stephens fdiepsional services rendered for the audit of thep@@tions annual consolidat
financial statements for the fiscal year ended M&dt, 2009 was $205,000 and the aggregate feesl liilf PricewaterhouseCoopers for
audit of the Company’s annual consolidated findrst@ements for the fiscal year ended March 30820as $371,538.
Audit Related Fees

There were no fees billed by Moore Stephens oreRraterhouseCoopers for professional services redder assurance and rele
services provided by PricewaterhouseCoopers thad weasonably related to the performance of thét aumd are not reported above ur

“Audit Fees” for the fiscal year ended March 3102@nd for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008.
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Tax Fees

The aggregate fees billed by PricewaterhouseCodpensrofessional services rendered for tax conmgéafor the fiscal year enc
March 31, 2009 were $59,190 and $91,317 for theafiyear ended March 31, 2008. There were no lbdiexi by Moore Stephens |
professional services rendered for tax compliangend the fiscal year ended March 31, 2009 and 2008

ltem 16D. Exemptions from the Listing Standards fo Audit Committees

Pursuant to NASDAQ Marketplace Rule 4350(a), aifpreprivate issuer may follow its home country piee in lieu of Rule 435!
which sets forth the qualitative Listing Requirensefor NASDAQ listed companies. Rule 4350 requi®mong other things, that a lis
company have at least three members on its auditmittee. The Company currently has an audit cotemitonsisting of one director whe
deemed to be “independerats defined in NASDAQ Marketplace Rule 4200. Then@any has obtained a written statement from indege
counsel in the British Virgin Islands certifyingaththe Company corporate governance practices relating to tglesimember audit committ
is not prohibited by British Virgin Island law. &&NASDAQ Exemptions and Home Country Practices.”

Iltem 16E. Purchasers of Equity Securities by theskuer and Affiliated Purchasers

In August of 2001, the CompanytaRl of Directors authorized a program for the Canypto repurchase up to $500,000 o
common stock. This repurchase program does nagaiblthe Company to acquire any specific numbeshafres or acquire shares over
specified period of time. No stocks had been repagsed up to March 31, 2006. On November 16, 20@6Company's Board of Direct
authorized an additional $1,000,000 for the Compsangpurchase of its common stock under the samealegse program. This authoriza
to repurchase shares increased the amount autthdozeepurchase from $500,000 to $1,500,000. myuthe fiscal year ended March
2007, 260,717 shares valued at $1,328,560 werdnased under this program. No shares were repwedttaging the fiscal year ended Me
31, 2008. During the fiscal year ended March 30X 70,019 shares valued at $133,765 were purdhasder this program. The Comp.
may from time to time repurchase shares of its Com®tock under this program.
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Iltem 16F. Changes in Registrant's Certifying Accontants.

On March 27, 2009, Pricewaterh@gsepers (“PwC”) resigned as the Companiyidependent registered public accountants. D
the Companys two most recent fiscal years and during any syuesa interim periods preceding the date of tertionanone of the reports
PWC contained any adverse opinion, or disclaimepmhion, or was qualified or modified as to unaérty, audit scope or account
principles.

During the Comparsytwo most recent fiscal years and during any sylesa interim periods preceding the date of tertionather:
were no disagreements with PwC on any matter obwading principles or practices, financial statemdisclosure or auditing scope
procedure, which disagreement(s), if not resolvedPWC's satisfaction, would have caused them to refeth& subject matter of t
disagreement(s) in connection with their report] #rere were no "reportable events" as definedeim [304 (a)(1) of the SEC’s Regulation S-

As of March 27, 2009, the Compangaged Moore Stephens as its independent regigtaldic accounting firm for the fiscal y¢
ended March 31, 2009. During the most recent twcaf years, neither the Company nor anyone engageits behalf has consulted w
Moore Stephens regarding: (i) either the applicatibaccounting principles to a specified transatteither completed or proposed, or the
of audit opinion that might be rendered on the Regnt's financial statements; or (ii) any matteattwas either the subject of a disagree
(as defined in Item 304(a)(1)(iv) or (v) of Regidat S-K).
PART Il

Iltem 17. Financial Statements
Not applicable.
Item 18. Financial Statements

The following Financial Statements are filed ag pathis Annual Report:

Page:
Reports of Independent Registered Public Accourfings F-1 through I-2
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of March 31, 2002609 F-3
Consolidated Statements of Operations and Compsaleemcome (Loss) for the years ended March 30720 =
2008 and 2009
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholé@epgity for the years ended March 31, 2007, 29038 F5
2009
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the yeaded March 31, 2007, 2008 and 2009 F-6
Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme F-7 through |-41
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Bonso Electronics International Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balaheet of Bonso Electronics International Ina aubsidiaries (the “Companyds o
March 31, 2009, and the related consolidated sttésnof operations, changes in stockholdexity, and cash flows for the year t
ended. These consolidated financial statementthareesponsibility of the Comparsymanagement. Our responsibility is to expresspaman
on these consolidated financial statements basedioaudit. We also have audited the adjustments to the Mat¢l2008 and 2007 financ
statements to retrospectively apply the accounfiimgliscontinued operations as described in Note Ih2our opinion, such adjustments
appropriate and have been properly applied. We=wet engaged to audit, review, or apply any procesito the March 31, 2008 and 2
financial statements of the Company other than vétipect to the adjustments and, accordingly, wead@xpress an opinion or any other f
of assurance on the March 31, 2008 and 2007 finhatatements taken as a whole.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stededof the Public Company Accounting Oversightf8g@nited States). Those stand:
require that we plan and perform the audit to ebtaasonable assurance about whether the consalifiaincial statements are free of mat
misstatement. The Company is not required to hawee, were we engaged to perform, an audit of iterival control over financi
reporting. Our audit included consideration ofemmial control over financial reporting as a basis designing audit procedures that
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for thepses of expressing an opinion on the effectisemd the Compang’internal control ov
financial reporting. Accordingly, we express nalswpinion. An audit includes examining, on a tessis, evidence supporting the amo
and disclosures in the consolidated financial statgs. An audit also includes assessing the atioguprinciples used and signific:
estimates made by management, as well as evaludten@verall financial statement presentation. Vééielbe that our audit provides
reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetaeeferred to above present fairly, in all mater@spects, the consolidated financial pos
of the Company as of March 31, 2009 and the resiltheir operations and cash flows for the yhan ended in conformity with account
principles generally accepted in the United Stafesmerica.

/s/ Moore Stephens

Moore Stephens

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong,

October 20, 2009
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

To Board of Directors and Stockholders of BonsacEtmics International Inc.:

In our opinion, the consolidated balance sheef &aoch 31, 2008 and the related consolidated statgs of loss and comprehensive loss, of
cash flows and of stockholders' equity for eactwaf years in the period ended March 31, 2008, leetioe effects of the adjustments to
retrospectively reflect the discontinued operatidescribed in Note 12, present fairly, in all miaterespects, the financial position of Bonso
Electronics International Inc. and its subsidiaaée$/arch 31, 2008, and the results of their op@natand their cash flows for each of the two
years in the period ended March 31, 2008, in coniigrwith accounting principles generally accepiethe United States of America (the 2!
financial statements before the effects of the gidjents discussed in Note 12 are not presentethhefaese financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company's management. Ospaasibility is to express an opinion on theserfoial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits, before the effects of thastdjents described above, of these statementsdmdence with the standards of the Public
Company Accounting Oversight Board (United Stat@®)ose standards require that we plan and perfioenaudit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statemeatsese of material misstatement. An audit incluebeamining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the ishstatements, assessing the accounting prirscied and significant estimates made by
management, and evaluating the overall financé&éstent presentation. We believe that our auditgighe a reasonable basis for our opinion.

As discussed in Notes 1(p) and 9(h) to the conat@idi financial statements, effective from Aprik007, the Company adopted FASB
Interpretation No. 48, "Accounting for Uncertaintylncome Taxes - An Interpretation of FASB Statati¢o. 109."

We were not engaged to audit, review, or apply@egedures to the adjustments to retrospectivélgatethe discontinued operations
described in Note 12, and accordingly, we do nptess an opinion or any other form of assurancetalthether such adjustments are
appropriate and have been properly applied. Thdgestments were audited by other auditors.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers
PricewaterhouseCoopers
Hong Kong

November 14, 200

F-2




Bonso Electronics International Inc.
Consolidated Balance Sheets
(Expressed in United States Dollars)

Note
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivale
Trade receivables, n 2
Inventories 3
Income tax recoverab
Other receivables, deposits and prepaynr
Helc-to-maturity investment 4
Current assets of discontinued operati 12
Total current asse
Deferred income tax asset 9
Goodwill 7
Brand name and other intangible assets, n¢ 7
Other non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Buildings
Plant and machinel
Furniture, fixtures and equipme
Motor vehicles
Less: accumulated depreciation and impairr
Property, plant and equipment, 5
Non-current assets of discontinued operations 12
Total assets
Liabilities and stockholders’ equity
Current liabilities
Bank overdraft— securec 8
Notes payabl 8
Accounts payabl
Accrued charges and depo:
Income tax liabilities 9
Current portion of capital lease obligatic 1C
Current liabilities of discontinued operatic 12
Total current liabilities
Capital lease obligations, net of current portior 10
Income tax liabilities 9
Deferred income tax liabilities 9

Commitments 11

March 31
2008 2009
$ $

9,653,99. 8,043,53!
2,653,88I 1,084,75!
8,446,90. 6,284,29:
406,86 987,44
2,643,93 837,19:
- 1,000,001
7,191,97! 3,813,69
30,997,54 22,050,92
21,77¢ -
4,118,57! 4,008,14
155,12! -
9,958,52! 9,567,35.
19,690,13 19,972,37
3,228,58! 3,276,31;
491,49( 447 ,79:
33,368,73 33,263,83
(27,425,53) (29,889,58)
5,943,19 3,374,25.
549,62¢ 5,702
41,785,84 29,439,02
300,19: 385,51
3,863,46! 1,361,78
5,366,13: 3,103,50;
2,276,87. 2,004,84.
6,88¢ 6,88¢
176,93( 130,20:
6,107,27. 5,787,09!
18,097,75 12,779,83
183,76: 51,97:
2,595,13! 2,595,13!
4.,46( 14,16:



Stockholders equity
Common stock par value $0.003 per st
- authorized share- 23,333,33¢
- issued shares: 5,577,6
Additional paic-in capital

Treasury stock at cost: 20— 260,717 shares; 20(- 330,736 share

Accumulated defici
Accumulated other comprehensive incc

Total liabilities and stockholde' equity

See notes to these consolidated financial statesment
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16,72¢ 16,72¢
21,764,78 21,764,78
(1,328,56)  (1,462,32)
(1,129,81)  (8,714,23)
1,581,59: 2,392,96
20,904,73 13,997,92
41,785,84 29,439,02




Bonso Electronics International Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehsive Income
(Expressed in United States Dollars)

Year ended March 3:

2007 2008 2009
Note $ $ $

Net sales 19 48,272,38 45,495,62 40,378,19
Cost of sales (40,304,10)  (43,628,62)  (34,707,29)
Gross profil 7,968,28! 1,867,00: 5,670,90!
Selling expense (874,34 (720,209 (649,37)
Salaries and related co: (3,016,59) (3,540,78)) (3,776,84)
Research and development exper (983,179 (883,309 (792,07)
Administration and general expen: (1,655,28) (3,350,88) (4,601,87)
Amortization of brand nam 7 (200,001) (200,001) -
Impairment of goodwil 7 (842,82) -
Impairment of brand nan 7 (1,597,39) -
Impairment of share investme 7 (200,000) -
Profit (loss) from operatior 19 1,238,89: (9,468,38) (4,149,26)
Gain from disposal of a subsidie - 363,41:
Interest incom: 309,44 198,25! 126,54
Interest expense (122,789 (448,372 (209,269
Foreign exchange lo: (192,77¢) (431,05) (278,94,
Gain on disposal of proper 3,123,98. 162,68:
Other income (expense (235,509 592,52: 706,54
Waiver of loan to subsidiarie - - (3,690,59)
Waiver of loan to subsidiaries held for s - - (2,180,77)
Profit (loss) before income tax 997,27 (6,433,050 (9,149,66)
Income tax (expense) benefit 9 (910,609 340,68( (208,00:)
Gain (loss) from continuing operatio 86,66: (6,092,371 (9,357,670
(Loss) gain from discontinued operations, net ®f 12 (1,457,60) (2,457,54) 1,773,251
Net loss (1,370,94) (8,549,91) (7,584,41)
Other comprehensive income, net of
Foreign currency translation adjustments, net>f ta 227,38 567,43 811,36¢
Comprehensive loss (1,143,55) (7,982,47) (6,773,041
Earnings (loss) per sha
Weighted average number of sha 18 5,577,63! 5,5677,63! 5,577,63¢
Basic and dilute:

-Continuing operation 0.01 (2.09) (1.6¢)

-Discontinued operations (0.26) (0.49) 0.32

(0.25) (1.5%) (1.36)

See notes to these consolidated financial statesment
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Balance, March 31, 20(

Net loss

Shares repurcha:

Dividends paic

Foreign exchang
translation adjustment

Balance, March 31, 2007

Cumulative effect o
adoption of FIN 4¢

Net loss

Foreign exchang
translation adjustment

Balance, March 31, 2008

Net loss

Shares repurcha

Foreign exchang
translation adjustment

Balance, March 31, 2009

Bonso Electronics International Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholdergquity
(Expressed in United States Dollars)

Common stocl Treasury stocl Accumulate:
othel
Retainer comprehensiv
income-
Additional earnings foreigr Total
Share Amount paic-in Share Amouni (Accumulate: currenc' shareholder
Issue( outstandir capita helc outstandin deficit) adjustment equity
$ $ $ $ $
5,577,63! 16,72¢ 21,764,78 - - 11,234,00 786,77(  33,802,29
- - - - - (1,370,94) - (1,370,94)
260,717 (1,328,56) - - (1,328,561
- (278,88 - (278,88
- - - - - - 227,38¢ 227,38¢
5,577,63! 16,72¢ 21,764,78 260,71 (1,328,561 9,584,18. 1,014,15¢  31,051,29
- - - - - (2,164,08) - (2,164,08)
- - - - - (8,549,91) - (8,549,91)
- - - - - - 567,43¢ 567,43¢
5,577,63! 16,72¢ 21,764,78 260,71 (1,328,561 (1,129,81) 1,581,59¢  20,904,73
- - - - - (7,584,41) - (7,584,41)
- - - 70,01¢ (133,76%) - - (133,76%)
- - - - - - 811,36¢ 811,36¢
5,577,63! 16,72¢ 21,764,78 330,73t (1,462,32) (8,714,23) 2,392,96/  13,997,92

See notes to these consolidated financial statesment
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Bonso Electronics International Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(Expressed in United States Dollars)

Year Ended March 3:

2007 200¢ 200¢
$ $ $
Cash flows from operating activities
Net loss (1,370,94) (8,549,91) (7,584,41)
Loss/(income) from discontinued operatic 1,457,60. 2,457,54. (1,773,25)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash piexviby operating activitie
Depreciatior 2,232,321 2,188,701 2,281,68!
Amortization 289,42( 293,53t 171,67
Waiver of loan to subsidiarie - 3,690,591
Waiver of loan to subsidiaries held for s - - 2,180,77!
Gain on disposal of a subsidie - - (363,44)
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipmbioté 5) (54,409 (3,123,98) (162,68)
Inventory allowanct 261,24 2,184,841 559,24(
Bad debt allowanc - 633,54! 1,959,41
Impairment of investment properti 5,41¢ - -
Impairment of goodwil - 842,82: -
Impairment of brand narr - 1,597,39: -
Impairment of investment in a private comp. - 200,00t -
Others 11,63¢ 141,68. (13,099
Changes in assets and liabiliti
Trade receivable (525,69 1,476,30! (390,28)
Other receivables, deposits and prepaym (1,049,83) (956,13) 1,806,74!
Inventories (1,919,85) 913,93! 1,603,37!
Deposits 188,52! (155,12 155,12!
Income tax recoverab 181,27t (404,74, (580,58¢)
Accounts payabl (556,25() 330,46: (2,262,63))
Accrued charges and depos (229,95) 629,74¢ (272,03()
Notes payabls 425,85! 126,93¢ (2,501,67)
Income tax payabl 814,37 (376,439 -
Deferred ta: 3,76¢ (89,779 31,47¢
Operating activities of continuing operatic 164,50( 361,33 (1,463,99)
Operating activities of discontinued operations 1,251,74. (1,172,37)) (352,96()
Net cash generated from (used in) operating aitsvit 1,416,24. (811,03) (1,816,95)
Cash flows from investing activities

Proceeds from disposal of a subsidi - - 1

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant andmgent and land use righ 173,58: 4,875,51. 563,71¢

Acquisition of property, plant and equipm (293,29) (2,558,72) (71,53%)

Acquisition of hel-to-maturity investment (200,000 - (1,000,001

Proceeds from investment 559,49! -

Investing activities of continuing operatia (319,71)) 2,876,28 (507,819

Investing activities of discontinued operatic (48,815 (124,72()

Net cash generated from (used in) investing a@s (368,52) 2,751,56! (507,819
Cash flows from financing activities

Repurchase of common stoc (1,328,560 - (133,76Y

(Repayment of) loan from lo-term borrowings (41,137 301,43 -

Capital lease paymer (71,077 (95,729 (178,519

Payment of dividends to stockhold: (278,88)

Net (repayment of) advance from banking facsi 59,25¢ - 85,32:
Financing activities of continuing operatic (1,660,39) 205,70t (226,96
Financing activities of discontinued operations 95,054 (376,086 299,48
Net cash (used in) generated from financing agtis (1,565,33) (170,379 72,51¢




Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equis
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and casvaéents held in foreign currenci
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of )

Less: cash and cash equivalents at the end ofdw— discontinued operatior
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the yeamtinuing operations

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow informatior
Cash paid during the year fc

Interest paic

Income tax paid, net of refur

Non-cash investing and financing activiti
Property, plant and machinery acquired ur
Capital lease
Interest Incom
Provision for FIN 48 uncertain tax positions upaloption at April 1, 200°

(517,62 1,770,15 (2,252,25)
53,38¢ 307,18 767,32
8,582,25 8,118,01. 10,195,36
8,118,01: 10,195,36 8,710,42
(526,61) (541,37) (666,89)
7,591,40 9,653,99 8,043,53
614,26¢ 692,23 475,12
37,32 155,97« 4,90z
188,71 374,19 -
312,76 139,23¢ 179,58:
2,164,08 -

See notes to these consolidated financial statesmen
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(@)

(b)

Bonso Electronics International Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Expressed in United States Dollars)

Description of business and significant accountingolicies

Bonso Electronics International In¢‘the Compan”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, tt*Grouf”) are engaged in the designi
manufacturing and selling of a comprehensive lihelectronic scales and weighing instruments, tal@ounication products a
other products

The consolidated financial statements have begraped in United States dollars and in accordante génerally accepted account
principles in the United States of America. Thepamation of consolidated financial statements negunanagement to make estim
and assumptions that affect the reported amourdssats and liabilities and disclosure of contihgesets and liabilities at the date
the consolidated financial statements and the tegoamounts of revenues and expenses during tloetirep periods. Significa
estimates made by management include provision® mgainst inventories and trade receivable, andahgtion of longived asset:
Actual results could differ from those estimar

The Group sustained operating losses in fiscalsyeaded March 31, 2008 and 2009, including a rest &6 $7,584,414 for the fisi
year ended March 31, 20(

Notwithstanding the operating losses sustainedhénlast two fiscal years, the accompanying conatdid financial statements hi
been prepared on a going concern basis. Managdméaves the Group will have sufficient working @¢apto meet its financir
requirements based upon their experience and #ssiessment of the Grogpprojected performance, credit facilities and liag
relationships

On November 1 2008, the Company disposed of allstieres of a wholly owned indirect subsidiary, Giarecision Scales Ir
(“Gram”), at a consideration of US$1. As a result, the figuof Gram are included as discontinued operaifees note 12) in tl
financial statement:

Pursuant to an agreement signed March 30, 2009 rt¢oHaushaltswaren GmbH & Co. K“Korone”), an indirect subsidiary of tl
Company, agreed to sell all of its major assetmy@tsing account receivables, inventories, intéllacproperty rights and toolings,
a third party purchaser at a consideration of ELJ889,681. The Group decided to liquidate Koroftarahe completion of tt
sale. As a result, the figures of Korona are idetlias discontinued operations (see note

The significant accounting policies are as follo

Principles of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include dbcounts of the Company and its subsidiaries aeftamination of intereompan
accounts and transactiol

Acquisitions of companies have been consolidatech fthe date on which control of the net assetsopedations was transferred to
Group.

Acquisitions of companies are accounted for usigpurchase method of accounting. Goodwill repitssire excess of the purch
cost over the fair value of assets acquired ledsliiies assumed of acquired compan

Cash and cash equivalent

Cash and cash equivalents are steary, highly liquid investments with original maitigs of three months or less. Cash equiva
are stated at cost, which approximates fair vakeabse of the shi-term maturity of these instrumen




(€)

(d)

(€)

(f)

Bonso Electronics International Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Expressed in United States Dollars)

Description of business and significant accountingolicies (Continued)
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cosdetermined on a first-in, firstut basis, or market. Costs of inventories inclpdechas
and related costs incurred in bringing the prodtwtgheir present location and condition. Markelueais determined by reference
the selling price after the balance sheet dateoom&nagement estimates based on prevailing madkeitons. The Compal
routinely reviews its inventories for their saldapiand for indications of obsolescence to detesnif inventory carrying values ¢
higher than market value. Some of the signifid@actors the Company considers in estimating theketavalue of its inventoris
include the likelihood of changes in market andtaoner demand and expected changes in market ffiocdts inventories. As «
March 31, 2008 and 2009 inventories were statethatket value which is lower than their costs by182,840 and $559,2¢
respectively

Trade receivables

Trade accounts receivable are recorded at the dadoamount, net of allowances for doubtful accowand sales returns. T
allowance for doubtful accounts is the Group’s ketimate of the amount of probable credit lossethé Groups existing trad
accounts receivable. Bad debt expense is includtte general and administrative expen

T he Group recognizes an allowance for doubtful redses to ensure accounts and other receivableatreoverstated due
uncollectibility. Allowance for doubtful receivadd is maintained for all customers based on atyaoiefactors, including the lenc
of time the receivables are past due, significamgtone events and historical experience. An additicellowance for individui
accounts is recorded when the Group becomes awatestmmers’ or other debtorsiability to meet its financial obligation, suchia
the case of bankruptcy filings or deterioration thre customer’s or other debtsroperating results or financial position
circumstances related to customers or debtors eha@stimates of the recoverability of receivablédshve further adjustec

Investments

Investment in a capital guaranteed fund is classifis hel-to-maturity and recorded at amortized cost, while &weent in a priva
company is recorded at cost less any impairmetitarconsolidated balance sheets. These investrasntubject to impairment te
(Note 4).

Deferred income taxes

Amounts in the consolidated financial statementated to income taxes are calculated using theciplies of SFAS No. 10
“Accounting for Income Taxes.'SFAS No. 109 requires recognition of deferred tasets and liabilities for the expected future
consequences of events that have been includdtifintancial statements or tax returns. Under ishod, deferred tax assets
liabilities are determined based on the temporéfgrénces between the financial reporting basi @x basis of assets and liabili
using enacted tax rates in effect for the year hictvthe differences are expected to reverse. réuaix benefits, such as net opere
loss carry forwards, are recognized as deferredsarts. Recognized deferred tax assets are telly@evaluation allowance if, bas
on the weight of available evidence, it is moreljkthan not that some portion or all of the defdrtax assets will not be realiz:
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(9)

(h)

(i)

0)

Bonso Electronics International Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(Expressed in United States Dollars)
Description of business and significant accountingolicies (Continued)
Brand name
Brand name acquired as part of the purchase ofmdss is capitalized based on the estimated &hirevas at the date of acquisi
and amortized using the straighlite method over the related estimated usefuldifé5 years. Brand name is assessed for impail
according to the policy described in note 1
Lease prepayments

Lease prepayments represent the cost of landigi#s in the People’s Republic of China (“PRQand use rights are carried at «
and amortized on a strai-line basis over the period of rights of 50 ye.

Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets represent taxi licemdgsh are stated at cost and are amortized ora@btdine basis over the related grar
useful life of 50 years, the shorter of the rentainierm of the license period or the expected udiééuto the Group. Taxi licens
entitle the Group to operate 5 taxis for 50 yearsShenzhen, PRC. The purpose of holding thesesigseis to generate additio
income.

Taxi licenses are assessed for impairment accotditige policy described in note 1(

Land use rights held by the Company are reclassffiem property, plant and equipment to intangiadset. They are stated at
and amortized on a strair-line basis over the granted useful life of 50 ye

Property, plant and equipment
0] Property, plant and equipment are stated at cestdecumulated depreciation. Leasehold land aitdirtys are depreciat
on a straightine basis over 15 to 50 years, representing tloetshof the remaining term of the lease or theeeigd usefi

life to the Group

(i) Other categories of property, plant andipment are carried at cost and depreciated usiagtraightine method over the
expected useful lives to the Group. The principaiial rates used for this purpose i

Plant and machiner - 10%
Furniture, fixtures and equipme - 20%
Motor vehicles - 20%
(iii) The cost of major improvements and bettermentapétalized, whereas the cost of maintenance aralreejs expensed in t

year incurred
(iv) Any gain or loss on disposal is included in the &idated Statements of Operations and Comprehehsiss.
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Bonso Electronics International Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Expressed in United States Dollars)

Description of business and significant accountingolicies (Continued)
Long-lived assets including goodwill and other acquireéhtangible assets

Longdived assets held and used by the Group and iftbngssets, excluding goodwill, are reviewed fopainment whenever evel
or changes in circumstances indicate that the igynamount of such assets may not be recoveralbite. Group evaluat
recoverability of assets to be held and used bypeawing the carrying amount of an asset to fututeunéiscounted cash flows to
generated by the asset. If such assets are coeditierbe impaired, the impairment loss is measigedthe amount by which t
carrying amount of the assets exceeds the faievallthe assets calculated using a discountedefuiash flows analysis. Provisions
impairment made on other lo-lived assets are disclosed in the Consolidate@®ts of Operations and Comprehensive L

Goodwill is subject to an annual impairment revielihe evaluation of goodwill for impairment invok/egwo steps: (1) t
identification of potential impairment by comparitige fair value of a reporting unit with its camgi amount, including goodwill a
(2) the measurement of the amount of goodwill lmssomparing the implied fair value of the repogtumit goodwill with the carryin
amount of that goodwill and recognizing a loss hg excess of the latter over the former. The Compaeasures fair value ba:
upon a discounted future cash flows analysis. @asethe assessment for the year ended March 3B, 20provision of $nil w:
made by the Group as an impairment of goodwill 2®B42,821; 2007: $nil

Capital and operating leases

Costs in respect of operating leases are chagaithst income on a straigliie basis over the lease term. Leasing agreemhist
transfer to the Group substantially all the besedibhd risks of ownership of an asset, are treateifl the asset had been purch:
outright. The assets are included in propertyntpland equipment (“capital leases’dnd the capital element of the lea:
commitments is shown as obligation under capit@lsés. The lease rentals are treated as consistingapital and intere
elements. The capital element is applied to redlneeutstanding obligation, and the interest el@ngecharged against profit so a
give a consistent periodic rate of charge on tiheaieing balance outstanding at each accountinggend. Assets held under cay
leases are depreciated over the useful lives aédlaévalent owned asse

Revenue recognitior

No revenue is recognized unless there is persuasidence of an arrangement, the price to the bigyered or determinable, delive
has occurred and collectibility of the sales pigesasonably assured. Revenue is recognized vitteearid risk of loss are transfer
to customers, which is generally the point at whpobducts are shipped to the customer from oulitiasi. Shipping costs billed to ¢
customers are included within revenue. Associatatiscare classified as part of cost of goods !

The Company provides to certain customers an adaititwo percent of the quantity of certain produmtdered in lieu of a warran
which are recognized as cost of sales when thesgupts are shipped to customers from our facilitiesaddition, certain produc
sold by the Company are subject to a limited prodwality warranty. The Company accrues for esttiancurred but unidentifi
quality issues based upon historical activity amdwn quality issues if a loss is probable and carrdasonably estimated. -
standard limited warranty period is one to threarge Quality returns, refunds, rebates and didsoare recorded net of sales at
time of sale and estimated based on past histllysales are based upon firm orders with fixedrierand conditions, which gener:
cannot be modified. Historically, we have not exgreced material differences between our estimat@dunts of quality returr
refunds, rebates and discounts and the actualtsesulall contracts, there is no price protectiwrsimilar privilege in relation to tl
sale of goods
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Bonso Electronics International Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Expressed in United States Dollars)

Description of business and significant accountingolicies (Continued)

Research and development cos

Research and development costs include salariéiesit and contractor fees that are directlyibtitable to the conduct of reses
and development progress primarily related to theetbpment of new design of products. Research dewelopment costs ¢
expensed in the financial period in which theyiaceirred.

Advertising

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred andnaheded within selling expenses. The advertisingts were $142,642, $119,:
and $53,673 for the years ended March 31, 20078 a6d 2009, respectivel

Income taxes

On April 1, 2007, the Company adopted Financial Aotting Standards Boar¢*FASB”) Interpretation No. 48“Accounting fo
Uncertainty in Income Taxes — An InterpretatiorF#{SB Statement No. 109¢gr FIN 48 (Note 9). FIN 48 clarifies the accountiiog
uncertainty in income taxes recognized in finanstatements in accordance with SFAS No. 109, “Antiog for Income Taxes.FIN
48 prescribes a recognition threshold and measureat&ibutes for the financial statement recogmitand measurement of a
position taken or expected to be taken in a tadrmetFIN 48 also provides guidance on derecognit@assification, interest a
penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclesand transition. Only tax positions that meet rih@re-likely-thannot recognitio
threshold at the effective date may be recognizecbatinue to be recognized upon adoption of FIN A8 Companys accountin
policy is to treat interest and penalties as coreptsof income taxe

Foreign currency translations

0] The Grouy's functional currency is the United States dolldre financial statements of foreign subsidiarieerghthe Unite
States dollar is the functional currency and whiekie certain transactions denominated in boited States dollar currenc
are translated into United States dollars at thehamge rates existing on that date. The translaifdiecal currencies in
United States dollars creates transaction adjussnehich are included in net loss. Exchange diffiees are recorded in
Statements of Operations and Comprehensive |

(i) The financial statements of foreign sulisites, where notdnited States dollar currencies are the functianetencies, ai
translated into United States dollars using exchaates in effect at period end for assets andlitiab and average exchar
rates during each reporting period for statemenbpérations. Adjustments resulting from translatmfnthese financii
statements are reflected as a separate compongmai@holde’ equity in accumulated other comprehensive incc
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Bonso Electronics International Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Expressed in United States Dollars)

1. Description of business and significant accountingolicies (Continued)
()  Stock options and warrants

Stock options have been granted to employees,tdigeand no-employee directors. Upon exercise of the optiortglder can acqui
share of common stock of the Company at an exeprise determined by the board of directors. Thigoog are exercisable basec
the vesting terms stipulated in the option agregmenplan

Effective April 1, 2006, the Company adopted 8fAS No. 123(R), “Share Based Paymeint”’accounting for its employee st
options. Under the provisions of SFAS No. 123(Rg Company is required to measure the cost of greplservices received
exchange for stockased compensation at the fair value of the awardfahe grant date. According to the modified gpexctive
application method, the Company applies SFAS N@(R2for: (1) new awards granted after April 1, 80@nd (2) any portion
awards that were granted after April 1, 1995 ancewmt vested by April 1, 2006. As the Company mtidl have any unvested stock-
based compensation as of April 1, 2006, the adoptibSFAS No. 123(R) did not have any impact on @@mpanys financia
statements

(s) Recent accounting pronouncement

In March 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 1“Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hegldintivities - an amendment
FASB Statement No. 133" (“SFAS No. 161"gFAS No. 161 requires disclosures of how and whyeatity uses derivati
instruments, how derivative instruments and reléiedged items are accounted for and how derivasteuments and related hed
items affect an entitg’ financial position, financial performance andhciews. SFAS No. 161 is effective for fiscal yedsginning
after November 15, 2008, with early adoption petedit We do not expect the adoption of SFAS No.tb8iave a material impact
our consolidated financial statemer

In April 2008, the FASB finalized Staff Positidwo. 142-3, “Determination of the Useful Life oftamgible Assets” (“FSP 142-B”
The position amends the factors that should beidered in developing renewal or extension assumptigsed to determine the us
life of a recognized intangible asset under SFAS N@, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Asset¥he position applies to intangil
assets that are acquired individually or with augref other assets and both intangible assets r@chin business combinations |
asset acquisitions. FSP 182s effective for fiscal years beginning after Bexber 15, 2008, and interim periods within thosed
years. The Company is in the process of assedsinignipact of the recent accounting pronouncen

In May 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 1“The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Bipres” (“SFAS No. 16”).
SFAS No. 162 defines the order in which accountgimigiciples that are generally accepted should evwed. SFAS No. 162
effective 60 days following the SE€approval of the Public Company Accounting Ovérsigoard (United States) amendment
AU Section 411, The Meaning of Present Fairly imfoomity with Generally Accepted Accounting Prinlgp. We do not expect t
adoption of SFAS No. 162 to have a material impacbur consolidated financial stateme!
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Bonso Electronics International Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Expressed in United States Dollars)

Description of business and significant accountingolicies (Continued)

Recent accounting pronouncements (Continuec

In May 2008, the FASB finalized Staff Position N&PB 14-1, “Accounting for Convertible Debt Instruments ThatyM2e Settled i
Cash upon Conversion (Including Partial Cash Swuttg)” (“FSP APB 14-1").The position clarifies that convertible debt ingtent:
that may be settled in cash upon conversion (inetugartial cash settlement) are not addressedRiy @pinion No. 14 Accounting
for Convertible Debt and Debt Issued with Stockdhase Warrants.” FSP APB 14further specifies that issuers of such instrus
should separately account for the liability and igg@omponents in a manner that will reflect thetitghs nonconvertible de
borrowing rate when interest cost is recognizeduhsequent periods. FSP APB 14s effective for financial statements issuec
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008, iatedim periods within those fiscal years. Astloé date of this annual report,
do not have any convertible debt instruments thet be settled in cash upon conversion, and FSP 2RBdoes not have any imp
on us.

In April 2009, the FASB issued FSP FAS No. 10&1d APB No. 28-1 Ihterim Disclosures about Fair Value of Finan
Instruments,” or FSP FAS No. 107-1 and APB No. 2&3P FAS No. 107-1 and APB No. 28-1 amend SFASIN@, ‘Disclosure
about Fair Value of Financial Instrumentsy’require disclosures about fair value of finahiriatruments for interim reporting peric
of publicly traded companies as well as in annirarfcial statements. In addition, the FSP amendB SRinion No. 28, Interim
Financial Reporting,to require those disclosures in summarized findiiciarmation at interim reporting periods. The FiSRffectiv¢
for interim periods ending after June 15, 2009hweiarlier adoption permitted for periods endingmafarch 15, 2009. The adoptior
FSP FAS No. 1C-1 and APB No. 2-1 has no material effect on the Comg’s financial statement

In April 2009, the FASB issued FSP FAS No. 118A2 FAS No. 124-2 “Recognition of Other-Than-Tenapp Impairments,’br FSF
FAS No. 115-2 and FAS No. 124-2. FSP FAS No. 1Em@ FAS No. 124-2 amend the other-thamporary impairment guidance
SFAS No. 115, “Accounting for Certain InvestmemsDebt and Equity Securitiesfor debt securities and the presentation
disclosure requirements of other-thi@mporary impairments on debt and equity securitiethe financial statements. FSP FAS
115-2 and FAS No. 122-are effective for interim and annual reportingiges ending after June 15, 2009, with early adm
permitted for periods ending after March 15, 2008e adoption of FSP FAS No. 115-2 and FAS No. 22¥s no material effect
the Compan’s financial statement

In April 2009, the FASB issued FSP No. 157-4 t&emining Whether a Market is Not Active and a Taction Is Not Distressedgt
FSP No. 157-4. FSP No. 157-4 clarifies when markegsilliquid or that market pricing may not actyakflect the “real”value of a
asset. If a market is determined to be inactive raadket price is reflective of a distressed priben an alternative method of pric
can be used, such as a present value techniqustitoate fair value. FSP No. 1%identifies factors to be considered w
determining whether or not a market is inactivePF®. 1574 would be effective for interim and annual perietsling after June 1
2009, with early adoption permitted for periods iegdafter March 15, 2009 and shall be applied peotipely. The adoption of F¢
No. 15%-4 has no material effect on the Comg’s financial statement
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Bonso Electronics International Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Expressed in United States Dollars)

Description of business and significant accountingolicies (Continued)
Recent accounting pronouncements (Continuec

In April 2009, the FASB issued FSP No. 141RAtc¢ounting for Assets Acquired and Liabilities Assed in a Business Combinat
That Arise from Contingencies,” or FSP No. 141R=$P No. 141R: amends the provisions in SFAS No. 141 (RevisedjHe initia
recognition and measurement, subsequent measureamehtaccounting and disclosures for assets andlitie arising fron
contingencies in business combinations. FSP No.Ri#leliminates the distinction between contractaad noneontractue
contingencies, including the initial recognitiondameasurement criteria in SFAS No. 141 (Revisenl),iastead carries forward m
of the provisions in SFAS No. 141 for acquired omgencies. FSP No. 141R-s effective for contingent assets and contir
liabilities acquired in business combinations fdrieh the acquisition date is on or after the fastual reporting period beginning
or after December 15, 2008. The Company is cugesnbluating the impact of the adoption of FSP Né1R-1 on its financie
statements

In May 2009, the FASB issued SFAS No. *Subsequent Even” or SFAS No. 165, which sets forth general standaf@scountin
for and disclosure of events that occur after thtafce sheet date but before financial statementésaued or are available to
issued. SFAS No0.165 is effective for interim or aalnfinancial periods ending after June 15, 200% @doption of SFAS No. 165 |
no material effect on the Comp¢'s financial statement

In June 2009, the FASB issued SFAS No. 166 “Aating for Transfers of Financial Asseteir amendment of FASB Statement
140,” or SFAS No. 166. SFAS No. 166 improves the relegarepresentational faithfulness and comparahilithe information that
reporting entity provides in its financial staterteeabout a transfer of financiassets; the effects of a transfer on its finanmieition
financial performance, and cash flows; and a tenesks continuing involvement, if any, in transferredaincial assets. SFAS No. :
is effective as of the beginning of each reporemgjty’s first annual reporting period that begins aftevémber 15, 2009, for inter
periods within that first annual reporting perioddafor interim and annual reporting periods thaexafThe Company is curren
evaluating the impact of the adoption of SFAS N&6 bn its financial statemen

In June 2009, the FASB issued SFAS No. 167 “Adneents to FASB Interpretation No. 46(Rpf SFAS No. 167, which amer
FASB Interpretation No. 46 (revised December 20033ddress the elimination of the concept of aifyat) special purpose enti
SFAS No. 167 also replaces the quantitabesed risks and rewards calculation for determimitich enterprise has a controll
financial interest in a variable interest entityttwan approach focused on identifying which enisgphas the power to direct
activities of a variable interest entity and thdigdtion to absorb losses of the entity or the righreceive benefits from the ent
Additionally, SFAS No. 167 provides more timely anseful information about an enterprisehvolvement with a variable inter
entity. SFAS No. 167 shall be effective as of tlegihning of each reporting entityfirst annual reporting period that begins
November 15, 2009, for interim periods within tHast annual reporting period and for interim andnaal reporting perio
thereafter. Earlier application is prohibited. Thempany is currently evaluating the impact of tdemion of SFAS No. 167 on
financial statement:

In June 2009, the FASB issued SFAS No. IB8"FASB Accounting Standards Codification andHierarchy of Generally Accept
Accounting Principles, a replacement of FASB StatetmNo. 162,"or SFAS No. 168, which establishes the FASB Acciog
Standards Codification as the source of authoriaticcounting principles recognized by the FASBeacapplied in the preparation
financial statements in conformity with generallgcapted accounting principles. SFAS No. 168 expligiecognizes rules a
interpretive releases of the Securities and Exch&@gmmission (“SEC"under federal securities laws as authoritative GASPSEC
registrants. SFAS No. 168 will become effective fiaancial statements issued for interim and anpeaiods ending after Septem
15, 2009.
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Bonso Electronics International Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Expressed in United States Dollars)
2. Allowance for doubtful accounts

Changes in the allowance for doubtful accounts atsar

2007 200¢ 200¢

$ $ $

Balance, April 1 74,90¢ - 633,54!

Write-off (74,909 - -

Additions charged to expen - 633,54! 1,959,41.

Balance, March 3 - 633,54! 2,592,95!

3. Inventories

The components of inventories are as follo

200¢ 200¢

$ $

Raw material 3,866,82 2,592,55I

Work in progres: 3,898,63 2,602,161

Finished good 681,43’ 1,089,57

8,446,90 6,284,29.

During the years ended March 31, 2007, 2008 an®,208sed upon material composition and expectegeyusaanagement wrote
obsolete inventories of $261,242, $2,184,840 anB9#=l0, respectively, which were charged to thesobidated statement

operations

4, Investments

Investments of $500,000 were related to a 7% zewupaen capital guaranteed fund with maturity on ®etoll, 2007 and .
investment in a private company principally engagedhe biochemistry industry in the United StatésAmerica. The purpose

holding the investments is to generate additiomedme.

The investment in the capital guaranteed fund nedtand was fully repaid in October 2007 for $558,

The private biochemistry company incurred contirsioperating losses and had a net liabilities positn the past two years. 1
Companys investment would be worthless without furtherdimg or merger; therefore, the Company providedaféull impairment c

this investment during the fiscal year ended M&th2008,

During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2009, Gmnpany invested in a oryear $1,000,000 bond through one of its banks.
maximum return from this investment would be $80,d6r 8%), and the investment matured in July 2689%$1,058,707. Tt

aggregate fair value at March 31, 2009 was $1,@8Bzid the unrecognised holding gain was $58,
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Bonso Electronics International Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Expressed in United States Dollars)

Property, plant and equipment, net

During the years ended March 31, 2007, 2008 an®,28@preciation expenses charged to the consdlidattements of operatic
amounted to $2,230,800, $2,188,700 and $2,281ré8f¢ectively. As at March 31, 2007, 2008 and 2018, depreciated assets t
were still in use by the Group amounted to $3,4453, 55,451,641 and $5,014,827, respecti\

During the year ended March 31, 2008, the Groug sok of its properties located in Hong Kong withed book value of $1,751,5
to a third party at a consideration of $4,875,508 made a gain of $3,123,983. During the yededrMarch 31, 2009, the Grc
sold one of its properties located in Hong Konghvwdtnet book value of $401,037 to a third partg abnsideration of $563,718 ¢
made a gain of $162,68
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Bonso Electronics International Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Expressed in United States Dollars)

Interests in subsidiaries
Particulars of principal subsidiaries as of Mardh 3008 and 2009 are as follov
Particulars c

issued capite
registered capit

Place of
incorporation and
kind of legal entity

Percentage of capi

Name of compan held bythe Compan Principal activities

200¢ 200¢
Bonso Electronics Limited Hong Kong, HK$5,000,00! 100% 100% Trading of scales and
* limited liability (US$641,02¢ telecommunication produc
(“BEL") company
Bonso Investment Limite Hong Kong, HK$3,000,00t 100% 100% Investment holdiny
(“BIL") limited liability (US$384,61¢
company
Bonso Electronics PRC, HK$97,519,77 100% 100% Production of scales and
(Shenzhen) Co. Limited limited liability (US$12,502,53! telecommunication produc
(“BESCL") company
Bonso Advance: Hong Kong, HK$1,000,00t 100% 100% Investment holdiny
Technology Limited *  limited liability (US$128,20%
(“BATL™) company
Bonso Advanced PRC, HK$13,853,72 100% 100% Investment holding
Technology (Xin Xing) limited liability (US$1,776,11¢
Limited company
(“BATXXL™)
Modus Enterprise British Virgin HK$7,80( 100% 100% Investment holding
International Inc. Island limited (US$1,000
(“MEN™) liability company
Korona Haushaltsware Germany EUR511,29 100% 100% Trading of scale
GmbH & Co. KG limited liability (US$795,48¢
(“Korong”) partnershi
Bonso USA, Inc. (“Bonso USA, limited US$ 1,00 100% 100% Trading of scales
USA”) liability company
Gram Precision Scales IncCanada, US$3,271 51% 0% Trading of scales
(“Gram™)# limited liability
company

* Shares directly held by the Compa

# Effective November 1, 2008, the Company disposkits entire interests in Gram for $1. As stipathtin the agreement,
Company agreed to forfeit an amount receivable faram of approximately $5,000,000, except for $@Q,800, Monthly paymer
of $10,000 were to be paid to the Company in tkensdnths from December 2008 to May 2009, and mgnphalyments of $20,0!

were to be paid from June 2009 until the full antaafrs1,700,000 was repai
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Bonso Electronics International Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Expressed in United States Dollars)
Goodwill, brand name and other intangible asse

Goodwill, brand name and other intangible assetsaalyzed as follow:

Goodwill Brand name Other intangible asse
March 31 March 31 March 31
2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009
$ $ $ $ $ $
Cost 842,82: 842,82: 3,000,00! 3,000,001 5,294,20! 5,374,76

Less: accumulated amortizati - - (1,402,60)  (1,402,60) (1,175,63) (1,366,620
Less: impairment loss for the ye (842,82) (842,82)  (1,597,39)  (1,597,39) - -

- - - - 4,118,57! 4,008,14

As of March 31, 2008, an impairment test was cdraet and there were indicators that the goodwslogiated with Gram might not
recoverable. These indicators, among others, declideclines in the current and projected operatérglts and cash flows in Gram,
the slowdown of the worldwide economies in the selcbalf of fiscal 2008 since the emergence of thiepeme related problen
Management evaluated the recoverability in accardamith SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other IntangibAssets” (SFAS No
142). Based on the analysis, management deterrttiaédoodwill of $842,821 associated with Gram ¥y impaired as of March 3
2008.

As of March 31, 2008, management noted declingbeéncurrent and projected operating results ant @as/s of Korona. Togeth
with certain other indicators, such as a drop lirggprices of Korona branded products, managemex# of the view that the carryi
value of the Korona brand name might not be reader and therefore performed an impairment review the bran
name. Management evaluated the recoverabilith@btand name in accordance with the requiremerdsruSFAS No. 142 and SF
No. 144,“Accounting for the impairment of long-lived assét8ased upon the analysis, management determinedhindtrand nan
value of $1,597,392 should be fully impaired as/afrch 31, 2008

Land use rights for factory lands held by the Comypm PRC were reclassified from property, pland @guipment to other intangil
assets during the fiscal years ended March 31, 2668009

Amortization expense in relation to brand name $280,000, $200,000 and $nil for the years endedcim&d, 2007, 2008 and 20
respectively

Amortization expense in relation to other intangibksets was $89,421, $99,121 and $171,677 the eded March 31, 2007, 2008
2009, respectively

As of March 31, 2009, future minimum amortizatioqpenses in respect of other intangible assetssaf@laws:

Year

2010 $ 136,06!
2011 136,06!
2012 136,06!
2013 136,06!
2014 136,06!
Thereaftel 3,327,82
Total 4,008,14

F-18




Bonso Electronics International Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Expressed in United States Dollars)

8. Banking facilities
As of March 31, 2009, the Group had general banfawdities for bank overdrafts, letters of credigtes payable, sh-term loans ar
longterm loans. The facilities are interchangeablenwital amounts available of $18,617,948 (2008:,925,074). The gene
banking facilities utilized by the Group are denoated in United States dollars, Hong Kong doll@anadian dollars and Eurc
The Group’s general banking facilities, expresseUnited States dollars, are further detailefodews:

Terms of banking

Amount available Amount utilized Amount unutilizec facilities as of
March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31, 200¢
2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 Interest  Repaymen
$ $ $ $ $ $ rate terms
Import and
export Facilities
Letters of credi 19,230,76' 12,564,10 3,863,46¢ 1,361,787 15,367,30¢ 11,202,31¢
Including sub-
limit of

HIBOR Repayablei
Notes payabl 17,564,10. 10,897,43 3,863,46¢ 1,361,787 13,700,63¢ 9,535,64¢ #+2.5%  full within
to +2.59% four months

Other facilities

. HIBOR +1.5%
Factoring 4,964,102 4,964,102 - - 4,964,102 4,964,102 to +2.25%
Prime rate
Bank overdrafts  1,786.204 1,089,744 300,192 385514 1,486,012 704,230  t0-5%10 1% Repayable

Or on demand
HIBOR+2.25¥%

25,981,07! 18,617,94 4,163,657 1,747,301 21,817,41¢ 16,870,64.

# HIBOR stands for Hong Kong Interbank Offering ®at
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Bonso Electronics International Inc.
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(Expressed in United States Dollars)
Banking facilities (Continued)

The United States Dollar equivalent amounts of banfacilities utilized by the Group are denomirthie the following currencies

Amount utilized

March 31
200¢ 200¢
$ $
Hong Kong dollar: 3,863,46! 1,747,30:
United States dollar 300,19: -

4,163,65 1,747,30:

The Prime Rate and HIBOR rate were 5.25% and 1.pdfannum, respectively, as of March 31, 2009. Htime Rate is determin
by the Hong Kong Bankers Association and is sulijecévision from time to time. Interest rates swbject to change if the Compi
defaults on the amount due under the facility amdrin excess of the facility amounts, or at tleedition of the bank:
Average amount of bank borrowings were $5,051,¥8B%4,597,818 for the years ended 2008 and 206fectvely.

The banking facilities are collateralized by gudeas of $4,322,196 (2008: $5,766,607) by a bankR&26vo banks), which in tu
received a fee from the Company for the provisibaueh collateralized guarante:

The weighted average interest rates of «term borrowings of the Group are as follo

Year ended March !

200¢ 200¢
Bank overdraft: 5.7¢% 5.7%
Notes payabli 3.3% 4.2%
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Bonso Electronics International Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Expressed in United States Dollars)

Taxation

The companies comprising the Group are subjeaxah an entity basis on income arising in or datifrom Hong Kong, the PR
Germany, the United States (“USAind Canada. The tax rate of the subsidiaries tipgran Hong Kong was 16.5% for the y
ended March 31, 2009 (2008 and 2007: 17.5%). Tbsidiary of the Group in Germany was registered partnership in Germai
which was subject to a statutory tax rate of 14.1#ng the three years ended March 31, 2009. Gitweip is not subject to incot
taxes in the British Virgin Islands. The statutte rates in Canada and the USA were 36% and 8d$pectively, for the three ye
ended March 31, 200

Hong Kong Ta»

BEL, BATL and BIL are subject to the Hong Kong pteftax rate of 16.5% (2008 and 2007: 17.5%). Managnt of BEL he
determined that all income and expenses are offsaind not subject to Hong Kong profits tax. Assulie BEL did not incur any Hot
Kong profits tax during the years presented. BATd. ot have any assessable profits for the yeaerdfore, no provision for taxati
has been made.

PRC Tax

BESCL is registered and operates in Shenzhen,R@ Bnd is subject to a tax rate of 20% and 18%hferyears ended December
2009 and 2008. BATXXL is registered in Xinxing, &gdong, PRC, and is entitled to an exemption fRRC income tax for tw
years starting from their first profitable yei‘the tax holiday”). As BATXXL has not yet commenced business, the w@idays hav
not yet startec

On March 16, 2007, the PRC Enterprise Income Taw, L@#he “EIT Law”), was enacted by the PRC government. The EIT
effective January 1, 2008, imposes a uniform ta& od 25% for both domestic and foreigrvested enterprises and revokes the
current tax exemption, reduction and preferenti@htiments applicable to foreigmvested enterprises. However, there is a tram
period for enterprises, whether foreignvested or domestic, that were receiving preféabmax treatments granted by relevant
authorities at the time the EIT Law became effectiynder the grandfathering rules of the EIT Lamtegprises that are subject tc
enterprise income tax (“EITHate lower than 25% will continue to enjoy lowetesawith gradual transition to the new tax rat@ 5%
in five years from the effective date of the ElTwL.aEnterprises that are currently entitled to exgéoms or reductions from t|
standard income tax rate for a fixed term may caito enjoy such treatment until the fixed terrpiess.

During the period from January 1, 2008 to March 109, the Compar's subsidiaries operating in the PRC were subjetidadElT
Law and a standard tax rate of 25% was adoptedtren®RC subsidiaries are entitled to the grandfath incentives. For the ye
ended December 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008, BECSLCtimepanys PRC subsidiary, was subject to a tax rate of 118% and 18%
respectively. BESCL will be subject to a tax rafe20%, 22% and 24% for the years ended Decembef@®19, 2010 and 201
respectively. BESCL will be subject to a uniforax rate of 25% for the year ended December 31, 20ti2he years afte
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Expressed in United States Dollars)

9. Taxation (Continued)
(c) Income is subject to taxation in the various caestm which the Company and its subsidiaries dperd@he loss before income ta
by geographical location is analysed as follo
2007 200¢ 200¢
$ $ $
Hong Kong 854,80° 849,19¢ (7,173,66)
PRC 1,303,30: (3,137,05) 443,81t
Others (1,160,83) (4,145,19) (2,419,82)
Total 997,27, (6,433,05) (9,149,66)
Others mainly include the profit (loss) from BVIdthe United State:
(d)
2007 200¢ 2009
$ $ $
Deferred income ta (802,629 31,47¢ (204,77°)
Current income tax (expense)/ benefit (107,98) 309,20: (3,226)
Total income tax (expense)/ benefit (910,609 340,68( (208,009

The components of the income tax (expense) bemefijeographical location are as follov

2007 200¢ 200¢

$ $ $

Hong Kong (836,94) 419,78 (204,77°)
PRC (126,61) (72,213 (3,22¢)
Others 52,95( (6,889) -
Total (910,609 340,68( (208,00
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Bonso Electronics International Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Expressed in United States Dollars)

Taxation (Continued)

(e)

2007 200¢ 200¢

$ $ $

Deferred income tax asst 87,63¢ 21,77¢ -

Deferred income tax liabilities (13,90 (4,460 (14,167)

73,73¢ 17,31¢ (14,169)

Deferred tax assets comprised the followi

2007 200¢ 200¢

$ $ $

Tax loss carry forward 1,167,98 2,997,13. $1,759,13!

Others 87,63¢ 21,77¢ -
Less: Valuation allowanc (1,167,98) (2,997,13) (1,759,13)

87,63¢ 21,77¢ -
Less: current portio - -

Nor-current portior 87,63¢ 21,77¢ -

As of March 31, 2007, 2008 and 2009, the Groupdmimulated tax losses amounting to $5,845,9986831130 and $7,052,368 (
tax effect thereon is $1,167,987, $2,997,132 an@d5®1135), respectively, subject to the approvaheftax authorities, which may
carried forward and applied to reduce future tagabicome which is earned in or derived from Hongngo and othe
countries. Realization of deferred tax assetscstul with tax loss carry forwards is dependemrugenerating sufficient taxal
income prior to their expiration. A valuation allance is established against such tax losses wheagement believes it is more lik
than not that a portion may not be utilized. AsMérch 31, 2009, the Group’accumulated tax losses have no definite peri
expiration, except for tax losses that expire ih2I

Changes in the valuation allowance consis

2007 200¢ 200¢

$ $ $

Balance, April 1 700,96¢ 1,167,988  2,997,13:
Charged/(credited) to income tax expense 467,02. 1,829,14! (1,237,99)
Balance, March 31 1,167,98  2,997,13 1,759,13!
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Expressed in United States Dollars)

9. Taxation (Continued)

() The actual income tax expense attributable to egsnfor the years ended March 31, 2007, 2008 a8 Afered from the amour
computed by applying the Hong Kong statutory ta® ia accordance with the relevant income tax lawa aesult of the following

2007 200¢ 200¢
$ $ $
(Loss) / income before taxatic 997,27 (6,433,050 (9,149,66)
Income tax (expense) credit on pretax income #abtsty rate (339,07) 2,187,23 3,110,88
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiary
operating in other jurisdictior 551,55 (357,009 (2,170,83)
Profit not subject to income te 154,34¢ 787,19: -
Expenses not deductible for income tax purpt (73,289 (753,69) (2,386,051
(Increase) decrease in valuation allowa (467,02) (1,829,14) 1,237,99
(Provision made)/ reversal of provision as a resttevelopment of ta
rules (737,139 306,09: -
Total income tax (expense) / credit (910,609 340,68( (208,00:)

(h)  Effective April 1, 2007, the Company adopted FIN 48 a result of the adoption of FIN 48, the Compaecognized a $1,169,7
increase in the liability for unrecognized tax bi#seand penalties of $994,310, which were accodifite as a reduction to the April
2007 balance of retained earnings. The Compargsaed the tax position during the fiscal year erdacch 31, 2009 and concluc

that the same tax liability was carried forwe

The Companys accounting policy is to treat interest and péemlis components of income taxes. As of Marct28@9, the Compal
had accrued penalties related to uncertain taxiposiof $994,31C

The Company files income tax returns in Hong Koting, PRC and various foreign tax jurisdictions. Ehare two subsidiaries whi
operate within each of the Compasiyhajor jurisdictions resulting in a range of opax years. The open tax years for the Compan
its significant subsidiaries range between fis@d®and fiscal 2009. The provisions made as dtretthese open tax cases are sul

to the final agreement with the tax authoriti
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Expressed in United States Dollars)

10. Leases
(a) Capital lease

Plant and machinery include the following amountsdapitalized lease

March 31
200¢ 200¢
$ $
Cost 661,37: 661,37:
Less: accumulated depreciati (364,029 (407,469
297,34! 253,90¢

During the years ended March 31, 2007, 2008 and®,20 Group entered into additional capital leabégations amounting

$154,983, $360,691 and $nil, respectivi

Future minimum payments under capital leases &aoth 31, 2009 with an initial term of more tharegrear are as follow:

Total minimum lease paymer
Less: amount representing inter

$

184,60:
(2,430)

Present value of net minimum lease payments (imeducurrent portion of $130,201 as of March
2009)

182,17:

Future minimum payments under capital lee

2010
2011

130,20:
51,97

182,17:

F-25
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Bonso Electronics International Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Expressed in United States Dollars)

Leases (Continued’

Operating lease

As of March 31, 2009, future minimum lease pagtaén respect of nonancellable operating leases for factory, officenpises ar
staff quarters in Hong Kong, the PRC, Germanyth#&ed States, the United Kingdom and Canada afellasvs:

$

2010 375,68
2011 142,80(

518,48:

Rental expense for all operating leases amountékB3d,758, $362,033 and $357,954 for the yearsceibrch 31, 2007, 2008 a
2009, respectively

Commitments

Capital expenditure contracted at the balance sheetot yet provided for is as follow

200¢ 200¢
$ $
Land use right 350, 75¢ 356,66:

In November 2006, the Group entered into a landrigde purchase agreement with Xinchen¢-Tech Industrial Estate to acquire
right to use a piece of land of approximately 148,6square meters for future expansion of productiapacity in XinXing ¢
GuangDong, PRC. The total consideration was $132B2, A deposit of approximately $610,000 was paiduly 2007, and the balar
was paid in October 2007. During the year endedcM&1, 2008, the Group prepaid $150,325 for thguisition of the right to us
another piece of land in XinXing at a total cons&®n of $501,083. This prepayment was classifisdother current assets in

consolidated balance sheet as of March 31, 2
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Bonso Electronics International Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Expressed in United States Dollars)

Discontinued Operations

On November 1, 2008, the Company disposed of itisecimterests in Gram to a third party for $1. &pulated in the agreement,
Company agreed to forfeit an amount receivable f@ram of approximately $5,000,000, except for $0,@00, of which month
payments of $10,000 was to be paid to the Compartizé six months from December 2008 to May 2009, monthly payments
$20,000 was to be paid from June 2009 until thiesfimlount of $1,700,000 was repa

On March 31, 2009, the Compasyserman subsidiary, Korona, sold its assets (atsgeceivable, inventories, toolings and inteliel
property rights) to a third party. Korona had mpeKations since April 1, 2009 and is now underitdgtion process

The following table summarizes the result of théiseontinued operations, net of income ta:

Discontinued Operations (Korona and Grz

2007 2008 2009
$ $ $

Sales 18,218,99 17,190,88  10,722,37
Cost of Sale: (13,642,22) (14,053,87) (11,218,72)

4,576,77 3,137,00: (496,35()
Selling expense (1,602,90) (1,760,29) (1,148,10)
Salaries and related co: (2,421,06) (2,240,46) (1,480,81)
Administrative expense (1,349,07) (1,285,66) (1,488,94)
Loss from water damage (700,95()
Operating los! (1,497,21) (2,149,41) (4,614,20)
Interest incomt 3,321 4,84¢ 53,03¢
Other income 537,77 87,60¢ 2,849,08
Gain on disposal of proper - (364,249 -
Interest expense (503,409 (244,629 (241,11)
Foreign exchange ga 8,824 214,81 44,71¢
Loan forgiveness from continuing operatic - - 3,690,591
Income tax expenst (6,907) (6,526) (8,860
Net (loss) incomi (1,457,60) _ (2,457,54) 1,773,25
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(Expressed in United States Dollars)

12. Discontinued Operations (Continued)

The carrying values of the assets and liabilitiethe disposal group classified as held for salatddarch 31, 2009 were as follov

March 31, March 31,

2008 2009

$ $
Assets:
Cash and bank balanc 541,37 666,89:
Trade receivable 2,610,18: 1,195,97.
Inventories 2,944,41! -
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments 1,095,991 1,950,83.
Current assets of discontinued operati 7,191,971 3,813,69
Property, plant and equipme 379,78 5,70¢
Deferred income tax asst 169,84: -
Non-current assets of discontinued operati 549,62¢ 5,70¢
Total assets of discontinued operations 7,741,591 3,819,40.
Liabilities:
Bank overdraft: 511,16: -
Short term bank loar 3,894,15! 3,935,191
Trade payable 619,26« 166,76¢
Accrued charges and depos 1,082,68 1,685,13!
Liabilities of discontinued operatiol 6,107,27. 5,787,09!
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Bonso Electronics International Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Expressed in United States Dollars)

Stockholders’ equity
Repurchase of common sto

In August of 2001, the Company's Board of Directughorized a program for the Company to repurcbase $500,000 of its comm
stock. This repurchase program does not obligageQbmpany to acquire any specific number of shareacquire shares over ¢
specified period of time. No stocks had been repased when, on November 16, 2006, the Company'slRddirectors authorized
additional $1,000,000 for the Company's repurctaséts common stock under the same repurchasergmogThis authorization
repurchase shares increases the amount authooizezbiuirchase from $500,000 to $1,500,000. TherdBof Directors believed that 1
common stock was undervalued, and that the repsiecbfscommon stock would be beneficial to the Camyfsashareholders. During
fiscal year ended March 31, 2007, 260,717 ($1,3%8,Shares were purchased under this program. Bi@shvere repurchased dui
the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008. During tkedi year ended March 31, 2009, 70,019 ($133,&es were purchased under
program. The Company may from time to time repasehshares of its common stock under this proc

Preferred stoc

The Company has authorized share capital of $1000@0,000,000 shares of preferred stock, withvpdue of $0.01 each, divided ii
2,500,000 shares each of class A preferred stdags 8 preferred stock, class C preferred stockckass D preferred stock. Shares
be issued within each class from time to time by @ompanys Board of Directors in its sole discretion withahé approval of tt
shareholders with such designations, power, preé@s rights, qualifications, limitation and restinns as the Board of Directors sl
fix and as have not been fixed in the Compariyemorandum of Association. The Company has sokeid any shares of preferred s
as of March 31, 200!

Dividends

No dividends were declared by the Company for edc¢he fiscal years ended March 31, 2007, 20082009, respectively. Dividen
of $278,882 were paid during the fiscal year endedch 31, 2007, fodividends declared for the fiscal year ended M&th2006
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Stock option and bonus plan:

On September 7, 2004, our stockholders adopted@fé Stock Bonus Plan (tI“Stock Bonus Pl¢”) which authorizes the issuance
up to five hundred thousand (500,000) shares o€ttrapan’s common stock in the form of stock bon

The purpose of this Stock Bonus Plan is to (i) scelkey employees to remain in the employment ofGbmpany, or of any subsidi:
of the Company; (ii) encourage such employees ¢arseor increase their stock ownership in the Compand (iii) reward employee
non-employee directors, advisors and consultants faticgs rendered, or to be rendered, to or for #ekit of the Company or any
its subsidiaries. The Company believes that StamkuB Plan will promote continuity of management enwdease incentive and persc
interest in the welfare of the Compai

The Stock Bonus Plan shall be administered by antittee appointed by the Board of Directors whicimsists of at least two but t
more than three members of the Board, one of whaati Be a noremployee of the Company. The existing Committeentrezs are M
Anthony So and Mr. Woding Fok. The Committee has the authority, irsdke discretion:(i) to determine the parties teceiree bonu
stock, the times when they shall receive such asydhg number of shares to be issued, and the tgmes and conditions of the issua
of any such shares; (ii) to construe and intérghre terms of the Stock Bonus Plan; (iii) tdabtish, amend and rescind rules

regulations for the administration of the Stock BsrPlan; and (iv) to make all other determinatioresessary or advisable

administering the Stock Bonus Pl:

On March 23, 2004, our stockholders adopted2fi@! Stock Option Plan (the “2004 Planthich provides for the grant of up to
hundred thousand (600,000) shares of the Compaegyrnmon stock in the form of stock options, subjeccertain adjustments
described in the Pla

The purpose of the 2004 Plan is to secure key grapbto remain in the employment of the Companytarahcourage such employ
to secure or increase on reasonable terms theimoonstock ownership in the Company. The Compatig\®s that the 2004 Pl
promotes continuity of management and increaseshiinge and personal interest in the welfare ofGbenpany

The 2004 Plan is administered by a committee appaiby the Board of Directors which consists ofeast two but not more than th
members of the Board, one of whom shall be a emaployee of the Company. The current committee begsare Anthony So a
Woo-Ping Fok. The committee determines the specifit$eof the options granted, including the employtedse granted options uni
the plan, the number of shares subject to eacloromgant, the exercise price of each option andotpt®on period, subject to t
requirement that no option may be exercisable rtta@e 10 years after the date of grant. The exemmige of an option may be less t
the fair market value of the underlying sharesahmon stock. No options granted under the plahbeiltransferable by the optior
other than by will or the laws of descent and distion and each option will be exercisable, duriihg lifetime of the optionee, only
the optionee

The exercise price of an option granted pursuatitéd2004 Plan may be paid in cash, by the surresfdeptions, in common stock,
other property, including a promissory note frora tptionee, or by a combination of the above, atikcretion of the Committe
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Stock option and bonus plans (Continued
(Continued;

In October 1996, the Board of Directors approveel 1996 Stock Option Plan and 1996 -Employee Director Stock Optiol
Plan. Under the 1996 Stock Option Plan, the Compaaly grant options to purchase common stock tmiceemployees and direct
of the Company for a maximum of 900,000 sharese T896 Stock Option Plan is administered by a cdtamiappointed by tl
Board of Directors which determines the terms dians granted, including the exercise price, thBoopperiods and the number
shares to be subject to each option. The exepeise of options granted under the 1996 Stock @pEtan may be less than the
market value of the common shares on the dateasitgiThe maximum term of options granted underl®86 Stock Option Plan is
years. The right to acquire the common sharestiassignable except for certain conditions stiggalan the 1996 Stock Option Ple

Under the 1996 Nc-Employee Directol’ Stock Option Plan, the n-employee directors are automatically granted stiaions ol
the third business day following the day of eachuah general meeting of the Company to purchassggnegate of 600,000 share
common stock. The exercise price of all optionsnggd under the 1996 Non-Employee Direct@8ck Option Plan shall be ¢
hundred percent of the fair market value per sbétbe common shares on the date of grant. Theérmam term of options grant
under the 1996 Non-Employee Directo8bck Option Plan is 10 years. No stock option meyexercised during the first six mor
of its term except for certain conditions providedthe 1996 Non-Employee DirectorStock Option Plan. The right to acquire
common shares is not assignable except underrcedaditions stipulated in the 1996 MEmployee Director Stock Option Plar

In April 2003, the Company issued options tdaierdirectors and noamployee directors of the Company to purchase greggte ¢
372,500 shares of common stock of the Company akarcise price of $1.61. The options shall expivéMarch 31, 2013 and can
exercised at any time after granting. The exerpisees of these options were equal to the fairketavalue at the time of grant.
such options have been exercised during the yeaedeMarch 31, 2008 and 20(

In March 2004, the Company issued options téagemonemployee directors of the Company to purchase gmneggte of 40,0(
shares of common stock of the Company at an excmice of $6.12. The options shall expire on Mag5, 2014 and can
exercised at any time after granting. The exerpisees of these options were equal to the fairketavalue at the time of grant.
such options have been exercised during the yaaedeMarch 31, 2008 and 20(
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Stock option and bonus plans (Continued

(Continued)

In September 2004, the Company issued optiorefain noremployee directors of the Company to purchase greggte of 40,0(
shares of common stock of the Company at an exemise of $6.20. The options shall expire on Seyter 12, 2014 and can
exercised at any time after granting. The exengigees of these options were equal to the fairketavalue at the time of grant. No s

option was exercised during the years ended Mat¢c2@08 and 200¢

In December 2005, the Company issued optioreettain nonemployee directors of the Company to purchase greggte of 30,0(
shares of common stock of the Company at an exemmige of $4.50. The options shall expire on Dewemd, 2015 and can
exercised at any time after granting. The exengigges of these options were equal to the fair mtavialue at the time of grant. No s

options had been exercised during the years endedhv81, 2008 and 200

On November 16, 2006, the Board of Directors of @menpany voted to rescind the Comp’s 1996 No-Employee Director’ Stock
Option Plan (the “Non-Employee Directors’ Plan”)ll Aptions previously granted under the Non-Empkyarectors’Plan continue i

full force and effect pursuant to their terms odigfr

During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2009, ndomgtwere granted under the 1996 stock option |

The stock options summary as of March 31, 2008 fkows:

Weighted
average
Number exercise
of options price
Balance, March 31, 2006, 2007, 2008 and 2009 1,104,500 $ 4.1¢
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Stock option and bonus plans (Continued

The following table summarizes the information atallistock options of the Company outstandingtadarch 31, 2009

Number Weighted
Weighted outstanding average Exercisable
average at March 31  remaining life shares at
exercise pric 2009 (years) March 31, 2009
$ 1.61 342,50( 4.C 342,50(
$ 2.5C 168,00( 3.C 168,00(
$ 2.5t 10,00( 2.€ 10,00(
$ 3.6t 196,00( 2.1 196,00(
$ 4.5C 30,00( 6.8 30,00(
$ 6.12 40,00( 5.C 40,00(
$ 6.2C 40,00( 5.E 40,00(
$ 7.87¢ 30,00( 1.8 30,00(
$ 8.0C 228,00( 0.8 228,00(
$ 8.12¢ 20,00( 0.8 20,00(
$ 4.131 1,104,501 2.6 1,104,501

The intrinsic value of options outstanding and eisaible was $1,218,160, $157,550 and $nil on M&th2007, 2008 and 20!
respectively. The intrinsic value represents treetpx intrinsic value (the difference between thesing stock price of the Company’
common stock on the balance sheet date and theisxgrice for both the outstanding and exercisapléions) that would have be
received by the option holders if all options hae exercised on March 31, 2007, 2008 and Z

New shares will be issued by the Company upon éugxercise of stock optior

Effective April 1, 2006, the Company adopted SFA& M23(R) in accounting for its employee stock @ptiUnder the provisions
SFAS No. 123(R), the Company is required to meathaeost of employee services received in exchémgaockbased compensati
measured at the fair value of the award as of thaetglate. According to the modified prospectippleation method, the Compe
applies SFAS No. 123(R) for: (1) new awards graratiéer April 1, 2006 and (2) any portion of awattat were granted after April
1995 and have not vested by April 1, 2006. As tben@any did not have any unvested stbelsed compensation as of April 1, 2(
the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R) did not have angdot on the Compang’'financial statement. The weighted average fdireval
options granted during the years ended March 318 20id 2009 amounted to $nil and $nil, respecti\
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party transactions

(a) The Group paid emoluments, commissions and/or damsy fees to its directors and former directadalows:

Year ende(
Mr. So Hun Ms. Pang Ki
Gun Teng, Cath Mr. Chung Kin
March 31, Anthony (iv) War
2007 $ 741,94°(i) $ 68,22: $ 151,09!
2008 $ 705,90:(i) Nil $ 150,47¢
2009 $ 930,00((i)(iii) Nil $ 162,50:(iii)
Mr. Fok Woc Mr. George Mr. J. Stewal Mr. Henry
Pin O'Leary (iv) Jackso Schluete
2007 Nil $ 180,00((v) Nil  $ 14,571 (ii
2008 Nil Nil Nil  $ 59,365 (ii’
2009 Nil  $ 240,00((vi) NIl $ 109,364 (ii
(i) Apart from the emoluments paid by the Group as shabove, one of the properties of the Group in HEiogg is als

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

V)

(Vi)

provided to Mr. So as part of his compensa

The amount for the years ended March 31, 2007, 20082009 represented professional fees paid tlu&ehn & Associate
P.C., and the Gror's SEC counsel in which Mr. Schlueter is one ofgthiecipals.

The amounts for the year ended March 31, 2009 decluwinpaid vacation payments for Messrs. So and¥ung in th
amounts of $114,872 and $13,656, respectively. vRoation payment was paid in July 20

Ms. Pang Kit Teng Cathy and Mr. Georg’Leary resigned from its position as directors & @ompany on November :
2006.

This represented consultancy fees paid to N’ Leary for provision of support and marketing seegién the United States ¢
his director fees since January 17, 2(

This represented consultancy fees paid to MiLe@ty for provision of support and management ses/iin German
completing an asset deal to sell Koranassets (accounts receivable, inventories, tootmgl intellectual property rights) t
third party and for the liquidation of Koror

(b) As of March 31, 2008, BEL had paid deposits of agpnately US$1,528,000 with regard to potentialestments in a commerc
residential building and a land use right in theCPRSubsequent to this fiscal year end, Mr. So,il@ren of Bonso decided to take
BEL’s potential investments and paid BEL the full ami@frapproximately US$1,528,000 in September 2!

During the year ended March 31, 2007, BEL paidaiertleposits of US$799,000 for a potential invesiinie a hotel. Such potent
investment was subsequently taken up by Mr. Satamdull amount was paid to BEL in July 20!
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Concentrations and Credit Risk

The Group operates principally in the PRC (inclgdifiong Kong) and grants credit to its customerthis geographic region. Althou
the PRC is economically stable, it is always pdedifat unanticipated events in foreign countriesld disrupt the Grol's operations

Financial instruments that potentially subject@reup to a concentration of credit risk consistagh, accounts and notes receiva

At March 31, 2007, 2008 and 2009, the Company haditcrisk exposure of uninsured cash in bankspgreximately $7,591,40
$9,653,991, and $8,043,535, respectiv

A substantial portion of revenue was generated foom customer for the years ended March 31, 2062669.

The net sales to customers representing at le&stof®et total sales are as follov

Year Ended March 3:

2008 2009
US¢ 00C % US¢¥ 00C %
Sunbeam Products, h 13,09¢ 29 17,99( 45
TTI Tech Co. Ltc 9,14¢ 20 4,512 11
Global Link Corporation Ltc 8,57¢ 19 2,24z 6

The following customers had balances greater ti@&a af the total accounts receivable as of March2B08 and 2009:

March 31,
2008 2009
USs¢ 00c % uUSs¢ 00c %
Pitney Bowes Inc 32t 12 59¢ 55
TTI Tech Co. Ltd 72 3 29z 27
15 82

At March 31, 2008 and 2009, these customers acedufar 15% and 82%, respectively, of net accouat®ivable. The accoul
receivable have repayment terms of not more thatvavmonths. The Group does not require collateraupport financial instrumel
that are subject to credit ris
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Bonso Electronics International Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Expressed in United States Dollars)

Employee retirement benefits and severance paymeatiowance

With effect from January 1, 1988, BEL, a whi-owned foreign subsidiary of the Company in Hong &omplemented a defin
contribution plan (the “Plan™ith a major international insurance company tovjgte life insurance and retirement benefits fo
employees. All permanent full time employees whiagd BEL before December 2000, excluding factorykeocs, are eligible to jo
the provident fund plan. Each eligible employeat tthooses to participate in the Plan is requicedontribute 5% of their montt
salary, while BEL is required to contribute from 580610% based on the eligible employeséalary, depending on the number of y
of the eligible employe’s service

The Mandatory Provident Fund (the “MPR#jps introduced by the Hong Kong Government, andneented in December 2000. B
joined the MPF by implementing a plan with a majgernational insurance company. All permanent ¢giiong full time employes
who joined BEL in or after December 2000, excludiagtory workers, must join the MPF, except fordbavho joined the Plan befi
December 2000. The eligible employee’s and emplsy®ntributions to the MPF are both at 5% of ¢tigible employees monthl
salary and are subject to a maximum contributiod€$1,000 (US$128) monthl

Pursuant to the relevant PRC regulations, the Gisugquired to make contributions for each emptoge rates based upon
employees standard salary base as determined by the lawahlSSecurity Bureau, to a defined contributiotireenent scherr
organized by the local Social Security Bureau Bpeet of the retirement benefits for the Gr's employees in the PR

The contributions to each of the above schemesea@gnized as employee benefit expenses when tieegug and are charged to
consolidated statement of operations. The Grotgial contributions to the above schemes foytss ended March 31, 2008 and
amounted to $251,538 and $324,882, respectivefie Group has no other obligation to make paymentsspect of retirement bene
of the employees

According to the New Labor Law in the PRC which vedfective from January 1, 2009, a company is neglto provide one month

salary for each year of service as a severance grayrmi\s such, the company recognized a provisfa$i785,438 in fiscal year end
March 31, 2009 for the severance payment for gtatie PRC. The accrued severance payment all@evaillcbe reviewed every yee
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Bonso Electronics International Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Expressed in United States Dollars)

Earnings per share

Year ended March 3

2007 200¢ 200¢
$ $ $

Net loss applicable to commi
shareholder (1,370,94) (8,549,91) (7,584,41)
Weighted average shares outstanc 5,577,63! 5,577,63! 5,577,63!
Basic and diluted earnings per sh (0.25) (1.59) (1.36)

Basic loss per share is computed by dividing nes$ lavailable to common shareholders by the weightedage number of shares
common stock issued and outstanding. Diluted egsnper share is computed in a manner consistehtthat of basic earnings per st
while giving effect to all potentially dilutive shas of common stock that were outstanding duriegptriod, including stock option

The diluted net loss per share is the same asahbie bet loss per share for the year ended Marc®08& and 2009 as all poten
ordinary shares from the exercise of stock optamesantidilutive and are therefore excluded from the corapon of diluted net loss f.

share.
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Business segment informatiot

The Group is organized based on the productséraffUnder this organizational structure, the G’'s operations can be classified

Bonso Electronics International Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(Expressed in United States Dollars)

three business segments, scales, telecommunigatidocts and othe

Scales operations principally involve productiom amarketing of sens-based scales products. These include bathroonhekitoffice

jewelry, laboratory, postal and industrial scalest are used in consumer, commercial and industpilications

Telecommunication products operations principatlyolve production and modification of t-way radios and cordless telephones

are used in consumer and commercial applicat

The “othe” segment is a residual, which principally includé® tactivities of (i) tooling and mould charges fectales an

telecommunication products and (ii) sales of senaperials

The accounting policies of the Grc' s reportable segments are the same as those @ebsurithe description of business and signifi

accounting policies

Summarized financial information by business segrasrof March 31, 2007, 2008 and 2009 is as folic

2009

Scales
Telecommunication produc
Other

Total operating segmen
Corporate

Group
Discontinued operations

Total Assets

2008

Scales
Telecommunication produc
Other

Total operating segmen
Corporate

Group
Discontinued operations

Total Assets

Identifiable Depreciatiol
Operating  assets as anc Capita
Net sale  profit/(loss’ March 3. amortizatioi  expenditur
$ $ $ $ $
30,352,49 150,86¢ 8,706,35! 823,56« 32,76¢
9,475,17 (2,065,69) 6,002,98! 916,11! 38,77
550,52! 99,09¢ 42,10t
40,378,19 (1,815,72) 14,751,44 1,739,67 71,53¢
- (2,333,53) 10,868,17 713,68
40,378,19 (4,149,26) 25,619,622 2,453,36! 71,53¢
3,819,40
29,439,02
26,649,04 (3,513,361 7,809,11. 608,28: 315,58t
18,597,93 (2,561,41) 10,426,822 1,092,02i 489,78¢
248,63: 44,75¢ 58,79¢ - -
45,495,62 (6,030,02) 18,294,74 1,700,31: 805,37"
- (3,438,35) 15,749,51 781,92 1,753,34.
45,495,62 (9,468,38) 34,044,25 2,482,23 2,558, 72
7,741,591
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(b)

Bonso Electronics International Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Expressed in United States Dollars)

Business segment information (Continued

(Continued
Identifiable Depreciatiol
Operating  assets as anc Capita
Net sale  profit/(loss March 3. amortizatiol expenditur
_2007
Scales 31,685,96 5,468,76;  12,866,87 632,69' 35,87
Telecommunication produc 16,248,26 (1,392,101 9,107,00 1,037,08: 127,03:
Other 338,16( 60,86¢ - - -
Total operating segmen 48,272,38 4,137,53.  21,973,88 1,669,78! 162,90:
Corporate - (2,898,63) 17,868,26 851,96¢ 130,39:
Group 48,272,38 1,238,89: 39,842,14 2,521,741 293,29!
Discontinued operatior 7,676,46!
Total Asset: 47,518,61

Operating profit by segment equals total operatiegenues less expenses directly attributable togtgeration of the segmrs
operating revenues. Operating loss of the corpaagment consists principally of salaries andedlaosts of administrative staff, ¢
administration and general expenses of the Gradgntifiable assets by segment are those assdtarhaised in the operation of t
segment. Corporate assets consist principallyash@and cash equivalents, deferred income taxsaardtother identifiable assets
related specifically to individual segments. Godtwi $842,821, $nil and $nil arising from the phese of Gram, is allocated to sc
segment as of March 31, 2007, 2008 and 2009, regelc

The Group primarily operates in Hong Kong, the P&@rmany, Canada and the United States. The mantgaof components a
their assembly into finished products and reseamth development are carried out in the PRC. ThegH¢ong office is mainl
responsible for the purchase of raw materials arahgement of shipments. Subsidiaries in Germaaya@a and the United States
responsible for the distribution of electronicslesaand telecommunication products in Europe andhiNemerica. As the operations
integrated, it is not practicable to distinguish tiet income derived among the activities in Homgd the PRC, Germany, Canada
United States and the United Kingdc

Total property, plant and equipment, net by gedgj areas are as follow

2007 200¢ 200¢

$ $ $

Hong Kong 3,585,12. 1,931,15: 1,672,41
The PRC 7,048,04! 3,960,52 1,701,83i
United State: 50,28: 51,52: -
Total property, plant and equipme 7,098,32! 5,943,19 3,374,25.
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Bonso Electronics International Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Expressed in United States Dollars)
19. Business segment information (Continued

(c) The following is a summary of net export sales bpgraphical areas, which are defined by the fihgdraent destination, constituti
10% or more of total sales of the Company for tharg ended March 31, 2007, 2008 and 2

Year ended March 3

2007 % 200¢ % 200¢ %

$ $ $
United States of Americ 33,048,64 68 29,585,94 65 26,923,18 67
Germany 4,742,83. 10 5,361,89! 12 4,782,28I 12
Other EC countrie 6,501,35: 14 6,652,233 14 2,858,23! 7
Asia and other 3,979,54 8 3,895,54. 9 5,814,49 14

48,272,38 10C 45,495,62  10C 40,378,19  10C

(d)  The details of sales made to customers constitdii¥g or more of total sales of the Company arebows:

Year ended March 3

Busines
segmer 2007 % 200¢ % 200¢ %
$ $ $
Sunbeam Product
Inc. (USA) Scale: 15,387,96 32 13,097,83 29 17,990,41. 45
Tele-
communicatio
TTI Tech Co., Ltd product:  7,752,57. 16 9,147,73! 20 4,511,62: 11
Tele-
Global Link communicatio
Corporation Ltd. product:  8,457,86! 17 8,574,01 19 2,241,97! 6
31,598,40 65 30,819,58 68 24,744,01. 62
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Bonso Electronics International Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(Expressed in United States Dollars)
Fair value of financial instruments
Effective April 1, 2008, we adopted SFAS No. 1“Fair Value Measuremer” (“SFAS No. 15”). SFAS No. 157 clarifies the definiti
of fair value, prescribes methods for measuring falue and establishes a fair value hierarchyldssify the inputs used in measul
fair value as follows
Level J-Inputs are unadjusted quoted prices in active niaffiee identical assets or liabilities availabldte measurement da
Level z-Inputs are unadjusted quoted prices for similaetsand liabilities in active markets, quoted psiter identical or similar assi
and liabilities in markets that are not active,utgpother than quoted prices that are observabtejrgputs derived from or corrobora
by observable market da:

Level 3inputs are unobservable inputs which reflect thporing entity's own assumptions on what assumptitbe market participar
would use in pricing the asset or liability basedtioe best available informatic

The adoption of SFAS No. 157 did not have a mdtaripact on our fair value measurements as the Gomes not have any bala
sheet components deemed financial assets or tiabi

Post balance sheet evel

On March 30, 2009, Korona, the Companiidirect subsidiary, sold all of its major assetduding accounts receivable, inventot
toolings and intellectual property rights, to ardhparty. Subsequent to the year end, the direaecided to liquidate Korona. 1
subsidiary is now in the process of being liquida

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to pear ypalances in order to conform to the current’s presentatior
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Banking Facility Letter dated March 6, 2009 betw8amso and the Hang Seng Bank Limi

Code of Ethics For Chief Executive Officer and Glimancial Officer (1)

Certification of Officer Pursuant to Section 1358,adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sar-Oxley Act of 200z
Certification of Officer Pursuant to Section 1388,adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sar-Oxley Act of 2002
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() Filed as an Exhibit to Form -F filed with the SEC on August 13, 20
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SIGNATURE

The registrant hereby certifies that it meets &athe requirements for filing on Form ZDand that it has duly caused and authot

the undersigned to sign this Annual Report on étgaif.

BONSO ELECTRONICS INTERNATIONAL INC.

Date October 20, 200 By:/s/ Anthony So
Anthony So, Chairman of the Board, Chief Executdféicer, Treasurer and Direct

Date October 20, 200 By: /s/ Albert So
Albert So, Chief Financial Officer and Secret
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Date: 17th April 2009
Our ref: OCC/LC/TEAM4/BKA

CONFIDENTIAL

Bonso Electronics Limited
Unit 1915-1916, 19/F,
Delta House,

3 On Yiu Street,

Shek Mun, Shatin,

New Territories

Attn: Mr. Anthony So / Mr. Albert So

Dear Sirs,

BANKING FACILITIES

Exhibit 4.1

Standard Chartered

We, Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limitederr¢o our letter dated 6th June 2007 setting bet facilities made available to -
Customer(s) below, as varied by our letters datedldne 2008, 14th October 2008 and 6th April 2009.

CUSTOMER(S):

Bonso Electronics Limited

Following our recent discussions, we are pleasexbidirm that the terms of the facilities will berther varied as follows:

The General Banking Facilities under this sectidlhlbve revised as follows:

B FACILITY LIMITS:
(1) General Banking Facilities
Type(s) of Facility

1. Current Account Overdra
2. Trade Financ

(Please refer to Appendix | fi
product details.

(a) Trade Finance Group #

Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
Origination & Client Coverage

Credit Risk Control

11th Floor Standard Chartered Tower

388 Kwun Tong Road Kwun Tong Hong Kong

Facility Limit(s)

HKD3,000,00C-
HKD40,000,00(-

Designated Customer(s) ant
Sub-limit(s), if applicable
» The Custome

* The Custome
(HKD40,000,00¢-)




Page 2
Bonso Electronics Limited

(b) Trade Finance Group » The Custome
(HKD40,000,00(-)

(c) Trade Finance Group » The Custome
(HKD40,000,00(-)

(d) Trade Finance Group » The Custome
(HKD40,000,00(-)

3. Factoring HKD20,000,00(- » The Custome

(being FIU Limit)
Total Facility Limit: HKD63.000.000-
Note -

The aggregate amounts outstanding under al-limits shall not at any time exceed the Facilityniti to which the Su-
limits relate and the aggregate amounts outstanditder all Facilities shall not at any time excekd Total Facilit
Limit.

C. PRICING AND CONDITIONS:

The following item under Trade Finance facilitynis longer required.

Discounting of "Documents Against Acceptance"” ("DV#& only available to the approved drawee bylibek.

E. COVENANTS AND UNDERTAKINGS:
The following item to be added to read as follows:
4. submit the confirmed sales order figures ontgulg basis within | month from each quarter end.
A handling fee of HKD30,000. - will be payable upour receipt of your acceptance of this letter.
The variation(s) set out above will take effect winee have received:
. the enclosed copy of this letter sigr®da director on behalf of the Customer(s).
Please sign the enclosed copy of this letter atdmret to the Bank's Credit Risk Control at 11flod#, Standard Chartered Tower, 388 Kwun
Tong Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, for the attentiontloeé undersigned within one month after the datthisf letter, after which this offer of
variation(s) will lapse. When the variations takkieet, this letter will amend the terms of the ¢ixig facility letter which the Bank has issued

to the Customer(s), as set out above. In all atbgpects, the terms of the existing facility lettalf remain in full force and effect. This letter
will be governed by the laws of Hong Kong SAR.
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Bonso Electronics Limited

If you have any queries, please contact our Relskip Manager Ms. Sandra Mak, whose telephone nuimi2821-1876.
We are pleased to be of service to you and takeottportunity to thank you again for your custom.

Yours faithfully,

For and on behalf of
STANDARD CHARTERED BANK (HONG KONG) LIMITED

Katy Kam
Senior Credit Documentation Manager

KK/DS Encl.

Agreed.
For and on behalf of
BONSO ELECTRONICS LIMITED

Director

Each of the undersigned hereby acknowledge thesteifnthis facility letter and confirm that theirsgective obligations under each guar
and security document (as applicable) that theyehaxecuted in favour of the Bank will continue il fforce and are not and will not
affected, discharged or varied by the executiothisffacility letter.

For and on behalf of
BONSO ELECTRONICS INTERNATIONAL INC.







Exhibit 4.2

HANG SENG BANK
Managing wealth for you, with yo

CUSTOMER'S COPY

Our Ref: Commercial Banking - A081111
Confidential

6 March 2009

Bonso Electronics Limited

Unit 1915-1916 19/F

Delta House

3 On Yiu Street

Shek Mun

Shatin
New Territories

Attention: Mr. Anthony So
Dear Sirs,
BANKING FACILITIES

With reference to our recent discussions, we, H&agg Bank Limited (the Bank ") have reviewed your banking facilities and are
pleased to offer the following revised banking ligffacilities (the "Facilities ") to the borrower(s) specified below (th&b6rrower ").

The Facilities will be made available on the termsl conditions set out in this letter and the Stathderms and Conditions for Banking
Facilities attached and upon satisfactory comptetibthe security specified below.

The Facilities are subject to review at any timd anany event b1 January 2010and also subject to our overriding right of repagte
on demand, including the right to call for cash ewown demand for prospective and contingent ligédi The Bank shall have an
unrestricted discretion to cancel or suspend, terdene whether or not to permit drawings in relatio, the Facilities.

1. Borrower

Bonso Electronics Limited

2. Facilities and Limits
Combine Limit HKD48,000,00C
Overdraft (OD) (HKD5,000,000)
Standby Documentary Credits (HKD7,800,000)
(SDC)
Documentary Credits (HKD48,000,000)
- Trust Receipt (TR) [(HKD48,000,000)]
Local Documentary Credi (HKD48,000,000

Hang Seng Bank

Limited

83 Des Voeux Road Central Hong Kong

Tel (852) 2198 1111 Fax (852) 2868 4047
Telex 73311 HASEB HX Website
www.hangseng.com

ISO 14001 certified

The world’s most recognised standard
for environmental management systems






Bonso Electronics Limited
Our Ref: Commercial Banking - A081111

- Trust Receipt under Loc [(HKD48,000,000)]
Documentary Credits (T
under Local DC

Import Trade Loans (ITL (HKD35,000,000

Documents Against Payme (HKD48,000,000

Documents Against Acceptan (HKD48,000,000

(DA)

Factoring Facility (FTG (USD2,400,000

Bank Guarantee (GTE (UsSD1,000,000

Negotiation under Documenta HKD15,000,00(

Credits with discrepancie

Total HKD63,000,00(C
Note:

(a) The aggregate outstanding under OD, SDC, TR, TRubdcal DC, ITL, DA, FTG and GTE facilities shalbt at any time
exceed HKD48,000,00!

(b) The aggregate outstanding of all -limits shall not at any time exceed the Facilityniti of that Facility and the Total Facili
Limit.

3. Facilities and Conditions

Overdraft Facility: ~ Account No.: 25¢-22969¢-001

Interest:1% per annum over BLR on daily balancpayable monthly in arrear

Interest on Unauthorized Overdre8% per annunover BLR

Documentary Creditskor issuance of documentary credits for the accofitite Borrower in favour of third parties and eang
import of goods in the ways acceptable to the Bamdk/or acceptance of bills drawn thereunder witlotteip to
120days.

Hang Seng Bank Limited




Bonso Electronics Limited

Our Ref: Commercial Banking - AO81111

Trust Receipt:

Local Documentar
Credits:

Trust Receipt unde
Local :

Import Trade Loans:

For trust receipt facility relatitgggoods imported arfthanced under the Bank's documentary credits ts$ur
the account of the Borrower with tenor up to 129sdass any usance/credit periods granted by thglisus of
the Borrower

The interest shall be 2.5% per annum over HIBORH&D loan and 2.5% per annum over LIBOR for USD
loan.

For issuance of documentary credits for the accafnthe Borrower in favour of third parties / lo
beneficiaries andcovering import of goods by cglifar simple / insecure shipping evidence satisfigcto the
Bank with tenor up to 120 day

For trust receipt facility relating to goods impegtand financed Documentary Credits under the Bdrdcal
DC with tenor up to 120 day

The interest shall be 2.5% per annum over HIBORHKD loan and 2.5% per annum over LIBOR for USD
loan.

For extension of trade loanfinance the Borrower's import of goods as eviéénay its suppliers' invoicesd
any other relevant documents as required. Theahilii} of any particular trade loan will be sulijéc such
conditions as the Bank may decide from time to timith tenor up to 150 day

The interest shall be 2.5% per annum over HIBORHED loan and 2.5% per annum over LIBOR for U
loan.

Standby DocumentarThe Borrower shall reimburse the Bank immediatelydemand all amounts of claims under any stai

Hang Seng Bank Limited

documentary credit issued for its account. Any amiowt reimbursed by it to the Bank shall bear ditfa
interest at such rate as the Bank may at its atesdlacretion determine from time to tin
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Documents

Against Payment For purchase of documentary export D/P bills drawparties acceptable to the Bau

Documents Against For purchase of documentary export D/A bills dramrparties acceptable to the Bank with tenor up2@
Acceptance: days.

The interest shall be 2.5% annum over HIBORHKD  loan and 2.5% per annum over LIBOR for USD
loan.

Negotiation under  For negotiation of discrepant documents, secureunsecured by goods, presented under export docame
Documentary Creditscredits issued by banks acceptable to the Bank.
with discrepancies

Factoring Facility: ~ Subject to terms and conditions set out in sepdetterissued by the Bars Customized Trade Solutio
Department

Bank Guarantee: For issuance of bank guarantebedaaccount of the Borrower in favour of third iggs in the ways acceptable
to the Bank

Commission will be charged at 1.5% per annum oratheunt of each guarantee to be iss|

4, Security

The Bank shall continue to hold:-
(1) Guaranteedated 31 Janual 2000 for unlimited amount from Bonso Electronicemational Inc

Each of the Borrower and the corporate guarantgif(ajy) shall immediately inform the Bank onceté are changes of its
directors or beneficial shareholders or amendneeitstmemorandum and articles of association oivadent constitutional
documents and shall ensure that such changes/areahdne updated in the company registry of its@lafcincorporation
promptly.

5. Undertakings

The Borrower and the under-mentioned undertaking paties (if any) will undertake to the Bank as follows:-

(1) The Borrower shall provide to the Bank a certifeeghy of the financial statements on a quarterlysh

Hang Seng Bank Limited
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(2) Bonso Electronics International Inc and all of stebsidiaries/associated companies shall not caapermit to subsist al
mortgage, pledge, lien, charge, assignment or atheurity interest over any of its assets withdwet Bank's prior writte
consent

The Borrower and the under-mentioned undertaking paties (if any) shall continue to undertake to the Bnk as
follows:-

1) The Borrower and the corporate guarantor(s) shallige to the Bank a certified copy of its annuadlited accounts/financ
statements within 180 days after the end of ea@mfiial year and such other relevant financialrmfation as the Bank m
from time to time reasonably reque

6. Fees
A facility review fee of HKD30,000 will be debiteffom the Borrower's account maintained with the IBam the
expiration of 14 days from the date of this lettatess the Bank within 7 Business Days from the ddtthis letter
receives the Borrower's written notification thae facilities are no longer required.

Upon completing each review of the Facilities, Benk is authorised to debit the current accountntaaied by the
Borrower with the Bank for the facility review fas the Bank may prescribe from time to time.

Section 83 of the Banking Ordinance

Section 83 of the Banking Ordinance (Cap. 155, Lafv$élong Kong) has imposed on us as a bank celimitations on
advances to persons related to our directors otogmes. In accepting the Facilities, the Borrowssidd advise us whether the
Borrower is in any way related to any of our dioestor employees within the meaning of Section 83 ia the absence of such
advice we will assume that the Borrower is notedated. We would also ask that if the Borrower Inees so related subsequent
to accepting the Facilities, the Borrower shouldniadiately advise us in writing.

Please arrange for the enclosed copy of this l&itée signed by the Borrower and all guarantors security providers of the
Facilities and return the same to the Bank with rHoResolution(s) and Shareholder's Resolution{sjfplicable) befores
April 2009, failing which our offer shall lapse unless it igexded by us at our absolute discretion.

By accepting this Facility Letter, you would agteechannel all your remittance transactions andrensce arrangement to the

Bank. Our Cash Management & Payment Services Depattand Commercial Sales Department would conytagtto offer
our services on remittance and insurance respégctive

Hang Seng Bank Limited
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Should you have any queries, please do not hesitatentact the following persons:-

Queries on Name
Banking arrangemel Mr. Angus Wong
Factoring arrangeme Ms. Katrine Lee
Insurance Mr. Stanley N¢
Mr. John Li
Remittance Mr. Billy Chow
Remittance Hotline
Wealth manageme! Ms. Michelle Wonc
Execution of documen Ms. Angel Lui

Ms. Teresa Cha

Telephone No.

2198599¢
21988512
2198270¢
21982522
2198453<
2198691¢
2198553¢
21984817
2198481¢

Kindly return the accepted Facility Letter and axed documents to obdr. Jones Chung/ Ms. Angel Lui, Credit Administration
Department, 21/F., 83 Des Voeux Road Central, Horl§ong.

We trust that you will make active use of the Ftes8 and are pleased to be of continued assistance

Yours faithfully,
For Hang Seng Bank Limited

Josephine Cho

Senior Vice President

Documentation and Services Delivery
Commercial Banking Division

HL/ yk

Hang Seng Bank Limited

Joanna Lai
Vice President

Documentation and Services Delivery
Commercial Banking Division
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I/We hereby accept the Facilities and agree todaenth by all the terms and conditions set out is thiter and the Standard Terms and
Conditions for Banking Facilities, which I/we hasead and understood.

For and on behalf of
BONSO ELECTRONICS LTD.

Bonso Electronic Signature(s)

I/We agree to act as guarantor/security providghefFacilities upon the terms and conditions setiothis letter and the Standard Terms
and Conditions for Banking Facilities.

For and on behalf of
BONSO ELECTRONICS INTERNATIONAL INC.

Bonso Electronics International Inc.

Hang Seng Bank Limited







Exhibit 12.1
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Anthony So, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 2if-Bonso Electronics International Inc. (the “Caang”);

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report cdaesontain any untrue statement of a material daaimit to state a material fi
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementswade, not misleading with respect to
period covered by this annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememd other financial information included in thisnual report, fairly present in
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the Company aarul, for, the periods presented in this an
report;

4. The Company's other certifying officer(s) anaré responsible for establishing and maintainiisgldsure controls and procedt
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and1B§d)) and internal control over financial repogtiias defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-
15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the Company and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls @modedures, or caused such disclosure controlpeswkdures to be desigr
under our supervision, to ensure that materialrimédgion relating to the Company, including its aalidated subsidiaries, is me
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isfg prepared;

b. Designed such internal control oveaficial reporting, or caused such internal cordwar financial reporting to |
designed under our supervision, to provide readeradsurance regarding the reliability of financeigporting and the preparation
financial statements for external purposes in atamoce with generally accepted accounting princjples

C. Evaluated the effectiveness of the @amy's disclosure controls and procedures and miexbsen this report ol
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disctosantrols and procedures as of the end of thegepvered by this report basec
such evaluations; and

d. Disclosed in this report any changéhs Company's internal control over financial néjog that occurred during t
period covered by the annual report that has naditeraffected, or is reasonably likely to matesadiffect, the Company's inter
control over financial reporting.

5. The Company's other certifying officer(s) andhdve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatianternal controls ov
financial reporting, to the Company's auditors #melaudit committee of Company's Board of Direc{orspersons performing the equiva
function):

a. All significant deficiencies and maaénveaknesses in the design or operation of imlecontrols over financi
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversaffect the Company's ability to record, processnearize and report financ
information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not materiakttimvolves management or other employees who hasignificant role in tr
Company's internal controls over financial repatin

Date: October 20, 2009

[s/ Anthony So
Anthony So, President, Chief Executive Officer amdasurer







Exhibit 12.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Albert So, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 28f-Bonso Electronics International Inc. (the “Comp};

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report do¢sontain any untrue statement of a material daamit to state a material f:
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statements mwade, not misleading with respect to
period covered by this annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtd,other financial information included in thisnaial report, fairly present in
material respects the financial condition, resafteperations and cash flows of the Company aardd, for, the periods presented in this an
report;

4. The Company's other certifying officer(s) anaré responsible for establishing and maintainirsgldsure controls and procedt
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and1B§d)) and internal control over financial repogtiias defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-
15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the Company and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls @odedures, or caused such disclosure controlgpeswkdures to be desigr
under our supervision, to ensure that materialrmédgion relating to the Company, including its caidated subsidiaries, is me
known to us by others within those entities, paftidy during the period in which this report isifige prepared;

b. Designed such internal control ovaeficial reporting, or caused such internal corgv@r financial reporting to |
designed under our supervision, to provide readeradsurance regarding the reliability of financigborting and the preparation
financial statements for external purposes in ataoee with generally accepted accounting principles

C. Evaluated the effectiveness of the @amy's disclosure controls and procedures and miexsen this report ol
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disc®santrols and procedures as of the end of thegeovered by this report basec
such evaluations; and

d. Disclosed in this report any changéhin Company's internal control over financial mtipg that occurred during t
period covered by the annual report that has naditeraffected, or is reasonably likely to materadiffect, the company's inter
control over financial reporting.

5. The Company's other certifying officer(s) anthdve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluafianternal controls owv
financial reporting, to the Company's auditors d@hd audit committee of the Company's Board of Does (or persons performing !
equivalent function):

a. All significant deficiencies and maaérweaknesses in the design or operation of ialecontrols over financi
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversaffect the Company's ability to record, processnmiarize and report financ
information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not materiakttinvolves management or other employees who hasignificant role in tr
Company's internal controls over financial repaytin

Date: October 20, 2009

s/ Albert So
Albert So, Chief Financial Officer and Secretary







EXHIBIT 13.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Pursuant to section 906 of the Sarbadsy Act of 2002 (subsections (a) and (b) of sertl350, chapter 63 of title 18, United St
Code), each of the undersigned officers of BonstEbnics International, Inc., a British Virgin dsids international business company
"Corporation"), does hereby certify, to such offis&knowledge, that:

The Annual Report on Form 20-F for the yeaded March 31, 2009 (the "Form BO- of the Corporation fully complies with t
requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the SéearExchange Act of 1934, as amended, and infobomaontained in the Form 2Bfairly
presents, in all material respects, the finan@aldition and results of operations of the Corporati

Dated:October 20, 200

s/ Anthony Sc
Anthony Sa

President, Chief Executive Officer and Treas!







EXHIBIT 13.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Pursuant to section 906 of the Sarbadsy Act of 2002 (subsections (a) and (b) of sertl350, chapter 63 of title 18, United St
Code), each of the undersigned officers of BonstEbnics International, Inc., a British Virgin dsids international business company
"Corporation"), does hereby certify, to such offis&knowledge, that:

The Annual Report on Form 20-F for the yeaded March 31, 2009 (the "Form BO- of the Corporation fully complies with t
requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the SéearExchange Act of 1934, as amended, and infobomaontained in the Form 2Bfairly
presents, in all material respects, the finan@aldition and results of operations of the Corporati

Dated:October 20, 200

I/s/ Albert Sc
Albert So
Chief Financial Officer and Secrete



